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For more information, 
please, visit our website

Forward-looking statements

Some information in this report may contain forward-looking statements which 
include statements regarding Company’s expected financial position and results 
of operations, business plans and prospects etc. and are generally identified by 
forward-looking words such as “believe,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” 
“expect,” “may,” “will” or other similar words. Forward-looking statements are 
dependent on assumptions or basis underlying such statements. We have chosen 
these assumptions or basis in good faith, and we believe that they are reasonable 
in all material respects. However, we caution that actual results, performances or 

looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-
looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.
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As we expand our 
market footprint, our 
commitment to being 
customer- centric, 
innovative, and 
sustainable remains at 
the core of everything 
we do. With a focus on 
delivering stellar results, 
we have witnessed 
significant growth in our 
market presence, backed 
by our robust operational 

liquidity. 
As we navigate the dynamic 
business landscape, we 
remain steadfast in our 
pursuit of margin growth. 

optimize processes and 
streamline operations have 
yielded remarkable results, 
enabling us to deliver value to 
our stakeholders and achieve 
sustainable profitability.

Embracing sustainability, we 
strive to create innovative 
adhesive solutions that 
not only meet the evolving 
needs of our customers but 
also contribute to a greener 
and more sustainable 
future. With our customer-
centric approach, innovative 
mindset, and focus on 
sustainability, we are set to 
redefine industry standards 
and leave a positive impact 
for all our stakeholders. 

Key highlights

H 25,730 lakhs

H 8,392 lakhs 

H 6,712 lakhs

40.38%

H 55.93

53.93%

Revenue 

EBITDA

PAT

Return on net worth

EPS

Return on capital employed

1.51%

127% 

145%

YoY growth 
of revenue 

YoY growth 
of EBITDA

YoY growth 
of PAT

5-years CAGR 
of revenue 

5-years CAGR 
of EBITDA

5-years CAGR 
of PAT

30.2%

92.8%

98.1%
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About Us

Jyoti Resins & Adhesives is one of the leading manufacturers 
of synthetic resin adhesives in India, engaged in manufacturing 
various types of wood adhesives. 

Established in 2006, Jyoti Resins & 
Adhesives (hereinafter referred as 
‘JRA’) launched the wood adhesive 

 a htiW .’0007 oruE‘ dnarb eht rednu
single manufacturing unit in Santej, 
Gandhinagar, we continue to serve 
customers across 13 states in the 
country today. 

Our adhesive manufacturing units 
are equipped with state-of-the-art 
machinery, ensuring the production 
of superior quality adhesives. We 
adhere to stringent quality standards 
and conduct rigorous testing at every 
stage of the manufacturing process. 
Our advanced machinery not only 
guarantees quality but also contributes 

us to meet growing demands while 

#2

2nd
Largest wood adhesive 
brand in India

Largest wood adhesive brand 
in India (retail segment)

2000 TPM

2x

Manufacturing capacity

Capacity growth in last 
2-3 years

Values that drives us

Trust 

Speed and agility 

Performance 

Team work

Learning 

EURO 7000 has 
established itself as the 
second largest wood 
adhesive (white glue) 
brand in India in the 
retail segment. 

With its unparalleled quality and 
performance, EURO 7000 has gained 
a strong reputation among consumers, 
contractors, and woodworking 
professionals (carpenters) alike. Its 
exceptional bonding properties, 
versatility, and durability make it the 
‘adhesive of choice’ for a wide range of 
wood-based applications.

Read more about our brand 
and products on page 18 of 
the Annual Report
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• An energetic organisation on a long
haul, charting a distinct course for customer
admiration, led by a disciplined team of
vibrant people.

VISION
• Euro 7000 Adhesives strives for product excellence,
global expansion, innovation leadership, sustainability,
and unmatched customer satisfaction.

GOAL

• Our strategy revolves around innovation, global expansion,
and sustainability—investing in R&D, expanding internationally,
and forming strategic alliances to maintain leadership in adhesive
technology.

STRATEGIES
• Encouraging creativity and valuing new thoughts.
 Lending a helping hand to society’s developmental needs.•
 Being honest and forthright in our approach.•
 Being in harmony with the natural order.•
 Customer focus with world class quality and cost ective products•

VALUES

MISSION & VISION

MISSION
• Cherishing mutually satisfying relationships 
 Encouraging innovation through creativity•
 Constant technological upgradations to maintain superiority•
 Inculcating team spirit amongst the workforce and ensuring their development•

through professional improvement in their capabilities and welfare for them and their families
 Contributing to the social and economic upliftment of the underprivileged in the society•

and in making the nation stronger
 Honesty in approach, transparency in work and dealings•
 Adoption of green technology to conserve environment and reduction of our carbon footprint•
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Gujarat

Rajasthan
Uttar Pradesh

Madhya Pradesh

Delhi

Himachal
pradesh

Haryana

Punjab

West
Bengal

Chhattisgarh

Maharashtra

Telangana

Karnataka
Andhra
Pradesh

OPERATIONAL AND
MARKET PRESENCE

OPERATIONAL PRESENCE
MANUFACTURING UNIT
AT SANTEJ, GUJARAT

CAPACITY

2000 TPM

14
STATES

35
BRANCHES

60
DISTRIBUTORS

400
SALES FORCE

12000
RETAILERS

350000
CARPENTERS

MARKET PRESENCE

DISCLAIMER : THIS MAP IS A GENERALIZED ILLUSTRATION ONLY FOR THE EASE OF THE READER TO
UNDERSTAND THE LOCATIONS, AND IS NOT INTENDED TO BE USED FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES. THE
REPRESENTATION OF POLITICAL BOUNDARIES AND THE NAMES OF GEOGRAPHICAL FEATURES/STATES
DO NOT NECESSARILY REFLECT THE ACTUAL POSITION. THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS DIRECTORS,
OFFICERS OR EMPLOYEES CANNOT BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY MISUSE OR MISINTERPRETATION
OF ANY INFORMATION OR DESIGN THERE OF THE COMPANY DOES NOT WARRANT OR REPRESENT ANY
KIND IN CONNECTION TO ITS ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS.
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1994-95

2005

2006

2007
2010

2012

2016-17

2022

2018-19

• 

• Manufacturing setup at 
Santej, Ahmedabad over 
8000 square yard

Mr Utkarsh Patel, ED joins the 
business after completing Chemical 
Engineering; and Masters in 
Marketing and International 
Business Management

Euro 7000 brand 
launched, a premium 
white glue adhesive for 
retail segment

Expanded capacity 
and market presence 
outside Gujarat

Expands presence into 
the state of Rajasthan 

Expands presence in 
Maharashtra and other 
key markets

Expands production 
capacity to 500 TPM

• Doubles the production 
capacity to 2000 TPM. 

• Initiates process to setup 
warehouse for storage of raw 
materials and finished goods

• Company expands market 
presence to 12 states 

• Manufacturing capacity 
expanded to 1000 TPM

Our Journey

1994
Established by Chairman and 
first generation entrepreneur 
Mr. Jagdish Patel
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Dear Shareholders, 

As we present to you the 31st Annual Report of Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Limited, I am 

environment. Your company continues to advance in its mission to provide high-quality 

in India in the retail segment, a testament to our unwavering commitment to quality and 
innovation. 

Operational Highlights 

CHAIRMAN'S 
MESSAGE

to Shareholders 
for the 31st Annual 
Report of
Jyoti Resins and 
Adhesives Limited 

Financial Performance  

 

performance and value creation for our shareholders.

with our valued shareholders.  

Future Outlook   

product portfolio, and expanding our geographic reach. We are committed to leveraging our 

opportunities in the adhesive industry. 

continued trust and support. Together, we will strive to achieve greater heights and continue 

In the 31st Annual Report of Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Limited, we are proud to highlight our 

commitment to innovation and operational excellence, we are well-positioned for continued 

dedication to delivering value to our shareholders. 

Warm regards, 
Jagdish Nathalal Patel 

Chairman and Whole Time Director 
Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Limited  
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to Shareholders 
for the 31st Annual 
Report of
Jyoti Resins and 
Adhesives Limited 

MANAGING DIRECTOR'S
MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders, 

As we advance in our journey of growth and transformation, I am excited to share the 

more dominant position in the adhesive industry. Our primary goal is to achieve a turnover 

expanding into new territories. 

In line with our vision for growth, we are committed to enhancing value for our shareholders 

Warm regards, 
Utkarsh Jagdishbhai Patel 

Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Limited 

aggressively increasing our production capacity and enhancing direct engagement with 

success.

13
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Value 
Proposition

Major 
Activities

Key Partners

Revenue 
Streams

Cost 
Structure

We provide high 
grade & premium 
synthetic resin 
adhesives and 
with a focus 
on innovation, 
our products 
are designed 
for various 
applications 
catering to the 
diverse needs of 
our customers. 

Key activities 
include production, 
packaging, 
marketing, sales 
and customer 
service. Through 
significant R&D 
investment, we 
have brought high 
quality products to 
the market. We are 
customer centric in 
our approach.

Our key partners include 
raw material suppliers, 
logistics partners, and 
distributors / consignee 
sales agents. Through 
reliable suppliers of raw 
materials and equipment, 
we maintain credible 
and a continuously 
supply of resources. Our 
logistics partners help in 
delivering our products 
to our customers swiftly. 
Our distributors and 
consignee sales agents 
work in tandem with 
our sales and business 
development teams to 
provide timely and high-
quality service to our end 
customers (carpenters).

Revenue is 
generated 
through the sales 
of adhesives 
through a mix 
of Distributors 
and Consignee 
& Sales Agents 
(own branches) 
into the retail 
market.

JRA’s cost structure 
comprises of 
production costs—
raw materials, 
labour, energy and 
maintenance. Sales 
and marketing costs 
also constitute a 
major share of the 
cost structure.

Our Value Creation Model

H 16624 lakhs H 25,730 lakhs

2000 TPM

5%

5

40%

1

14

H 3,124.17  lakhs

500

7256 KL

H 85 lakhs

H 36.76  lakhs

60

H 1200 lakhs H 8,392 lakhs

H 53.2  lakhs

H 2508 lakhs

346343 Units

5

3.5 lakhs

ZERO H 6,712 lakhs

26.09%

32.62%

H 55.93

Net worth Total Revenue

Total Capacity

Diversity ratio

CSR beneficiaries

Renewable energy 

New Product introduced  
(in last 2 years)

States in India

Capex (in last 3 years)

Employee count

Water Consumption

Expenditure on 
R&D in last 3 years

Expenditure on CSR

Distributors 

Net Debt Total PAT

PAT margin

EBITDA margin

EPS

Equity Total EBITDA

113%

Superior margins 
and RoCE

with increased revenue, profits 
and market share.

High employee satisfaction 
with a skilled workforce

Uplifting the local communities 
through education and skill 
development, reducing the 
impact on environment and 
generating employment.

Promoting a circular economy 
through the 3 Rs - reuse, 
reduce, and recycle and 
minimizing waste.

In-house 
R&D team

New and innovative 
products developed 
consistently

5-year CAGR topline

Gross block

Employee benefit 
expense

Energy Consumption

Experienced R&D 
team members

Carpenters 

Inputs Outputs OutcomesProcess

Financial Financial

Manufacturing

Human

Social and Relationship

Natural 

Intellectual

Manufacturing

Human 

Natural 

Intellectual 

Social and Relationship

Key strategies 

Strengthening 
of balance sheet 
through liquidity 

enhancement and 
viability

Focusing more on 
digitalisation

Penetrate more into 
physical markets 

Accelerate sales 
velocity across 

India 

Maintaining 
moderate cost

Accelerate disruptive 
product launches

Enhancing customer 
convenience through 

widespread availability
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Our Competitive Strengths

In today’s dynamic and competitive marketplace, our unique 
competitive attributes have propelled us to the second position 
in an industry dominated by one large player and other 
smaller players. These competitive strengths serve as pillars of 
distinction, guiding us towards sustained growth.

Manufacturing 
Excellence

Expanded capacity

Growing market 
presence

Singular Focus

Wide Product 
Portfolio

Building Strong 
Supplier Relationships

Dynamic 
marketing 

Robust financials

manufacturing strategy, 
along with a streamlined 
approach, enhance our 
competitive advantages. 
With just 15-16% of revenues 
allocated to manpower 
costs and keeping 
selling and distribution 
expenses between 
12-14%%, we ensure 

maintaining profitability 
and competitiveness in 
the market. Furthermore, 
achieving a high asset 
turnover of 8x signifies 

resources.

In response to increasing 
demand and to bolster 
our market share, we have 
successfully scaled up 
our production capacity 
to 2000 tons per month 
(TPM) (24,000 tonnes per 
annum). Additionally, we 
are actively establishing 
a warehouse facility to 
optimize storage for raw 
materials and finished 
goods, enabling smooth 

supply chain management. 
These strategic measures 
will ensure our ability to 
meet market needs over the 

Our strong market presence 
across key states and 
extensive network has 
contributed significantly to 
our competitive advantage. 
We have a broad reach, 
operating in 14 states, with 
60 distributors in smaller 
cities and 35 branches 
in major metropolitan 
areas. This enables us to 

products and reach a 
wide customer base. We 
serve around 12,000 active 
retailers and collaborate 
with over 400 sales and 
business development 
executives. Additionally, 
we have established 
robust relationships with 
approximately 350,000 
registered carpenters, 
tapping into a vast network 
of skilled professionals in the 
industry. We are aiming to 
increase our width / reach 
and penetration in these 14 
states with an eye towards 
our targeted 20-25% CAGR 
over the next 3-5 years. We 
will continue evaluating new 
states as we go along over 
the next 3-5 years as well.

Our core business strength 
revolves around maintaining 
a singular focus on our 
white glue business. To 
further strengthen our 
position in the market, we 
are committed to investing 
in enhancing our capabilities 

expanding our reach in 
existing as well as new 
states. By doing so, we 
aim to develop innovative 

address the unmet needs 
of our valued customers. 
This strategic approach 
allows us to continually 
improve and expand our 

satisfaction and driving 
business growth.

Our product portfolio 
is diverse, catering to 

customer requirements. 
We provide a wide range 
of features including anti-
termite properties, water 
resistance, fast drying, 
extensive coverage, fungal 
resistance, heat resistance, 
weatherproofing, high fixing 
strength, and suitability for 
both cold and hot press 
applications. This diversified 
range of adhesives enables 
us to meet specific customer 
needs and enhance our 
market presence.

We prioritize establishing 
strong relationships with 
our vendors to optimize 
our material procurement 
processes. Our focus lies in 

while maintaining quality 
standards, being profitable 
and competitive in the 
market. Additionally, we 

sourcing, ensuring cost 

the value of our purchases.

Our marketing initiatives 
feature a highly rewarding 
carpenter loyalty program, 
setting industry standards. 
With state-wise programs 
and attractive incentives, 
we prioritize the loyalty 
and product usage of 
carpenters. Through our 
dedicated app, registered 

claim and redeem points 
based on their usage 
levels, thanks to our well-
structured slab systems. 
This program has garnered 
significant participation, 
with carpenters benefiting 
from the initiative. By 
strengthening relationships, 
fostering brand loyalty, and 
building a robust support 
network, these initiatives 
enhance our market 
position.

We are committed to 
maintaining a strong 
growth trajectory and 
achieving continuous 
expansion and success. 
With a focus on financial 
stability and flexibility, 
we have maintained 
a debt-free status 
and generated robust 
operating cash flows.
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DIVERSIFYING OUR
PRODUCT PORTFOLIO
INNOVATING TODAY,
RESILIENT TOMORROW.
At our company, we take pride in our diver product portfolio, carefully crafted to meet the diverse 
needs of our valued customers. From high-performance industrial adhesives for heavy-duty 
applications to specialized adhesives for materials and surfaces, we er a comprehensive 
range of solutions.

Our commitment to innovation and customer-centricity drives us to continuously expand and enhance 
our product erings, ensuring that we stay at the forefront of adhesive technology and provide 
tailored solutions for every requirement. With our diver product portfolio, we empower our 
customers to achieve superior bonding performance and e in their respective industries.

EURO
EXTREME 3

EURO
ULTRA 5IN1

EURO
XTRA

EURO
WP2IN1

EURO
EWR

EURO
2IN1

EURO
EXTREME3
HI-STRONG

EURO
PVC GLUE

21
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NEW PRODUCT LAUNCH

EXTREME 3 HI-STRONG
THREE BENEFITS
IN ONE

EWR D2+

EURO EWR

APPLICATIONS OF
OUR PRODUCTS

HOT PRESS
EXPERT

COLD PRESS
EXPERT

23
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VALUES THAT DRIVE EURO7000

Trust

TRUST PEOPLE TO BE
RELIABLE AND

RESPONSIBLE AND EARN
THEIR TRUST SIMILARLY.

our dealings as an organization

with the environment including

individual employees, vendors,

business partners, investors,

customers and society at large

would be in a premise of good

faith. we would trust others. we

would thereby not deal with

anybody who breaches our trust

or the trust placed on us by our

environment. we empower our

employees by placing trust in

them to take decisions in the

best interest of the organization

and as per promulgated norms.

Performance

WE VALUE PERFORMANCE
ACROSS PRODUCTS,

PEOPLE AND PROCESSES.

Performance is valued as the core
ingredient for sustain ability and
would therefore be the underlying
metric for selecting people,
products or processes for the 
organization. other values would
be additional to performance.
performance would mean.

Learning

Our organisation facilitates the

learning of our employees and

continuously transforms itself.

We also support formal learning

through structured programs to

empower people outperforming

their individual potential.

WE ENCOURAGE LEARNING,
CREATING AND NURTURING

TALENT

WE ARE QUICK TO DECIDE,
RESPOND AND EXECUTE

Speed and agility

We value decisions being made
without undue procrastination
a n d  b e i n g  i m p l e m e n t e d
within the shortest possible
time because we value this
as a source of competitive
advantage. Individuals will
therefore be held accountable
wherever any delays are
attributable to them either
in the decision making or
i m p l e m e n t at i o n  p ro ce s s .
Similarly we shall respond to
the market proactively rather
than reacting when situation
reaches a point where inaction
bec ordable.

WE ACHIEVE MORE BY
COLLABORATION WITH

ALL STAKEHOLDERS
- INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL

Given the inter linkage of
output of others with our
performance, we nurture a
sense of collective destiny with
our environment. Internally, if
a peer fails, the team cannot
succeed and individual success
means little in a failed team.
Also, our customers, partners
and investors need to succeed.
Therefore, organisational goals
precede departmental goals.
Also, dealers, distributors and
vendors are our partners.

Team work

delivering on commitment in every
parameter. it would also entail e ort
and a continuing endeavor to improve
the status quo in order to achieve
excellence.
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EURO 7000
A CONVICTION TO
BE BETTER THAN
YESTERDAY.
AND THE
FORESIGHT TO
BE BETTER FOR
TOMORROW.

26



JRAL RESINS
DIRECTION, PERFORMANCE
AND THE ROAD AHEAD

EMPOWER CUSTOMERS TO BUY CONVENIENTLY
- WHENEVER AND WHEREVER

ACCELERATE DISRUPTIVE PRODUCT LAUNCHES

MODERATE COSTS ACROSS THE BOARD

ACCELERATE SALES VELOCITY
ALL ACROSS INDIA

PENETRATE PHYSICAL MARKETS DEEPER

FOCUSING MORE ON DIGITALISATION

STRENGTHEN THE BALANCE SHEET;
ENHANCE LIQUIDITY AND VIABILITY

KEY STRATEGY

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
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THE EXCITING FACE OF EURO 7000
Mobile apps: In a world where most decisions are made on the 
basis of what consumers see on their smart phones, there is a 
premium on showcasing products and services on mobiles. In the 
last few years, Euro7000 launched a number of functional mobile 
apps across all categories (Adhesives, ooring and veneer) 
enhancing the speed and quality of decision making.

EURO7000
GRADUATING THE CONSUMER
EXPERIENCE TO A NEW LEVEL

The Company undertook a range of marketing initiatives to
excite consumers and sustain its growth with relevant and
contemporary products that translated into year-on-year
growth.

The Company launched a 
new catalogue in March 2021,
which received a t
response from trade partners.

New launch
The Company took an in-shop
branding drive at 5000+
retail counters, highlighting
the new collection.

In-shop branding
The Company conducted
a one-on-one presentation
with large institutions,
enhancing its commercial
revenues.

Personal touch

The Company trained
employees to deepen
engagements with carpenters,
contractors & architects etc.

Community
EngagementThe Company graduated from

general branding/ marketing
to a customised and focused
approach, enhancing impact.

Customised
The Company strengthened
product display, revamping
shop inshop presentation
across more than 2500
counters.

Focused

How we engageStakeholder interests Capitals impacted

Engage with dealers, architects,
designers and retailers
Open communication with
customers through commercial
discussions and meetings
Superior brand recall

Intellectual,
Manufactured

Audits of manufacturing sites by
regulatory authorities to ensure
Good Manufacturing Practice
(GMP) and regulatory compliance
Participation in industry bodies
Reports and interactions aimed
at c tive and
regulatory compliance policies
and processes
Involvement in government
programmes aimed at creating
jobs and uplifting disadvantaged
communities

Manufactured, Social &
Relationship, Natural

Human

Direct engagements by
supervisors and business
management
Conferences and town hall
meetings
Induction and internal training
Employee wellness campaigns

Social & relationship, Financial

Financial

Qualit ordability
Consistent, reliable and on-time
supply of product
Impact of quality or e
concerns that may arise

Legal and regulatory compliance
A ordable outcomes
Social and environmental impact
of operations
Tax revenues and investments

Job security
Equitable remuneration packages,
performance incentives and
bene tructures
Diversity and inclusivity
Performance management, skills
development and career planning
Reputation as an ethical employer
Employee health, safety and
wellness

Fair engagement terms and timely
settlement
Ongoing communication of
Greenlam’s expectations and
service levels provided
Fair selection processes

One-on-one meetings to discuss
service levels or other commercial
aspects
Interactions regarding safety,
health, environmental and ethical
compliance

Growth in revenue, EBIDTA and
returns on investment
Appropriate management of
capital expenditure, working capital
and expenses
Gearing, solvency and liquidity
Dividends
Security over assets, ethical
stewardship of investments and
good corporate governance
Fair executive remuneration

Dedicated investor and analyst
presentations and one-on-one
meetings
Stock exchange announcements,
media releases and published
results
Annual General Meetings
Engag
media
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Innovate and excelStrategic focus Cost advantage

Reinforced a culture
of innovation and
outperformance by
deploying dedicated
teams.

Invested in best-in-
class technology,
compared to
international
standards

Introduction of various
value-added products
with low market
penetration at the
moment

Key enablers

Material issues

Invested in

and upgrading

.

Managed costs by
negotiating mutually
bene erms
of trade as well as
investing proactively
in superior equipment,
capacity scale-up and
operational integration,
among others.

Largest Adhesives
manufacturing capacity
in Asia, providing
economies of scale

330 bps
Reduction in
carbon footprint

THE SECTOR’S
CRITICALITY AND EURO 7000
STRATEGY

VISION

Manufacture the best product
st time

Maximise “A” grade proportion
Minimize waste

Engage in informed sales
Enhance sales velocity
Sell more of the value-added
Empower buying from anywhere

Digitalise the corporation
Do more with less

erentiated products
Ensure quality, Health safety of environment

invest our of accruals

Moderate costs
Prepay debt

Net debt free

Moderate receivables

Minimize inventories
shrink the working capital cycle

Grow with nil interes w
To run your business to ensure
we achieve our stakeholders

oals.
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Addressing infrastructure
requirements
Investment in business
platforms for sustainable
scalabillity
Long-term relationships
with eco-system

Sustainability

Responsibility
Deep ESG compliant business model
Extensively de-risked approach;
established credibility
Low promoter remuneration as%
of revenues despite a high stake
increasing proporation of power
appetite addressed renewable
engergy

Net debt-free company as
on 31 march 2022
All capex to be founded out
of accruals
Debt-equity ratio of Workout
as on 31 March 2022

Financial discipline

Brand translating into superior
realisations and margins

Launches driven around
‘pakka jod hamesha’ tag line
for consumers

Disruptive product
launches

Manufacturing
discipline

Huge plant at Ahmedabad
Updated technologies;
low conversion costs

Target brand spending at
around 2% of revenue.

Recall reinforced by
consistent brand spending

Recall driven around Pakka
Jod Hamesha  

euro7000 brand among the
most respected in india

Brand vitality

Company focused on white glue
Focus resulting in capital allocation
discipline
2nd largest manufacturing
capacity in the sector

Singular focus

Focused on our main
product & white glue

Group pedigree

HOW WE
DELIVERED
ENHANCED

SHARE HOLDER
VALUE
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OUR STAKEHOLDER
VALUE-CREATION REPORT,
2023-24

There is a growing importance of the integrated value
creation Report as a communication discipline.
This integrated value-creation report overcomes the
shortcomings of the conventional communication
approach throught a comperhensive reporting
framework that blends and  initiatives“hard”  “soft”
into an integrate format.

integrated Reporting combines reporting strands
( nancial, management commentary,governance
and remuneration, and sustainability reporting)
into a whole that explains an organisation’s holistic
ability to enhance value. this new measure overcomes
the limitaions of the convertional approach with a more
compreshensive framework that captires a wider set of
initiatives and addresses a larget famliy of stakeholders.

The purpose of integrated Reporting is to explain to
providers is of capital how an organisation 
enhances value over time. The impact of the integrated 
report extends bey eport extends beyond

take holders - employees.
Customers, suppliers, business partners, local communities,
legislators, regulators and policy-makers-focused on an
organisation ability to enhance value across time.
Integrated Reporting highlights how green and ethical values drive
long -term growth. this shift from the to ta)“hard” ”soft”
helps appraise a company comprehensovely, addressing the need of the
investor fraternity/government agemcies.

OVERVIEW
JRAL’S Desired outcomes

HOW WE ENHANCED VALUE IN AN
INTEGATED, INCLUSIVE AND SUSTAINABLE
WAY FOR ALL OUR STAKEHOLERS

5 WAYS WE INTEND TO
ENHANCE SHARE HOLDER VALUE

Marketplace Reality : increased discounts-driven sales push
 Enhanced sales velocityOur Response :

Initiatives
 investment in sales force Automation *
 Digitalized and centrally cloud-stored approach*
 Mobile Application                                            *
 Enhanced data-driven approach |*
 Out performance evident in 2021-22*

Marketplace Reality : brand clutter; low memory recall
 Leveraging digital mediaOur Response :

Initiatives
 Promote on social and digital media*
 Enhanced promotional energy*
 Increased cost ectiveness *
 Enhanced organizational Visibility*
 More request carpenter’s & Dealers meetings & Conferences*
 More focused on dealers, distributors & carpenters reward point & schemes*

Marketplace Reality : Premium on small balance sheets
 Investment out of accrualsOur Response :

Initiatives
 Company net debt-free*
 Critical mass of fr ws*
 Henceforth all investments to be out of accruals*
 Accrual investments to drive pr owth*
 Investment in a new plant out of net worth*

Marketplace Reality : Competitive marketplace
 Stabillise EBITDAOur Response :

Initiatives
 Broadbase manufacturing foundation*
 Seek margins growth from within*
 incr e of value added products*
 Leverage economies of scale  (brand, assets, portfolio)*

Marketplace reality : c tion, pressure on margins
 Moderate costsOur response :

Initiatives
 O eased sales price.*
 Questioned every process and practice*

* Large cost reduction targeted Focus on
   remaining viable across market cycles

LARGER INVESTABLE
RESOURCES FROM

WITHIN

STRONGER CREDIT
RATING

ENHANCED
ORGANISATIONAL

VALUATION

SUPERIOR MARGINS
AND ROCE
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Environment

Vigil Mechanism

POSH policy

Code of Conduct

Governance

Saving resources, ensuring a 
healthy world

Social

Our commitment to sustainability aligns 
with the principles outlined by the United 
Nations, encompassing responsible 
manufacturing practices that promote 
environmental sustainability. 

We have taken proactive measures by 
investing in strategic sustainable initiatives, 
implementing stringent controls to monitor 
process deviations. We have also provided 
comprehensive training to all employees 
and maintains constant monitoring of its 
sustainability performance.

We actively encourage ethical conduct 
in all aspects of our business operations 
and have established a system where 
employees are encouraged to report 
any instances of illegal or unethical 
behaviour, potential fraud, or violations 
of the Company’s Codes of Conduct 
or Corporate Governance Policies. 
Under the Whistle Blower Policy, 
the confidentiality of those reporting 
violation(s) is protected and they are not 
subject to any discriminatory practices.

We are dedicated to establishing a 
harassment-free work environment, 
specifically one that has zero tolerance 
for sexual harassment, as outlined 
in our POSH (Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment) policy. We deeply value 
the dignity of all individuals within 
our workplace, including employees, 
suppliers, and customers. It is 
mandatory for all employees to uphold 
mutual respect and foster a positive 
environment where everyone is treated 
with dignity and regard.

The Code of Conduct serves as a 
guiding framework for the Board of 
Directors and Senior Management 
of our organization. Its purpose is to 
elevate ethical standards and ensure 
transparent processes in managing the 

principles, we aim to maintain the trust 
and confidence of our shareholders and 
cultivate a culture rooted in honesty 
and accountability.

We strongly believe in embracing 
the highest standards of corporate 
governance and the principles of 
corporate governance are deeply 
ingrained in the ethos of Jyoti Resins & 
Adhesives Limited (JRAL), serving as 
the foundation of our core values.

We are dedicated to producing durable 
products that promote sustainable 
resource usage over the long term. Our 
focus is on minimising the consumption 
of finite resources and safeguarding the 
environmental equilibrium of the region. 
While manufacturing wood-based 
products like white glue, we are aware 

process can pose risks to the ecosystem 
if untreated. To address this, we prioritise 
the implementation of advanced 
technologies in our manufacturing 

generation. Additionally, we adhere to 
strict waste disposal practices to ensure 
responsible and proper management of 
the waste produced.

Corporate Social Responsibility is 
integral to JRA’s business model. We 
play our part in uploading human 
rights, ensuring fair labour practices, 
and combating corruption. We have 
been involved in social welfare initiative 
for 3 years and believe in making an 
impact to create a just, equitable, 
humane and sustainable society. 
Our CSR initiatives are focused on 
education, healthcare, animal welfare 
and environmental sustainability.

In line with our commitment to 
community support, we actively engage 
in integrated development initiatives in 
the regions where our manufacturing 
plants are located. Our primary focus 
is on enhancing community welfare, 
fostering confidence, and cultivating 
stronger relationships. We prioritize 
women empowerment activities 

courses to enable self-employment 
opportunities. Additionally, we conduct 
training programs for marginalized youth, 
providing them with income generation 
prospects. We also contribute funding 
for computer training courses, job 
placements, and vocational training for 
individuals with disabilities. Through 

segments of the community and promote 
inclusive growth.

CSR Initiatives

3
Independent Directors on Board

ESG

Sustainability in action. 
Shaping the future.
We are committed to responsible and sustainable practices that drive 
positive impact. By integrating ESG principles into our operations and 
decision-making processes, we strive to create long-term value for our 
stakeholders, address global challenges, and shape a better future for 
generations to come.

Our Committees

Audit 
Committee

Nomination & 
Remuneration 

Committee

Stakeholder 
Relationship 
Committee
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NOTICE  
 

NOTICE is hereby given that 31st Annual General Me of Jy  Resins and Adhesives Limited 

will be held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 10.30 am.    through Video Conferencing / Other Audio 
Visual Means to transact the following businesses: - 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

 

Adop on of Financial Statements
 

 

1.
 

To receive, consider, and adopt:
 

 

a.
   

the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial
 

Year ended 
31st

 
March, 2024

 
together with reports

 
of the Board of Directors

 
&

 
Auditors thereon;

 
 

on of Dividend
 

 

2.

 

To declare a Final Dividend

 

of Rs. 9/-

 

(90%) per equity share of Rs. 10/-

 

each

 

for the Financial 
Year 2023-24.

 
 

Appointment of a Di e by rota on

 
 

3.

 

To appoint a Director in place of M r. Utkarsh Jagdishbhai Patel (DIN 02874427), who re res 
by rota on, and being

 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

 
 

Ra fica ppointment of Statutory Auditors

 
 

4.

 

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following r n with or without modifica on as 
Ordinary

 

R n: -

 
 

“RESOLVED THAT

 

pursuant to the provisions of ons 139, 142 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors Rules ), 
2014, including any statutory modifica (s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the being in 
force, M/s. R KABRA & CO.

 

LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI

 

Firm Registra on No. 
104502W/W100721)

 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a First term of 
five years from the conclusion of 30th

 

Annual General Mee ng held in 2023 to the conclusion 
of 35th

 

Annual General Mee of the Company to be held in 2028, subject to ra of 
their appointment by the Members at every intervening Annual General Mee ng, and that 
the appointment of M/s. R KABRA & CO LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI F irm Registra  
No. 104502W/ W100721) be and is hereby re-appointed on such remunera n

 

plus service 
tax, out-of-pocket expenses etc. as

 

may be decided by the Board of Directors in consulta n 
with the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

the Board of Directors of the Company (including its ee 
thereof) be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be 
considered necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolu on.”
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Basic Salary: Rs.5,00,000/- per month (with increments as the Board may decide from me 

Performance Bonus:

 

Up to 5% of the Net s of the Company (as per  198 of the 
Act) or such other quantum of the Net of the Company as may 
be approved by the Board of Directors at its discre for each nancial 
year.

 

Perquisites:

 

In addi on to the salary and performance bonus, the following perquisites

 

shall 
be allowed to Mrs. Jyo a Jagdishbhai Patel

 

–

 

Whole Time

 

Director and the total 
value of perquisites shall be restricted to an amount equal to the annual salary.

 
 

�

 

Leave Travel Assistance: For Self and Family in accordance with the Policy of the 
Company. Family means the spouse, the dependent children and dependent parents.

 

�

 

Club Fees: The Company shall pay and/or Reimburse Fees and expenses (excluding

 

Admission and Life Membership Fees) of maximum two clubs.

 

�

 

Mediclaim and Personal Accident Insurance Premium: The Company shall pay 
Mediclaim and Personal Accident Insurance Premium as per the rules of the Company.

 

�

 

Provident Fund: The Company shall make co to Provident Fund, 
Superannua on Fund or Annuity Fund (as per the rules of the Company) to the extent 
these either singly or put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act.

 

�

 

Gratuity: The Company shall pay gratuity at the rate not exceedi ng half a month’s 
salary for each completed year of service subject to maximum amount permissible 
under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 from me to me

 

�

 

Car: The Company shall provide a car with driver at the e re cost of the Company for 
personal use and ork. The Company shall bill use of car for private purposes.

 

�

 

Communica  F es: The Company shall provide communica on devices such as 
telephones, audio and video conference  etc., at the residence, at the e e 
cost of the Company. Personal long distance calls be billed by the Company.

 

�

 

Re ement: Mrs. Jy Jagdishbhai Patel

 

shall be liable to re e by rota on.

 
 

In case of inadequacy of Pr t /Loss during the period of appointment, the 
remunera  payable to Mrs. Jyo ka Jagdishbhai Patel

 

–

 

Whole Time

 

Director, shall 
be as per limit prescribed in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any 

5. Appointment of Ms. Jyotika Jagdishbhai Patel (DIN 07134331), as a Whole Time Director of the Com-
pany to consider and if thought �t to pass the following resolution with or without modi�cation as 
Special Resolution: -

"RESOLVED THAT
2013 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 

approved and acceptable to the appointee, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded 
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mod (s) or re-enactment(s) including circular and no issued by 
Ministry of Corpora s fr me. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT
 

the Board of Directors in their discre on be and is hereby 
authorized to increase, alter, and vary the Salary, Perquisites and Performance Bonus in 
such manner as the Board in absolute discre on deem t and acceptable to Mrs. Jyotika 
Jagdishbhai Patel

 

–
 

Whole Time Director subject to the provisions of on 197 and 198 
read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, including the Circular issued by Ministry 
of Corporate airs; vide dated 12 September 2018 to pay r emunera on 
exceeding the ceiling and any amendments ca t from me.

 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

 

in the event of any reenactment or on or re -
ca of the Companies Act, 2013 this Resolu on shall remain in force and the 

reference to various provisions of the Companies Act shall be deemed to be subs tuted by 
the corresponding provisions of the new act or amendments thereto or the Rules and 

 thereunder.

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the 
Company be and are hereby individually authorized to do all such acts, deeds, ma ers and 
things as in its absolute discre on, as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient 
and to se le any ques on, or doubt

 

that may arise in rela thereto and the Board of 
Directors shall have absolute powers to decide breakup of the remunera , restructure 
remunera  within the maximum permissible limit and in order to give e ect to this 
r  or as may be considered by it to be expedient in the best interest of the 
Company.

 

                                                                                       
          

    
                 
    

                                                
                                        

By Order of the Board          
JYOTI RESINS AND ADHESIVES LIMITED

 

         

TEJAL VARDE

 
         

Company Secretary

 
      

M.

 

No. FCS:

 

A63253

 
                                             

 
Registered    
Survey No. 873,  
Opp. Anand Healthcare,  
Ranchhodpura Road,    
Santej, Kalol, Gandhinagar,   
Gujarat, India, 382721  

  
Date: 31/08/2024                                     

        Place: Gandhinagar
Place: Gandhinagar
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Notes: 
 

Convening of AGM through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or any Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) 
 

1. In terms of General Circular No. 9/2023 dated 25th September, 2023 and other earlier 
circulars issued in this regard

 
by the Ministry of Corporate airs (“MCA

 
Circulars”)

 
and in 

compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) a nd the Securi and 
Exchange Board of India (Lis ng Obliga n s and Disclosure Requirement) Regula , 2015 
(“Lis g Regula ons”),

 
the 31st

 
Annual General Mee ng (AGM) of the Members of the 

Company will be held through VC/OAVM, so that members can a end and te in the 
AGM

 
from their respec e loca ons.

 
The deemed venue for the 31st

 
AGM shall be the 

Register ce of the Company.
 

 

   

Dispatch ce and Annual Report through electronic means
 

2.

 

In compliance with

 

the MCA Circulars

 

read with SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/ 7

 

dated 7th

 

October, 2023

 

and other earlier circulars issued in this regard

 

by the Secu es and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circulars”), N  of the AGM

 

along with the Annual Report 
2023-24

 

is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose name is 
recorded in the Register of Members / Register of Bene Owners as on

 

30th

 

August, 2024

 

and whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Registrar and Share Trans fer 
Agent

 

(“Link e India Private Limited” / “RTA ”)

 

or with the res e Depository 
P cipant(s) for communica on purposes to the Members,

 

unless any member has 
requested for a hard copy of the same.

  
 

3.

 

The N e can also be accessed at the Company’s website at

 

h s://euro7000.com/

 

and at 
the website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited

 

www.bseindia.com

  

and at

 

the website 
of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote

 

e- ng facility) at www.ev ngindia.com.

 
 

4.

 

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this N ce.

 
 

Proxy form

 
 

5.

 

In terms of the MCA Circulars, physical a endance of members has been dispensed with

 

and 
as such,

 

the facility to appoint proxy to a end and cast vote for the members is not available 
for this AGM. Hence,

 

the Proxy Form and dance Slip are not annexed to the

 

No ce.

 

However, Pursuant to Sec on 112 and S  113 of th e Companies Act, 2013, 
representa es of the President of India or the Governor of State or the Body Corporates are 
en tled to a end the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e -v ng.

 
 

Explanatory Statement and details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment

 
 

 

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets 
out details r ng to Special Business at the mee g, forms part of this .

 
 

7.

 

Details in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual 
General Mee ng, forms integral part of the N ce

 

as ‘Annexure to the No . The Directors 
have furnished the requisite declara s for their appointment

 

/

 

re-appointment.
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E-V  facility and joining of AGM through VC / OAVM 

 

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administr n) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regula  
44 of SEBI ng Obliga s & Disclosure Requirements) Regula ns 2015 (as amended), 
and the MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-v ng to its Members 
in respect of the business to be transacted at the 31st

 
AGM.
 

Shareholders are requested to 
refer Page No. 47 To 52

 
for detailed procedure for e- and cipa in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM. The detailed procedure for par a on in the mee through 
VC/OAVM is also available at the Company’s website h s://euro7000.com/.

 
 

9.
 

For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’) for facilita ng v ng through electronic means, as the 
authorized e- agency. The facility of cas votes by a member using rem ote e-vo ng 
as well as the e-vo g system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

 
 

10.

 

In view of MCA & SEBI

 

Circulars,

 

printed copy of the Annual Report (including No ce) is not 
being sent to the Members.

  
 

11.

 

AGM convened through VC/OAVM is in compl iance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA & SEBI Circulars as stated above.

 
 

12.

 

The vo ng period begins on 

  

at 9.00 a.m.

 

and ends on 
  

 During this period shareholders of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 
date Monday 23rd, September 2024

  

may

 

cast their vote electronically. The e -v ng module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for v therea

 
 

13.

 

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the mee g date would no t be e to 
vote at the mee ng venue.

 
 

14.

 

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and a  the 
scheduled e of the commencement of the Mee g by following the procedure 
men oned in the No ce. The facility of par a at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include 
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareh olding), Promoters, Ins nal 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Com ee, 
Nomina and Remunera on Commi ee and Stakeholders Rela onship ee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to a end the AGM without rest on on account of first 
come first served basis.

 
 

15.

 

The helpline number regarding any query / assistance for on in the AGM through 
VC/ OAVM is 022-23058542/43.

 
 

Cut-off Date

 

for Dividend & V ng

 
 

16.

 

The Company has designated Monday 23rd, September 2024

   

as “Record Date” to determine 
the lement of the shareholders to receive dividend for the year

 

2023-24.

 
 

17.

 

The vo ng rights of the members shall be in pr to their share in the paid up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the

 

cut-off date i.e.

 

Monday 23rd, September 2024.

   
 

43

Thursday 26th, September 2024
Sunday 29th, September 2024 at 5.00 p.m



 
 
Quorum 

 

18. Th

19. The Company has appointed Mr. Utkarsh Shah of M/s. Utkarsh Shah & Co., Practcing 
Company Secretary (Membership No.F12526, COP:26241) to act as the Scrutnizer for 
conduc�ng the remote e-vo�ng process as well as the e-vo�ng system on the date of the AGM, 
in a fair and transparent manner.

e a endance of Members a ending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning quorum under e Companies Act, 2013. 

 

zer for cond g E-V  
 

V ng Result 

20.
 

The v results shall be declared within two working days from the conclusion of the 
Mee The results declared along with the nizer’s Report will be placed on the 
website of the Company at h s://euro7000.com/

 
immediately a the result

 
is declared

 

by the Chairman or any other person authorised by the him in this regard and will 
simultaneously be sent to BSE Limited, where equity shares of the Company are listed.

  

Prevent Fraudulent Tra ons
 

21.

 

To prevent fraudulent tr ons, members are advised to exercise due diligence and 
y the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. 

Members are also advised

 

not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic 
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository P cipant and 
holdings should be verified.

 
 

22.

 

The Secur and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every cipant in securi market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their 
Depository Pa cipants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.

 
 

Ins  of Documents

 
 

23.

 

The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained 
under n 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or arrangements in 
which the Directors are interested under 189 of the Companies

 

Act, 2013 and all 
other documents referred to in the No ce will be available for i n in electronic mode 
by sending an e-mail to info@euro7000.com

    
 

Dividend

 
 

24.

 

The Board of Directors at its mee held on 28th

 

May,

 

2024, has recommended a Final 
Dividend of

 

Rs. 9 (90%)

 

per equity share of the face value of Rs. 10/-

 

each. The Final 
Dividend, if declared,

 

at the Annual General Mee ng, will be paid to those members of the 
Company, whose names appear in the Register of Members or Register of Beneficial 
Ownership as on Monday 23rd, September 2024

   

(“Record

 

Date”). The dividend will be paid 
within statutor me limit.

 
 

25.

 

SEBI has made it mandatory for all companies to use the bank account details furnished by 
Depositories and maintained by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for payment of 
Dividend to the Members electronically. In the absence of details for electronic payment or 
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in cases where electronic payments have failed/ rejected by the Bank, the Company would 
issue demand dra�s /dividend warrants/cheques and print the bank account details, as 
available, on instrument of payment of dividend. 

 

26. Members are requested to update the bank details including 11-digit IFSC code and 9 digit 
MICR code with the Depository Par�cipants (DP) to receive the amount of dividend quickly. 

 
 

Taxa�on of Dividend
 

 

27.
 

We would like to draw the a of members that the dividend er approval in the 
ensuing AGM will be paid to those shareholders who held shares in their demat account as on 
Monday 23rd, September 2024

  
 

 
(cut-off date for the purpose of dividend en nt). Many 

Brokers are not transferring the shares purchased by their client (shareholders) and 
parking their shares in pool account and these shares are falling under category “clearing 
member”. Shareholders are therefore advised to ask their brokers to transfer their shares 
purchased into their demat account in order to receive amount of dividend and credit of Tax 
Deducted at Source (TDS), if any,

 

into the account of members. If the shares are parked in 
their pool accounts as clearing member by the brokers of shareholders, the dividend will be 
paid to them.   

 
 

28.

 

Pursuant to the Income-tax Act, 1961, as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, dividends paid 
or distributed by a Company a�er 1st

 

April 2020 shall be taxable in the hands of the 
Shareholders. No tax will be deducted on payment of dividend to the resident individual 
shareholders if the amount of dividend payable does not exceed Rs. 5,000/-. Your Company 
shall therefore be required to deduct tax at source at the �me of making the payment of the 
said Dividend payable. The shareholders are requested to update their PAN with the 
Company / RTA Agent and depositories (in case of shares held in demat mode). However, no 
tax or reduced tax shall be deducted on the dividend payable by the company in cases the 
shareholder provides Form 15G (applicable to any Resident Individual other than a Company 
or a Firm) / Form 15H (applicable to a

 

Resident Individuals above the age of 60 years) / Form 
10F (applicable to Non-

 

Residents), provided that the eligibility condi�ons are being met. 
Needless to say, Permanent Account Number (PAN) is mandatory for category of Forms. To 
avail this benefit, shareholders need to provide respec�ve declara�on

 

/ document (form 15G

 

/15H/ 10F) at

 

the website of our RTA

 

Agent

 

or at below given link, on or before Monday 23rd,

  
 

 

h�ps://liiplweb.linkin�me.co.in/formsreg/submission-of-form-15g-15h.html

 
 

Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not registered, the tax will be 
deducted at a higher rate of 20%. Non-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates un der 
tax treaty between India and their country of residence, subject to providing necessary 
documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial Ownership Declara�on, Tax 
Residency Cer�ficate, Form 10F, any other document which may be required to ava il the tax 
treaty benefits by uploading respec�ve declara�on/documents as men�oned hereinabove.

 
 

Unclaimed dividends

 
 

29.

 

Members are requested to refer the details of unclaimed interim dividend of the Company as 
set out in the Report on Corporate Governance which is a part of this Annual Report and to 
approach our RTA Agent to claim their interim dividend. 
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September 2024.



 
 

30. Members are requested to note that dividends not encashed or claimed within Seven Years 
from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will be, transferred to 
the Investor Educa n and Fund (IEPF) as per on 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013. Further, the shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be 
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this, members/claimants 
are requested to claim their dividends from the Company within the s ulated meline.

 
The 

Members, whose unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the 
same by making an online applica on to the IEPF Authority in web Form No. IEPF-5 available 
on www.iepf.gov.in .  

 
 

Financial Inform equired
 

 

31.
 

Members desirous of obtaining any informa concerning the accounts and opera ons of 
the Company are requested to address their ques ons in g to the Company at least 10 
(Ten) days before the date of the Mee ng

 

from their registered e-mail address, me g 
their name, DPID and Client ID number/folio number and mobile number at the Company's 
investor desk at info@euro7000.com

 

so that the informa on required may be made 
available at the Mee ng.

 
 

32.

 

The Company is pleased to provide members, facility to exercise their right to vote at the 
31st

 

Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means through e- Services provided 
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

 
 

33.

 

The Recording/transcript of the AGM will be made available on the website of the Company 
www.euro7000.com

 

in the Inves n, as soon as possible a  the Mee ng is over.
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INTRUCTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL 
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER: 

 

Step 1 Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e- g system i  case of Individual    
Shareholders

 
 shares  demat mode. 

 
 

terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
 

o  e-
facility provided by Listed C ies, dividual shareholders ho g securi es demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat accou t d with Depositories d 
Depository P p ts. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-V  facility.

 
 

Pursua t to above said

 

SEBI Circular, Lo method for e- a  joi virtual mee gs for 
Individual shareholders holdin  secu in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL w:

 
 

Type of 
shareholders

 
thod

 

ividual 
Shareholders 
holdi g 

es  
Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository

 

1)

 

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, c  l  through 
their exis user id d password. Op

 

will be made available to 
reach e- g page without a further authe ca o . The users to 

 to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit CDSL

 

website 
www.cdslindia.com

 

click  ic ew System Myeasi Tab.

 
 

2)

 

er successful  the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 

                 

e- op for eligible compa ies where the evo is progress 
as per the  provided by com y. click the evo g 
op the user will be able to see e- g page of the e-  
service provider for cas g your vote du  the remote e-  
period or i g virtual mee v duri g the mee  
Addi ally, there is also ks provided to access the system of all e-

Service Providers, so that the user visit the e- service 
providers’ website directly.

 
 

3)

 

If the user is  registered for Easi

 

/

 

Easiest, op to register is 
available at CDSL

 

website www.cdslindia.com

 

click New 
System Myeasi Tab a h  c  registra op

 
 

4)

 

Alte a  the user c  directly access e-Vo  page by pro g Demat 
Acc Number PAN No. from a e-Vo k available o  

 

www.cdslindia.com

 

home page.

 
 

5)

 

The system will auth cate the user by OTP  registered 
Mobile Email as recorded the Demat Accou t.  successful 
aut user will be able to see the e- op where the 
ev is i  progress also able to directly access the system of all 
e- g Service Providers.
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Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 

es
 

in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository

 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: ps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Bene cial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 

n. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 
and Password. A successful authen ca you will be able to see 
e- services. Click on “Access to e- g” under e- services 
and you will be able to see e- ng page. Click on company name or e-

g service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-  
service provider website for cas ng your vote during the remote e-

g period or joining virtual mee g & v ng during the mee ng.

 
 

2)

 

If the user is not 

 

registered for IDeAS e-Services, op on to register is 
available at ps://eservices.nsdl.com.

 

Select “Register Online”

 

for

 

IDeAS

 

Portal or click at ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/Ideas 
DirectReg.jsp

 
 

3)

 

Visit the e-

 

website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: h ps://www.ev ng.nsdl.com/

 

either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e- ng system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ s on. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Veri ca  Code as shown on 
the screen. successful authen ca on, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e- page. Click on 
company name or e- service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e- service provider website for cas ng your vote 
during the remote e-V g period or joining virtual mee ng & v  
during the mee ng.

 
 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 

es  
demat 
mode)  
through their 

     

You can also login using the login creden als of your demat

 

account 
through your Depository Pa nt registered with NSDL/CDSL for e -

facility.   Successful login, you will be able to see e -  
op Once you click on e- g op , you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site a er successful authen , wherein 
you can see e- feature. Click on company name or e-  
service provider name and you will be redirected to e- g service 

in

login  
 

Depository 
Par
(DP)

 

provider website for cas g your vote during the remote e-V g 
period or joining virtual mee ng & vo ng during the mee ng. 

  
 

Important note:
 

Members who are unable to retrieve User ID
 

/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password op on available at abovemen oned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi es in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
     

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
es in Demat mode with CDSL

 Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.ev ng@cdslindia.com

 
or contact at toll 

free no. 1800 22 55 33
  

Individual Shareholders holding 
es in Demat mode with NSDL

 Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending

 
a request at 

ev ng@nsdl.co.in
 

or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

 
 

Step 2

 

: Access through CDSL e-V ng system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical 
mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

 
 

1)

 

The shareholders should log on to the e-vo ng website www.ev dia.com.

 
 

2)

 

Click on “Shareholders” module.

 
 

3)

 

Now enter your User ID 

 
 

a.

 

For CDSL: 16 digits bene y ID, 

 

b.

 

For NSDL:

 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

 

c.

 

Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 
the Company.

 
 

4)

 

Next enter the Image Ve  displayed and Click on Login.

 
 

5)

 

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.ev ngindia.com

 

and 
voted on an earlier e-v ny company, then your exis ng password is to be used. 

 
 

6)

 

If you

 

are a rst- r follow the steps given below:

 
 

 

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders 
holding shares in Demat.

 

PAN

 

Enter your 10

 

digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders)

 
 

 

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository P are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

 

Dividend 
Bank 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 
as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to 

 

Details 
 OR Date 
of Birth 
(DOB) 

login. 
 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 
details d.
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7. er entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

8. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selec n 
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in dem at form will now reach ‘Password 
Crea ’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the 
new password d. 

 
 

9.
 

Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for vo  for 
r s of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company 
opts for e-vo g through CDSL pla m. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password con den al.

 
 

10.
 

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-v ng on 
the resol ons contained in ce.

 

11.

 

Click on the EVSN of Jy esins and Adhesives Limited.

 
 

12.

 

On the v ng page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the sa me the 
op “YES/NO” for v Select the op YES or NO as desired. The op  YES implies 
that you assent to the Resolu n and op mplies that you dissent to the R on.

 
 

13.

 

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the en re Resol tails.

 
 

14.

 

er selec the resolu on, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
con on box will be displayed. If you wish to con your vote, click on “OK”, else to 
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modif y your vote.

 
 

15.

 

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the r on, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote.

 
 

 

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” op n on the 
page.

 
 

17.

 

If a demat account holder has forg en

 

the login password,

 

then Enter the User ID and the 
image v a  code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 
system.

 
 

18.

 

There is also an op al provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made 
available to s er for v .

 
 

19.

 

Facility for Non –

 

Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote V g 
only.

 
 

�

 

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians 
are required to log on to www.ev ngindia.com

 

and register themselves in the 
“Corporates” module.

 

�

 

A scanned copy of the Registra Form bearing the stamp and sign of the should 
be emailed to helpdesk.ev slindia.com.
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 er receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin 
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which 
they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automa & can be delink in 
case of any wrong mapping. 

 
It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolu on and Power of A orney 
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in

 

PDF format in the system for the scr er to verify the same.
 

 
Alterna vely Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant 
Board Resolu on/ Authority le er etc. together with a ested specimen signature of the 
duly authori d

 
signatory who are authori ed to vote, to the Scru ni er and to the 

Company at the email address 
 

info@euro7000.com
 

(designated email address by 
company) ,

 
if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-

v g system for the scru er to verify the same.
 

 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM

 

THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

 
 

1.

 

The procedure for a ending mee & e- ng on the day of the AGM

 

is same as

 

the 
instruc s men ned

 

above for e-vo ng.

 
 

2.

 

The link for VC/OAVM to a end mee will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed a  successful login as per the inst ons men oned above for e -vo ng.

 
  

3.

 

Shareholders who have voted

 

through Remote e- g will be eligible to a end the mee ng. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

 
 

4.

 

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Mee ng through Laptops / IPads for be er 
experience.

 
 

5.

 

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the mee ng.

 
 

6.

 

Please note that P cipants Conn g from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
conn ng via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctua  in their 
r ve network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Conn n to 

ate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

 
 

7.

 

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask ques ons during the mee ng may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least

 

7 (Seven)

 

days 
prior to mee ng

 

men oning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at

 

info@euro7000.com. 

 
 

 

The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their 
queries in advance

 

at least 7 (Seven)

 

days prior to m

 

men ning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries 
will be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

 
 

8.

 

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask ques ons during the mee ng.
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9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 

not casted their vote on the Resolu ns through remote e- and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e- g system available during the 
AGM. 

 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-vo g available during the AGM and 
if the same shareholders have not par cipated in the mee ng through VC/OAVM facility, 
then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e -v ng 
during the mee g is available only to the shareholders a ending the mee  

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

 
 

1.
 

For Physical shareholders-
 

please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder,

 
scanned copy of the share cer ate (front and back), PAN ( self-a ested

 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-a ested
 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
the Company/RTA email id.

 
 

2. 
 

For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respec ve 
Depository Par cipant (DP). 

 
 

3. 
 

For Individual Demat shareholders –
 

Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 
respe ve Depository P cipant (DP) which is mandatory while e-V ng & joining virtual 
me gs through Depository.

 
 

If you have any queries or issues regarding a end ing AGM & e- ng from the CDSL 
                   

e- 

All grievances connected with the facility for vo ng by electronic means may be addressed to: 

V ng System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800 22 55 33

 
 

 
 

Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A

 

Wing,

 

25th

 

Floor, 
Marathon Futurex,

 

Mafatlal Mill

 

Compounds, N

 

M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai -

 

400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

 

or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

 
 

NAME

 

CONTACT DETAILS

 
 

COMPANY

 
Jy Resins and Adhesives Limited 

 

1104-1112, Elite, Near Shapath Hexa, Opp. Kargil Petrol 
Pump, Near Sola Bridge, S. G. Highway, Ahmedabad –

 

380 
060

 

E-MAIL:-

 

info@euro7000.com

 
 

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER 
AGENT

 

(‘RTA AGENT’)

 
Link me India Private Limited C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. 
Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai -

 

400083.

 

Tel: +91 022 -

 

4918 6270, Fax: +91 22 4918 6060

 

E-MAIL:-

 

rnt.helpdesk@ o.in

 
 

E-VOTING AGENCY

 

Central Depository Services [India] Limited

 

E-MAIL:-

 

helpdesk.ev ng@cdslindia.com

 
 

SCRUTINIZER

 

Mr. Utkarsh Shah –

 

ing Company Secretary 

 

M/s. UTKARSH SHAH & CO.

 

 
E-MAIL – info@csutkarsh.com    
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

ITEM NO.5 
 

On the basis of recommenda n of Nomina and Remunera ee, the Board of 
Directors at its mee ng held on 30th

 
August, 2024

 
has approved appointment of Mrs. Jy a 

Patel, Whole Time Director
 

from 31st
 

August, 2024
 

to 30th
 

August, 2029
 

for a period of five years 
as men ned in the Resolu on.

 
 

Your Directors recommend the resolu on No.5 as a Special Resolu on for your approval.
 

 

None of the Directors except Mr. Jagdishbhai Patel and Mr. Utkarsh
 

Patel, Directors
 

of the 
Company are concerned or interested in the proposed.

 
 

By Order of the Board                   
                                                                                       

JYOTI RESINS AND ADHESIVES LIMITED

 

Registered Office:

             

Survey No. 873, 

 

Opp. Anand Healthcare, 

 

Ranchhodpura Road, 

                

TEJAL VARDE

 

Santej, Kalol, Gandhinagar,

                            

Company Secretary

 

Gujarat, India, 382721

                

M.

 

No.:

 

A63253

 
                                                                                               

Date: 31/08/2024

                                                                                
           
  
 
Place: Gandhinagar
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 
 

Item No. 3 & 5 
 

Details of Directors seeking appointment / reappointment at the 31st Annual General Mee ng in 
pursuance of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regula on  (3) of SEBI 
Obliga ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula ons, 2015.

 
 

     

DIN No. 
 

07134331
 

02874427
 

Age
 

 Years
 

42 years
 

Designa on 
 

Whole Time Director
 

Managing Director
 

Re-Appointment 
 

For 5 years
 

Re e by rota
 

a
 

B.Com.
 

Master Degree
 

Experience

 

More than 20 years

 

More than 20 years

 

Exper se

 

Administra ve and Human Resource

 

Sales and overall 
Management of the Company

 

Last 
R  

 
Lakhs (p.a)

 

Rs.

 

348 Lakhs (p.a)

 

Shareholding 

 

12,97,452

 

12 345

 

R ship with 
other directors 
and KMP

 Wife

 

of Mr. Jagdishbhai Patel, Whole 
Time Director and Mother of Mr. 
Utkarsh Patel, Managing Director.

 Son of Mr. Jagdishbhai Patel and 
Mrs. Jy a Patel.

 

Member/ 
Chairperson of 
c ees of the 
Company

 
Nil

 

Risk Management C ee –

 

Member

 
 

Directorships

 

held 
in other public 
companies

 
Nil

 

Nil

 

Membership of 
c ees held 
in other Indian 
companies

 Nil

 

Nil

 

Chairpersonship 
of commi ees 
held in other 
Indian companies

 Nil

 

Nil

 

Full Name Mrs. JYOTIKA PATEL Mr. Utkarsh Patel
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Directors' Report 
To, 
Dear Shareholders, 

 Your Directors have pleasure in pr g 31st Annual Report together with the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year (FY) ended on 31st March, 2024. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS:                                         
                                                                                                                                            

 

Revenue from Opera s 
Other Income  
Total Revenue

 

Profit Before Finance Cost, Tax, Dep on & 
Amor za on

 

Finance Cost
 

Deprecia on
 

Profit Before Tax
 

Payment &  Provision of  Current Tax 
 

Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income)
 

Profit  A er Tax
 

 
 

 
  

 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

 
 

i) Revenue
During the year under review, the company has maintained its revenues constantly in 
this year as well and an efficient internal management has resulted into reduc on of 
costs and increased profits in this year.

 

As a result, total revenue from opera
stood at Rs.26,412

 

Lakh as against Rs.

 

26,352

 

Lakh

 

for the F. Y. ended 31.03.202 4.

 

  
 

  

 

EBITDA for the year under review stood at Rs. 9,074 Lakh as against Rs. 6,290 Lakh for 
the F. Y. ended 31.03.202 4.

  
ii)

 

Earnings Before Interest, Tax Depr n & Am a on (EBITDA)
 

   
   iii)

 
 

Profit Before Tax (PBT)
PBT stood at Rs. 8,960 Lakh as against Rs. 6,141 Lakh for the F. Y. ended 31.03.202 4. 

 
 
 

iv) Change in Nature of Business, if any
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

 
   

25,730.00
 

682.00
 

26,412.00
 

9,074.00
 

5.00
 

109.00
 

8,960.00
 

2,234.00
 

14.00
 

6,712.00
 

 

Year Ended on
31st March, 2024

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
 

26,125.00

Year Ended on
31st March, 2023
 
 

226.00
 

26,352.00
 

6,290.00
 

3.00
 

145.00
 

6,141.00
 

1,493.00
 

4.00
 

4,644.00
 

        
PARTICULARS

 
 

 
 

DIVIDEND:

  
Final Dividend

 

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a Final dividend of Rs.9.00/-

 

(90.00%) per 
Equity Share of Rs.10/-

 

each

 

fully paid on

 

1,20,00,000

 

equity shares

 

of the Company, subject

 

to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing

 

Annual General Mee ng of the Company.

 

The Final dividend, if

 

recommended, shall

 

be paid to the members

 

on or a er 30th

 

September, 2024

 

whose

 

name appears

 

in the Register of Members, as on the

 

Record date 
i.e. Monday 23 rd, September 2024.

  
 

The dividend distribu on policy, in terms of regula on 43A of the Lis ng

 

Regula ons,

 

is 
available on the website of the Company at h ps://euro7000.com/investor-rela ons.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY:  
 Other than as stated elsewhere in this report, there were no material changes and 
commitments a the nancial posi of the Company,

 
which occurred between the 

end of the ancial year to which this nancial statement relates on the date of this Annual 
Report. 

 
 

AMOUNT TO BE TRANSFERRED

 

TO RESERVES:

  
 

During the nancial year, no amount was proposed to transfer to the Reserves

 

account.

 
 

DEPOSITS:
 

 

During the financial year, your Company has not accepted any amount as Public Deposits 
within the meaning of provisions of Chapter V –

 

Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

 
 

 
 

  
 

FINANCE:
To meet the funds requirement of working / opera onal your Company has lized the 
internal accruals of the funds.

 

CREDIT RATING:

 
 

The provisions rela ng to Credit Ra ng does not apply to the Company.

 
 

 
 

 
DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 
During the year under review, the Company does not have any Material Subsidiary or any 
associates as s pulated under the Act.

 

As required under Regula ons 16(1)(c) and 46 of the Lis ng Regula ons, the Board of 
Directors have approved the Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries. The details of the 
Policy are available on the Company’s website at ps://euro7000.com/investor -rela ons.  
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

  

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of on 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

 
 

MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS:
   

There were
 

no mergers/acqu ons during the year.
  

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

   

i)

 

Directors to re e

 

by Rota on:

  

In accordance with the provisions of Sec on 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
cles of Associa on of your Company, Mr. Utkarsh Jagdishbhai Patel (DIN 

02874427)

 

re res by rota  at the ensuing Annual General Mee ng and being 
eligible have

 

ered themselves

 

for re-appointment.

  

The details as required under the provisions of the Companies Act and Lis  
Regula ons are provided in the ce convening the ensuing Annual General 
Mee
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ii) on by Independent Directors:
The Company has received declara s from all the Independent Directors of the 
Company con ming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under 
the provisions of S on 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedules & 
Rules issued thereunder as well as Regula n 1  the Lis egula ons. 

  

The Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors 
prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act.

  

iii)

 

Key Managerial Personnel

 

(KMP):

  

Pursuant to S on 2 (51) and S ies Act, 2013 read with Rules 
framed there under,

 

the following exec ves

 

have been designated as Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) of the Company.

 
 

1.

 

Mr. JAGDISH NATHALAL PATEL

  

-

 

Chairman 

 

2.

 

Mr. UTKARSH JAGDISHBHAI PATEL

   

-

 

Managing

 

Director

  

3.

 

Mr. TEJAL MAHESHKUMAR VARDE

  

-

 

Company Secretary

 

4.

 

Mr. ASHOK CHINUBHAI JARDOSH

  

-

 

Chief Finance O cer

 

 

resigned w.e.f. 25.09.2023 and Ms. Tejal Maheshkumar Varde appointed as a Company
 
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:   

During the year, Five Board mee gs were convened and held on 17.05.2023, 27.07.2023, 

.2023, 30.10.2023 & 05.02.2024 resp ely, in respect of which mee ngs proper 
ces were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed.

 
 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
 

In pursuance of n 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made there 
under, including any enactment or re-enactment thereon, the Directors hereby con m 
that:

 

a)

 

In the prepara on of the Annual Accounts for the year ended on 31 st

 

March, 2024, the 
applicable g standards had been followed along with proper explana n 
rela  departures;

 

b)

 

The Directors had selected such accoun ng policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of a airs of the Company at 31 st

 

March, 2024

 

and of the Profit of 
the Company for the period ended on 31st

 

March, 2024.

 

c)

 

The Directors had taken proper and su cient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accou records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven ng and detec ng fraud and 
other irregulari

 

d)

 

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

e)

 

The Directors had laid down Internal Financial Controls (‘IFC’) and that such Internal 
Financial Controls are adequate and were opera ec vely.

 

f)

 

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and opera e ely.
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FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company has conducted familiariza on programme for Independent Directors during 
the year. The details of the same are given in the Corporate Governance Report and also 
posted on the website of the Company at h ps://euro7000.com/investor-rela ons.  

 

BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Regula 17 of Lis ng Regula ons, the Board has 
carried out the annual performance evalua of its own performance and that of its 
statutory commi ee’s Viz.,

 

Audit Com Stakeholder Rela onship ee, 
Nomina and Remunera Commi ee, Corporate Social Responsibility ee and 
Risk Management Comm ee and also

 

of the individual Directors. 

 

A structured e was prepared a taking into considera on inputs received 
from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s ning such as adequacy of 
the of the Board and its Com ees, Board culture, ex  and 
performance of speci d es, obliga ons and governance.

 

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of Directors on parameters 
such as level of engagement and contribu n, independence of judgment safeguarding the 
interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The en re Board carried out the 
performance evalua on of the Independent Directors and also reviewed the performance of 
the Secretarial Department. 

As required under the provisions of the Act and the Lis g Regula ons, a separate mee ng 
of the Independent Directors of the Company was held to evaluate the performance of the 
Chairman, Non-

 
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and also to assess the 

quality, quan ty and meliness of of info on between the management of the 
Company and the Board. 

 

The Directors expressed their sa sf n with the evalua n process.
 

 
 

REMUNERATION POLICY:
The Board has,

 

on the recom on of the Nomina n & Remunera on ee,

 

framed a policy for sele  and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their 
remunera . A brief detail of the policy is given in the Corporate Governance Report and

 

posted on the website of the Company

 

at

 

h ps://euro7000.com/investor-rela ons.

 
 

Non-Ex ve Directors are paid si ng fees for a ending each mee g of the Board 
and/or Commi ee of the Board,

 

approved by the Board of Directors within the overall 
ceilings

 

prescribed under the Act

 

and Rules framed thereunder.

 
 

All the Execu ve Directors (i.e. Chairman/Managing Director/Whole- me Director) are paid 
remunera  as mutually agreed between the Company and the Ex ve Directors within 
the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
 

 
   

 

In determining the remunera of the Senior Management Employees, the No n 
and Remunera  Comm ee ensures / considers the following:

 

  

The remunera n is divided into two components viz. xed component comprising 
salaries, perquisites and re ement bene and a variable component comprising 
performance bonus;
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COMMITTEES:
The composi of com ees tuted by Board a g with ch es, if , forms part 
of the Corporate Gov ce Report, which forms part of this A ual report.

The a al i creme perform is decided based 
 the cality of the roles a resp sibil es, the C ’s perfor ce vis -à-vis 

the a ual budget achievem t, dividual’s performa ce vis -à-vis Key Result Areas 
(KRAs) / Key perfor ce dicators (KPIs), dustry chmark d curre

sa he market.

 
 

 

 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Compa has c s tuted  Audit ee terms of the requir ts of the Act 

 Regula 18 of the Lis Regula s. The details of the same are disclosed i  the 
Corporate Gove eport.

 
 

 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 

The Compa has c s tuted a Risk M Com ee i terms of the requireme ts 
of Regula  21 of the Lis g Regula The details of the same are disclosed the 
Corporate Gove eport.

 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:
 

As per

 

the provis of S 135 read with Schedule VII of the Act, 2013  
the Comp (Corporate Social Respo sibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Compa has 

tuted Corporate Social Respo ty (CSR) ee d formulated Corporate 
Social R ility Policy (CSR Policy). The c o of CSR ee is giv i  the 
Corporate Gove eport.

 
 

The Compa has projects accor e with Schedule VII of the Com ies Act, 
2013, such as eradica of poverty, wom empo werme ,

 
educa , health care d 

such other projects.

 

The Report CSR for the FY 2023-24

 

is

 

xed to 
this report as ‘Annexure -

 

A’

 
 

AUDITORS

 

AND AUDITORS’ REPORT:

 
 

Statutory Auditors:

 

M/s. R Kabra & Co. LLP, Chartered (ICAI Firm Registra o No. 
104502W/W100721)

 

were re- ted as Statutory Auditors for the Sec d Term to hold 
ce ll the clusio  of 35th

 

AGM to be held 2027, subject to r  of their 
appoi tm at every al G eral Mee g. 

 
 

M/s.

 

R Kabra & Co. LLP

 

have c rmed their eligibility a qu ca required r 
 139, 141 other applicable provisio of the Compa ies Act, 2013 rules 

made ther er g statutory a (s) or re- actm (s) thereof for the 
orce).

  

The Notes to the F cial Sta  referred  the Auditors’ Report are self-e tory. 

 
 

 
 

   
 

There are quali s or reserva s, or adverse remarks made by Statutory Auditors 
of the a d therefore do ot call for c ts u der S  134 of the Act. 
The Auditors’ Report is a ached with the F cial Sta  this ual Report.    
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Secretarial Auditors:
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remunera of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, your 
Company had engaged the services of M/s Utkarsh Shah & Co., a proprietor firm of 
Company Secretaries in Pr to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2024. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR - 3 for 
the financial year ended 31st

 

March, 2024

 

is annexed to

 

this report as ‘Annexure -

 

B’.

 
 

Internal Auditor:

 

M/s. VMAN and Associates Chartered Accountants was appointed as its Internal Auditors for 
Financial Year 2023-24

 

to carry out the periodic audit as per the Scope Work. 

 
 

Frauds Reported by Auditors 
During the year under review, no instance of fraud in the Company was reported by the 
Auditors. 
 

As required under Regula 23 of the Lis  Regula s, the Company has framed

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPT):

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL
 

SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
 

The Company has in its place adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Financial Statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material 
weakness in the design or opera on of Internal Financial Control System was observed. 

 
 

For all amendments to Accou ng Standards and the new standards no , the Company 
carries out a detailed analysis and presents the impact on accoun ng policies, financial 
results including revised disclosures to the Audit ee. The approach and changes in 
policies are also validated by the Statutory Auditors.

 
 

Further, the Audit Com ee periodically reviewed

 

the Internal Audit Reports sub ed by 
the Internal Auditors. Internal Audit observa ons and corrective taken by the 
Management were

 

presented to the Audit Com ee. The status of implementa on of the 
r were

 

reviewed by the Audit C ee on a regular basis and concerns if 
any

 

were

 

reported to the Board. 

 
 

As per the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors have 
expressed their views on the adequacy of Internal Financial Control in their Audit Report.

 
   

All Related Party Transac ons entered during the financial year were on an Arm’s Length 
Basis and were in the ordinary course of business. The Company has not entered in to 
materially related party transac i.e., exceeding 10%

 

or more

 

of the turnover of the 
Company with related which may have a pote al conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large. Hence, no tra e required to be reported in Form AOC -2.

 
 

 
   

 

a 
Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transac and on dealing with Related Party 
Tran ns which is available on the website of the Company at 

ps://euro7000.com/investor -rela ons.
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:
The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism-cum-Whistle Blower Policy (“Policy”) as per 
the requirements of 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula on 22 of the LODR 
requirements. The Policy is applicable to all Directors and Employees of the Company. The 
Policy is to deal with instance of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or viola
of Company’s code of conduct, if any. The said Policy is available on the website of the 
Company at ps://euro7000.com/investor-rela ons.

 

 
 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE: 

As per the requirement of the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Preven on, Prohibi  & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, your 
Company has cons tuted Internal Complaint C ee (ICC) as per requirement of the Act 
which is responsible for redressal of complaints rela to sexual harassment against 
woman at workplace. The Sexual Harassment of Women Policy formed is available on the 
website of the Company at h ps://euro7000.com/investor-rela ons.

 

During the year, no complaint was lodged with the ICC nor any such instance was reported 
and the management was

 

happy to take the same on record.
 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
 

Details of remu n of Directors, KMPs and employees as per Se  197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are annexed to this report

 

as 
‘Annexure –

 

C’.

 

However, as per the provisions of Sec on 136 of the C ompanies Act, 2013, 
the Annual Report is being sent to the Members and others en tled thereto, excluding the 
informa on employees’ remunera on par culars as required under Rule 5 (2) & (3) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remunera n of Managerial

 

Personnel) Rules, 2014.

 

The 
disclosure is available for ins on by the Members at the Registered ce of your 
Company during business hours on all working days (except Saturday) of the Company up to 
the date of the ensuing AGM. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy thereof, may 
write to the Company Secretary of the Company.

 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO:

 

The informa on pertaining to Conserva n of Energy, Technology Absorp Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required under n 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report 
as ‘Annexure -

 

D’.

 
 

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE AUTHORITY:

 

No sign nt or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future o s.

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
The Report on Corporate Governance for FY 2024, as per Regula n 34(3) read with 
Schedule V of the Lis ng Regula ons along with the Cer cate from Pr Company 
Secretary con rming the compliance with the con s of Corporate Governance forms 
part of this Annual Report.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

 

As per Clause 34(2)(e) of the Lis Regula ns, a

 

detailed report on the Management 
Discussion

 

and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report.
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ANNUAL RETURN: 
Pursuant to S 92(3) read with S 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, the Annual 
Return as on 31st March, 2024 of the Company is available on Company’s website and can 
be accessed, at ps://euro7000.com/investor-rela ons.

 
 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT:
 

As per Regula 34 of the Lis g Regula ons, the Business Responsibility and 
Sustainability Report as a separate s on to this Annual Report.

 
 

INSURANCE:

  

The Company’s Plant, Property, Equipment and Stocks are adequately insured under the 
Industrial All Risk (IAR) Policy. The Company has insurance coverage for Product

 

Liability and 
Public Liability Policy and Commercial General Liability (CGL). It also maintains various other 
types of insurance, such as Ere n All Risk for its major capital expenditures projects, 
Directors’ and O cers’ liability, Transit cover, Charterers’ liability cover, Marine policy

 

and 
Employee Bene t Insurance policies. The Company covers the proper es on full sum insured 
basis on replacement value. The scope of coverage, insurance premiums, policy limits and 
deduc bles are in line with the

 

size of the Company and its nature of business.

 
 

ENVIRONMENT:

 

As a responsible corporate n and as a Chemicals

 

manufacturer environmental safety 
has been one of the key concerns of the Company. It is the constant endeavor of the 
Company to strive for compliant of s te ntrol norms.

 
 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

 

The rela onship with the workmen and sta  remained cordial and harmonious during the 
year and management received full coopera om employees.

 
 

DETAILS OF NODAL OFFICER

 

In accordance with Rule 7(2A) of Investor Educa  and Prot on Fund Authority 
(Accou g, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 20 the detail of Nodal cer of the 
Company, for the purpose of coordina on with Investor Educa  and Prot on Fund 
(IEPF) Authority is as under: 

 
 

Name:  

 

Ms.

 

TEJAL VARDE

  

Designa

 

Company Secretary and Compliance O cer

   

Postal Address: 

 

1104-1112 Ellite, Nr.

 

Shapath Hexa,

 

Opp Kargil Petrol Pump,

 

Near Sola Over Bridge S G Highway,

 

Ahmedabad,

 

3800  

 

Telephone No.: 

 

+91 79 

 

E-mail ID: 

 

info@euro7000.com

   
 

The Company has also displayed the above details of Nodal cer at its Website at 
h s://euro7000.com/.
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OTHER DISCLOSURES AND INFORMATION:  
 

(A) Secretarial Standards:  

During the year under review, the Company is in Compliance with the Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Ins  Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) on Mee ngs of 
the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Mee gs (SS-2). 

 
 

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Ins e of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government 
under Sec  the Act.

 
 

(B)

 

Annual Lis ee:

 

The Company has paid of lis ng with BSE Limited.

 
 

(C)

 

No One Tim lement:

 

There was no instance of one- lement with any Bank or Financial Ins u on.

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

 

Your Directors thank the various Central and State Government Departments, Organiza  
and Agencies for the con  help and co-opera on extended by them. The Directors also 
gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. Customers, Members, Dealers, 
Vendors, Banks and other business partners for the excellent support received from the m 
during the year. The Directors place on record uns nted commitment and con nued 
contri of the Employee to the Company.

      
        

                                                                                      

For

 

and on behalf of the Board

 

JYOTI RESINS AND ADHESIVES LIMITED

                                 
 
 

                     

Jagdish Nathalal Patel

 

Chairman & Whole Time Director

 

(DIN -

  

00304924)

 
               

Date:

  

31.08.2024

                                       

Place: Gandhinagar        
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ANNEXURE - A  

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

[Pursuant to Sec (3)(o) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

 
   

 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a commitment by the Company to integrate its 
economic growth with environmental care and social well-being. With this philosophy, the 
CSR policy has been formulated to undertake

 

sustainable development by way of 
skill

 

enhancement, sustainable environment, women empowerment, pr of gender 
equality

 

/

 

preven e health care

 

/

 

sanita

 

/

 

educa n,

 

etc.

  
 

2.

 

Compo CSR Commi ee:

 
 
 

  
 

  

 

3.

 

Provide the web-link where Com on of CSR Commi ee, CSR Policy 
and CSR Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of 
the Company: www.euro7000.com

  
 
 

Sr. 
No

Name of Director Design / Nature of 
Directorship

.No of Mee ngs 
of CSR 

Commi ee held 
during the year

 
No. of Mee ngs 

of CSR 
Comm ee 

a ended during 
the year

 

1

 

Mr. Sandeep Shah

 

Member -

 

Independent 
Non-Execu ector

 

2

 

2

 

2

 

Mr. Parshwa Shah

 

Chairman -

 

Independent, 
Non-Execu ector

 

2

 

2

 

3

 

Ms. Priyanka Gola

 

Member -

 

Independent 
Non-Execu ector

 

2

 

2

 

  
 

 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in 
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable:  

Not applicable.
  

5.
 

(a)
  

Average net pro of the Company as per Se n 135(5): 
 

Rs. 3468.11/-
  

Lakh
  

(b)
  

Two percent of average net pr
 

of the Company as per Se on 135(5): 
                       

Rs.69.36Lakh

  

(c) 

 

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or v s of the previous ancial 
years: Rs.0.92

 

Lakhs

   

(d) 

 

Amount required to be set o or the cial year, if any: Rs.0.92 Lakhs

  

(e)

 

Total CSR obliga n for the  year (b

 

+

 

c

 

-

 

d):  Rs.68.44 Lakh

  

6.

 

(a) 

 

Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other then Ongoing Project):

 

Rs.71.25

 

Lakh

 
 

(b) 

 

Amount spent in Administra e Overheads: Nil

  

(c) 

 

Amount spent in Impact Assessment, if applicable:  Nil

  

(d)  

 

Total amount spent for F.Y. 202 3-24

 

(a + b + c): Rs.71.25

 

Lakh

  

(e)

 

CSR amount spent or unspent for the F.Y. 2023-2024
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(f)  Excess amount for set off, if any : 

  
 

  
 

(i)
 

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per 
Section 135(5)

 69.36
 

(ii)

 

Total amount spent for the F.Y. 2023-2024

 

71.25

 

(iii)

 

Excess amount spent for the F. Y. 2023-2024

 

[(ii)-(i)]

 

1.89

 

(iv)

 

Surplus

 

arising out of CSR projects or programmes or activities 
of the previous F.Y. 2022-23

 
0.92

 

(v)

 

Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years 
[(iii)-(iv)

 

2.81

 

 
                                             

7. Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three Financial Year:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

  

Amount Date of 
Transfer

Nil

 
 

 
 

Jagdish N. Patel Sandeep M. Shah
Chairman & Director                                    Chairman CSR Committee
(DIN: 00304924) (DIN: 01850151)

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the F. Y. 2022 -2023: 

  
 
 

                 
9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average 

net profit as per Section 135(5): N.A.

                 
                     

Amount
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

Particulars

Sr. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s) t

S

Amount 
transferred 
To Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under 
section 135 

(6)

 

Balance 
Amount in 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under 
section 
135 (6)

 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
Reporting 
financial 

Year

 

S

Amount transferred 
to any fund 

specified under 
Schedule VII as per 

ection 135(6), if 
any

 

F
Y

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

inancial 
ears 

 

Deficiency, 
if any.

      
 

  

 
 

 
                                            (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

 

- - - - - - 
 

Total amount 
spent for F.Y. 
2023-24

 

Amount Unspent 
Total amount 
transferred to unspent 
CSR account as per 
Section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second provision to section 135(5)

 

Amount Date of 
transfer Name of Fund Amount Date of 

transfer
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ANNEXURE - B 
 

FORM NO. MR-3  
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2024  

[Pursuant to s 04(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
 

Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Re  Personnel) Rules, 2014]
 

 

To,
 

The Members,
 

 

To,
 

JYOTI RESINS AND ADHESIVES LIMITED
 

Survey No.873, Opp. Anand Healthcare,

 

Ranchhodpura Road,

 

Santej, Kalol,

 

Gandhinagar –

 

382 721

 
 

Dear Sirs, 

 
 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the

 

adherence to good corporate practices of JYOTI RESINS AND ADHESIVES

 

LIMITED

 

(CIN L24229GJ1993PLC020879)

 

(hereinafter called the Company). The Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

 

It is further stated that 
we have also relied up on the scanned documents and other papers in digital/ electronic 
mode, explanation and representations made/ sub to me by the official of the Company 
for

 

the

 

financial year ended on 31st

 

March, 2024.

  
 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided in 
digital/ electronic mode

 

by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st

 

March, 2024

 

(“Audit 
Period”),

 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

 
 
 

I have examined the books, papers, minu te books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st

 

March, 2024

 

according to the provisions of:
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mited



 
1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under; 
 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under 
 

3.
 

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed there under;
   

 

4.
 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there 
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings;

 
 

5.

 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

 
 

a) The Securties and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquistion of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time;

  

 

b)

 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time; 2009;

 

c)

 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2009;

  
 

d)

 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021;

 

(Not Applicable during the Audit Period);

 
 

e)

   

Securities and Exchange

 

Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations 2021;

 

(Not Applicable during the Audit Period);

  
 

f)

         

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regardin g the Companies Act and dealing with 
client

 

2009;

 
 

g)

 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 ; 
(Not Applicable during the Audit Period); and

 
 

h)

  

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulat ions, 2018;

 

(Not Applicable during the Audit Period);

 
 

6.

 

The other laws, as informed and certified by the Management of the Company, which 
are specifically applicable to the Company based on the industry

 

are

 

as listed in

 

Annexure –

 

I and

 

I report that based

 

on the

 

examination of the relevant documents 
and records, and as certified by the Management,

 

prime facie it appears

 

that the proper 
system exist in the Company to confirm compliance of the applicable laws. 
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I have also examined compliance with the appl icable clauses of the followings:  

 

i.      The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges.  
 

ii.
     

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

  
 

iii.
 

Secretarial Standards
 

(SS-1
 

& SS-2)
 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India.

 
 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

 
 

I  further report that;
  

The Board
 

of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Woman Directors and Independent Directors. The 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

 
 

 

and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

 
 

 
 

(1) Public / Rights / Preferential issue of Shares / Debentures / Sweat Equity
(2) Redemption/Buy Back of Securities.

 I  further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views 
were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that

 

there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

 
  
 

  
   

   

(3) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

  
  

  

(4) Foreign Technical Collaborations.
(5) Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.

 

                                  
                                

Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                     For, UTKARSH SHAH & CO.                                                
                                                                                                                               Company Secretaries 

Date:
 

28th May, 2024
 

                                       Utkarsh
 

Shah
 

                                                                                                                             
Proprietor

  
                                                                                            

FCS No 12526
 

CP No 26241
   

UDIN:
 

F012526F000465407
 

Peer Review No.5116/2023
 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our le er of even date which is annexed as Annexure -II 
 

and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure- “I” 

1.
 

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ACT, 1986 & OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS
 

2.
 

THE GOODS AND SERVICES ACT, 2016
 

3.
 

INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT AND REGULATIONS ACT, 1951
 

4.
 

INDIAN BOILER ACT, 1923
 

5.
 

INCOME TAX ACT, 1961
 

6.
 

PROFESSIONAL TAX, 1976
 

7.

 

NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT ACT, 1938

 

8.

 

THE FACTORIES ACT, 1948

 

9.

 

THE APPRENTICE ACT, 1961

 

10.

 

THE INDUSTRIAL DISPUTE ACT, 1947

 

11.

 

THE PAYMENT OF WAGES ACT, 1965

 

12.

 

THE PAYMENT OF BONUS ACT, 1965

 

13.

 

THE PAYMENT OF GRATUITY ACT , 1972

 

14.

 

THE MINIMUM WAGES ACT, 1946

 

15.

 

THE TRADE UNION ACT, 1926

 

16.

 

THE EMPLOYMENT EXCHANGE ACT 1952

 

17.

 

THE EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND & MISC. PROVISIONS ACT, 1952

  

18.

     

INDUSTRIAL EMPLOYMENT (STANDING ORDERS) ACT, 946 & RULES 1957

 

19.

 

CHILD LABOUR (P&R) ACT,1986 & RULES

 

20.

 

INDIAN BOILER ACT, 1923 & REGULATIONS

 

21.

 

INDIAN STAMP ACT, 1899

 

22.

 

CUSTOMS ACT, 1962

 

23.

 

THE TRADEMARKS ACT, 1999

 

24.

 

PETROLEUM ACT 1934, RULES 1976

 
 

Place: Ahmedabad

                                                                                     

For, UTKARSH SHAH & CO.                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                               

Company Secretaries

 

Date: 28th

 

May, 2024

 
                                                                                                

Utkarsh Shah

 
                                                                                                                             

Proprietor 

 
                                                                                            

FCS No 12526 CP No 26241  

 

UDIN:

 

F012526F000465407

 

Peer Review No.5116/2023
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Annexure “II”  

 
 

To, 

The Members, 
 

To,
 

JYOTI RESINS AND ADHESIVES LIMITED
 

Survey No.873, Opp. Anand Healthcare,
 

Ranchhodpura Road,
 

Santej, Kalol,
 

Gandhinagar –
 

382 721
 

 
 

Based on audit, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable 
laws and maintenance of records by the Company. I conducted our audit in accordance with 
the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (“CSAS”) prescribed by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (“ICSI”). These standards require that the auditor complies with statutory and 
regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

  

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, 
there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be 
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the CSAS. 
Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

  

a.

 

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

  

b.

 

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

  

c.

 

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statement of the 
Company.

  

d.

 

The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulation, standards is the responsibility of the management. 

 

 

e.

 

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

  

f.

 

The Secretarial Audit report

 

is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.

 
 

 

 

Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                     For, UTKARSH SHAH & CO.     

                                 
                                                                                                                               

Company Secretaries

 

Date: 28th

 

May, 2024

 
                                       

Utkarsh Shah

 

Proprietor 

 
             

FCS No 12526 CP No 26241  

 

UDIN:

 

F012526F000465407

 

Peer Review No.5116/2023
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                                             ANNEXURE - C 
 

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION 
 [Pursuan on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remunera on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
 

 i. the ra o of the remunera of each Working Director to the median remunera on of 
the employees of the Company and percentage increase in remunera on of each 
Director, Chief Financial cer, Chief Ex ve cer, Company Secretary, if any, in 
the cial year 2024: 
 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name Ra o to median 
remunera on 

% increase in 
remunera on 

Ex ve Directors   
1 Mr. Jagdish Patel – Chairman and Whole 

Time Director 

53.00 0.00 

2 Mr. Utkarsh Patel – Managing Director 42 0.00 
3 Mrs. Jy a Jagdish Patel – Execu ve 

Director 
 0.00 

Key Managerial Personnel   
 Mr. Ashok Jardosh – Chief Financial 

cer 

10.91 2.71 

7
 

Mr. Tejal Varde, Company Secretary
 (Appointed w.e.f. 30.10.2023)

 
 

9.09
 

8
 

Mr. Manish Jain –
 

Company Secretary
 (Resigned w.e.f. 25.09.2023)

 
 

9.09
 

 

 

Average percen e increase in remunera  of employees other than managerial 
personnel was 10.75% and average increase in remu  of managerial personnel 
was around 0.00%.

ii. Percentage increase in the median remunera on of employees in the nancial year 
2024: 10.75

iii. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2024:

The Non-Ex ve Independent Directors of the Company are en tled for ng fees as 
per the statutory provisions and are within the prescribed limits. The details of ng 
fees paid to independent directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report 
that forms part of this Annual Report.

 
 

  
 

    
 

iv.

 

Average perc increase already made in the salar ies of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last nancial year and its comparison with the perce le 
increase in the managerial remunera on and jus ca on thereof and point out if there 
are any excep onal circumstance for increase in

 
managerial remunera n: 

 
 

 

 

v. The key parameters for any variable component of

 

remunera on availed by the 
Ex ve Directors are considered by the Board of Directors as per the Remunera  
Policy of the Company.

vi.

 

It is a rmed that the Remunera n paid is as per the Remunera n Policy of the 
Company.

 

For and on behalf of the Board

Jagdish N. Patel
Chairman & Director 

(DIN: 00304924) 

 

Date:  31st August, 2024
Place: Gandhinagar
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Chairman & Whole Time Director 



(Rs. In Lakhs)

a. Foreign Exchange earned

b. Foreign Exchange outgo

[C] Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:   

For and on behalf of the Board

                                         
 

                     

Jagdish N. Patel

 

Chairman & Whole Time Director 
(DIN: 00304924)

                                        
 

 

2023-24
-

-

-

-

2022-2023 
 

 

 

Date:  31st August, 2024
Place: Gandhinagar
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  ANNEXURE – D 
CONVERVATION OF ENRGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 

[A] CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
 

 

A
 

The steps taken / impact on conserva  
of energy:

 
 

LED lights, Fli een in coal plant
 

 

Raw water and
 

STP water recovery 
system 

 
 

Coal feeling directly through DCF 
removed pocket feeder

 
  

Stoppage of Old VAM Cooling tower 
thru innova e changes 

 

Stoppage of Cooling Tower Fan 
 

Stoppage of one Air Compressor 
 

B The steps taken by the Company for 
lising Alternate Sources of Energy 

The Company is in the process of 
searching the best available 

alternate source of Energy in 
renewable sector. 

C The capital investment on energy 
conserva on equipment: 

 

The Company is in the process of 
searching the best available alternate 
source of Energy in renewable sector. 

 
 

 
  

[B] Technology Absorp

A

 

E orts, in brief, made towards technology 
ab on, a innova on.

 

The Company is using the raw 
material which is environment 
friendly.

 

B

 

Bene derived as a result of the above e orts 
e.g. Product improvement, cost reduc on, 
product development, import subs tc.

  
-

 

C

 

In case of imported technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the nancial year:

 
-

 

The details of the technology imported :-

 

NA

 

The year of import

 

NA

 

Whether the technology been fully absorbed

 

NA

 
 

If not fully absorbed, areas where abso on 
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof, 

 
 NA

 

D

 

Research & Development

  
 

c areas in which R & D is carried out by 
the Company.

 

To enhance the product quality 
and durability.

 
 

Bene ed as a result of the above  R & D.

 

No

 
 

Future 

 

No

 
 

Expenditure on R & D

 

No

 
  

 

Technology Absorp on, Adop on and Innov
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

1. COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

Your Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance
 

for the 
Financial Year ended 31st

 
March, 2024

 
in compliance with the provisions of Securi es 

and Exchange Board of India ng Obliga ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula o egula ).

 
 

2.
 

THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
   

 

At the core of good governance lies the values of the Company and the four pillar of 
your Company’s values are Together, Caring for, Agile and Making it happen. In 
essence, Corporate Governance is a synthesis of business elements & values 
encompassing

 

accountability, responsibility,

 

fairness,

 

transparency, risk management , 
sustainability & so on, that not only enhances the organiza al growth but also 
generates

 

trust among all its stakeholders and shareholders.

  
 

The Directors and Management of the Company believes in construc ve and 
progressive Corporate Governance

 

principle

 

and are commi ed to maintain

 

high 
standards of Corporate Governance in its business and ensure that an 
e ec ve self-regulatory mechanism exists to protect the interest of all the 
Stakeholders be it Employees, Investors, Customers, Suppliers, Financiers, 
Government

 

and

 

Community

 

at large.

 
 

The Company is in compliance with the requirements s ted under the provisions 
of Regula ons 17 to 27 read with Regula 34(2) and Schedule V of the Lis  
Regula ons. 

 
 

3.

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 

(a)

 

COMPOSITION

 

AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS: 

 
 

The n of the Board of Directors was in conformity with the provisions of 
 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and Regula on 17 of the Lis g 

Regula ons during the period under review. The strength of the Board of Directors as

 

on 31st

 

March, 2024

 

consisted of Six

 

( ) Directors comprising of One (1) Chairman

 

and 
Whole me

 

Director,

 

One (1)

 

Managing Director,

 

One (1) Whole Time Director

 

[all being 
Promoter-Directors] and

 

Three (3) Non-Ex ve

 

Independent Directors.

 

The 
composition of the Board represents an op mix of professionalism, knowledge 
and experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibili  The Board 
presently, does not have any nominee director.

 
 

In view of the scope and the nature of the Company’s opera the present size of 
the Board is appropriate for e ec e decision making. The Board of Directors has 

mate responsibility for the management, general a airs, dir on, performance 
and long-term success of business.
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(b) ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD & ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:  

 

The Board meets at regular intervals on a quarterly basis to discuss and decide on 
business policies and strategies apart from other Board businesses. An ad-hoc mee  
is
 

convened as and when circumstances require.
 

However, in case of a special and 
urgent business need, the Board’s approval is taken by passing by 
circula as permi ed by law, which are noted and con rmed in the subsequent 
Board Mee ng. 

 
 

The Company in consulta with the Directors prepares the Annual calendar of 
mee ngs and circulates a tenta ve Schedule for the mee ng of the Board and 

ee in order to facilitate the Directors to plan their schedules.

 
 

The Board mee ngs are normally held at admin

 

ce of the Company situated at 
Elite, Nr. Shapath Hexa, Opp. Kargil Petrol Pump, Nr. Sola Over Bridge, S.G. Highway, 
Ahmedabad -

 

380 0 .

 

The details of a endance of the Directors at the Board Mee  
during the year and at Annual General Mee g are given below:

 
 

Name of Director

 

Category of 
Directors

 

Board Mee ng 

 

AGM 
ended

 

Mr. Jagdish Patel

 

Chairman and WTD

 

5

 

Yes

 

Mr. Utkarsh Patel

 

Managing Director

 

5

 

Yes

 

Mrs. Jy a Patel

 

Whole Time Director

 

5

 

Yes

 

Mr. Sandeep Shah

 

I.N.E.D.

 

5

 

Yes

 

Mr. Parshwa Shah

 

I.N.E.D.

 

5

 

Yes

 

Mr. Prakash Tekwani

 

I.N.E.D.

 

5

 

Yes

 

Ms. Priyanka K Gola

 

I.N.E.D.

 

(Woman Director)

 

5

 

Yes

 

 

I.N.E.D.: Independent Non-Execu ve Director; 

 
 

(c)

 

DIRECTORSHIPS AND MEMBERSHIP ON COMMITTEES:

 

-

 
 

The Company has obtained the requisite disclosures from the Directors in respect of 
their Directorships and Memberships in ees of other Companies, the details 
of which are given below:

 
 

Name of Director

 

Category of 
Directors

 

Directorship in 
other Public 

Limited 
Companies1

 

No. of Com
P  in Indian 

Public Limited

 

Companies2

 
   

Member

 

Chairman

 

Mr. Jagdish Patel

 

Chairman and 
WTD

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

Mr. Utkarsh Patel

 

Managing 0

 

0

 

0
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NO



 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

Al
Regula ons,

 

The details of the Directors with respect to directorships in other listed en es along 
with category are as under:

Director 

Mrs. Jy a Patel Ex ve 
Director

 
0 0 0 

Mr. Sandeep Shah
 

I.N.E.D.
 

5
 

8
 

5
 

Mr. Parshwa Shah
 

I.N.E.D.
 

2
 

2
 

0
 

Mrs. Priy a
 

K Gola
 

I.N.E.D.
 

(Woman 
Director)

 
7

 
1

 
1

 

      

Excludes

 

Directorships held in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and

 

 Companies:

 
  

ees considered are Audit Commi ee & older’s Rela ship 
ee.

 

l the Directors are in compliance

 

with the provisions of the Act

 

and Lis ng 

 

in this regard.

 

 

S.

 

No.

 

Name

 

Name of other liste es 

 

Category

 

1

 

Mr. Sandeep Shah

 

Semitrone Conchem Limited

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

Global Longlife Hospital and Research 
Limited

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

RCC Limited

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

K. P. Woven Private Limited

 

Non-Execu e 
Independent Director

 

HCP

 

Plastene Bu p  Limited

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

2

 

Ms. Priy a K.

 

Gola

 

 Interior Products Limited

 

Managing Director

 

Deep Energy Resources Limited

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

Chartered Logis ted

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

Prabha Energy Private Limited

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

Mercury Trade ted

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

Falcon Technoprojects India Limited

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director

 

City Crops Agro Limited

 

Non-Ex ve 
Independent Director
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(d) NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD: 

 

The Board met Five (5) during the F. Y. 2023 -24 on 17.05.2023, 27.07.2023, 

.2023, 30.10.2023 05.02.2024,
 

R vely. The me elapsed between
 

any two 
ve mee ngs did not exceed 120 days.

 
 

(e)
 

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTOR INTER-SE:
  

 

None of the Directors of the Company have any inter- onship except between 
Mr. Jagdish Patel, Mrs. Jy atel and Mr. Utkarsh Patel a s they are blood rela ves.

 
 

(f)

 

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

  
 

 

P culars of number of shares held by the Non-Ex ve Directors as on 31st

 

March, 
2024

 

is given below:

  
 

Name of Non-Ex e Director

 

No. of Equity

 

Shares held

 

Mr. Sandeep Shah

 

Nil

 

Mr. Parshwa Shah

 

Nil

 

Ms. Priyanka K Gola

 

Nil

 
 

(g)

 

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

  
 

All new Independent Directors are taken through a detailed induc on and 
familiariza on Programme when they join the Board of your Company.

 

As part of the 
induc  sessions, the Chairman and Managing Director provide an overview of the 
organiza on, history, culture, values and purpose. The Business and Func onal Heads 
take the Independent Directors through their r e businesses and f s.

 
 

The Company has formed the procedure to explain in detail the compliances required 
under the Act and Lis g Regula , to independent directors.

 

The details of

 

familiariza on programme of Independent Directors is available on the website of the 
Company a ps://euro7000.com

 

in the investor n.

  
 

(h)

 

SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR:

 
 

The Board as on 31st

 

March, 2024

 

comprises of qu ed members who bring in the 
required skills, competence and e that allow them to make e ve 
contri s to the Board and its Commi ees.

 
 

The table below summarizes the list of core skills, exper  competencies ed 
by the Board as required in the context of the Company’s business and as possessed 
by individual members of the Board.

 

-

 

&
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Name of the Director Skill / Exper tence 

Mr. Jagdish Patel Leadership, Strategic Planning, Technical exper se, 
porate A airs and Policy decision making

 

Mr. Utkarsh Patel
 

Leadership, In on Technology , Technical ,
 

Marke
 

Mrs. Jy a Patel
 

Leadership, Human Resource & Administra
 

Mr. Sandeep Shah
 

Industry Experience, ate Governance Finance, 
Taxa , Forex, Treasur edit Management.

 

Mr. Parshwa Shah

 

ate Governance, Legal, Joint Ventures, al 
markets, Leadership.

 

Ms. Priyanka K Gola

 

Legal

 

and porate Governance.

 
 

(i)

 

INDEPENDENT DIRE TORS: 

 
 

Independent Directors play an important role in the governance processes of the 
Board. They bring with them their expe se and experience for frui ul discussions and 
delibera s at the Board. This be ers the decision making process at the Board.

 
 

The Independent Directors have been appointed for a xed term of 5 e) years from 
their ve dates of appointment with an op on to

 

re e from the ce at any 
during the term of appointment. Their appointment has been approved by the 

Members of the any. The Independent Directors have con rmed that they meet 
with the criteria of independence laid down under the Act, the de and Lis ng 
Regula ons.

 
 

(j)

 

LIMIT ON NUMBER OF DIRE TORSHIP:

   
 

None of the Director of the any is holding Directorship in more than 10 Public 
Limited ompanies

 

and none of an Independent Directors serve as an Independent 
Director in more than 7 (Seven) Listed panies. 

 
 

None of the Director of the ny is appointed in more than 10 ees or is 
g as  in more than 5 (Five) om ees across all the ompanies in 

which he is a Director. 

 
 

(k)

 

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRE TOR:

  
 

In accordance with provisions of Regula 25(3) of the SEBI Lis ng Regula on read 
with Schedule IV of the anies Act, 2013 the Independent Directors separately 
met on 5th

 

February, 2024, without

 

the a endance of Non-Independent Directors and 
Management Personnel of the ny. The mee was held with the objec ve of 
reviewing the performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and 
the o pany.

 
 

They will also have a separate mee with the n of the Board, t o discuss 
issues and concerns, if any.
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(l) ISSUANCE OF LETTER OF APPOINTMENT:   

 

The Independent Directors are given a formal appointment le er inter alia containing 
the term of appointment, role, d es and responsi commitment, 
remunera , insurance, code of conduct, training and development, performance 
evalua  process, disclosure, con de ality, etc .

 
 

(m)
 

BOARD’S ROLE:
   

 

The Board’s role is to: 

 

(1)

 

provide entrepreneurial leadership, set strategic ob es, and ensure that the 
necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet 
its objec ves; 

 

(2)

 

establish a framework of prudent and e e controls which enables risks to 
be assessed and managed, including safeguarding of shareholders’ interests and 
the Company’s assets; 

 

(3)

 

y the key stakeholder groups and recognize that their percep which 
may a ect the Company’s reputa

 

(4)

 

set the Company’s values and standards (including ethical standards), and 
ensure that obliga ons to shareholders and other stakeho lders are understood 
and met; 

 

(5)

 

Consider sustainability issues, e.g. environmental, governance and social factors, 
as part of its strategic formula ons 

 

(6)

 

review and approve the recommended remunera  framework and packages 
for the Board and key management

 

personnel; 

 

(7)

 

review the performance of the Board, set the criteria for n of directors 
and to nominate directors for shareholders’ approval; and 

 

(8)

 

Ensure

 

that communica ons with shareholders are

 

accurate, adequate and 
. 

 
 

To assist the Board in the execu on of its responsibili the Board has cons
various Board commi ees, namely the Audit Comm ee, Nomina on and 
Remunera ee, Shareholders/ Investors Grievances

 

ee, Corporate 
Social Responsibility Co ee and Risk

 

Management Commi ee. 

 
 

The role and func on of each commi ee is described in subsequent

 

se s in this 
report. While these c ees are delegated with certain respon es, the 

mate responsibility for th al decision lies with the e re

 

Board. 

 
 

All Board Commi ees are cons tuted with clear Terms of Reference to assist the 
Board in discharging its func ons and responsibili es

 
 

(n)

 

CHAIRMAN’S RESPONSIBILITY: 

  
 

The Board believes that there is su element of independence and adequate 
safeguards against a concentra on of power in one single person.
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The Chairman is responsible, among others: - 

i.
   

To lead the Board to ensure its e ec veness on all aspects of its role ;
 

ii.
   

To set the agenda and ensure that adequate me is available for discussion of all 
agenda items, in par ar strategic issues;

 

iii.
 

To promote a culture of openness and debate at the Board;
 

iv.
 

To ensure that the directors receive complete, adequate a mely informa
 

v.
   

To ensure e e communica on with shareholder s; 
 

vi.

 

To encourage construc e rela within the Board and between the Board and 
management;

 

vii.

 

To facilitate the e ec ve contr n of non -exe ve directors in pa cular; and

 

viii.

 

To promote high standards of corporate governance.

 
 

(o)

 

AGENDA FOR BOARD MEETING:

   
 

Agenda and Notes on Agenda are circulated to the Directors at least 7 days in 
advance,

 

in the de ned Agenda format. All material informa on is incorporated in the 
Agenda

 

papers for facilita ng meaningful discussion. 

 
 

The Board business generally

 

includes considera on of important corporate s 
and events including:

 

-

  

• 

 

Quarterly

 

and Annual Financial results announcements; 

 

• 

 

Oversight

 

of the performance of the business; 

 

• 

 

Declara

 

of Dividends, if any; 

 

• 

 

Development

 

and Approval of

 

overall business strategy; 

 

• 

 

Board

 

succession planning; 

 

• 

 

Review

 

of the func ng of the Commi ees; and 

 

• 

 

Other

 

strategic, tr onal and governance ma ers as required under the Act, 
Lis g Regula ons.

 
 

The followings are generally tabled for informa n, review and approval of the Board:

 
 

Annual Opera Plans & Budgets;

 
 

The info  on recruitment and remunera on of Senior O cers just below

 

the level of Board of Directors, including Appointment or Removal of Chief

 

Financial O cer and the Company Secretary;

 
 

Show cause

 

N ces, Demand

 

, Prosecu on N ces and Penalty N ces, 
which are

 

materially important;

 
 

Fatal or Serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material e uent or

 

problems;

 
 

Any issue, which involves

 

possible public or product liability claims of

 

substan al 
nature, including any judgement

 

or order which, may have passed

 

strictures on 
the conduct of the listed en ty or taken an adverse view

 

regarding another 
enterprise that may have nega e implicat ions o ty;

 
 

Details of any Joint Venture or Collabora on Agreement;

 
 

Tran ns that involve substan al payment towards goodwill, brand equity,

 

or 
intellectual property;

 

80



 
 

 cant labour problems and their proposed solu ons;  
 Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are material in nature and not in 

normal course of business; 
 

Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by
 

management to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if material ;
 

 
Non-compliance

 
of any regulatory, statutory or lis requirements and

 

shareholders service such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer
 

etc.; 
 

 

The Board works with management to achieve this obj e and the management 
remains accountable to the Board.  

 
 

(p)

 

RECORDING MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

  
 

 

As per Secretarial Standard 1 (SS-1) issued by The Ins of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI), the Company Secretary records the minutes of the proceedings of each 
Board and Commi ee mee gs. 

 
 

(q)

 

POST MEETING FOLLOW-UP MECHANISM:

  
 

The Company has an e ve post mee ng follow-up, review and repo g process 
mechanism for the decisions taken by the Board/Commi ees. Important decisions 
taken at the Boar ee mee ngs are communicated to the concerned 
Fun nal Heads

 

promptly.

 

 Taken Report on previous me e  is placed at 
the immediately succeeding mee ng of the Board/Commi ee for g by the 
Board/Commi ee members.

 
 

(r)

 

COMPLIANCE REPORT:

  
 
 

While preparing the

 

Agenda adequate care is taken to ensure adherence to all 
applicable laws and regula ons including the Companies Act, 2013

 

read with rules 
framed thereunder

 

and

 

Secretarial standard issued by ICSI. The Board periodically 
reviews all statutory compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company.

 

The 
Company have

 

Installed Legatrix module for be er legal compliance & monitoring.

 
 

(s)

 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION: 

 
 
 

The Directors have separate and independent access to the Company’s management 
and the Company Secretary at all The Directors are tled to request from 
management and should be provided with such informa as needed to make 
informed decisions in a mely manner. The Board is informed of all material events 
and tra and when they occurred.

  
 
 

Should the Directors, whether individually or ely, require independen t 
professional advice; such professionals will be selected with the approval of the 
Chairman of the res ve Com ees requiring such advice, and is

 

appointed at the 
expenses of the Company.
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 The Company Secretary a ends all the Board and Board Com ee mee and 

a ends to the Corporate Secretarial Administra ma ers, ensurin that the Board 
procedures are followed and that applicable rules and r ula ons are complied with.  

  

(t)
 

CHAIRMAN
 

AND MANAGING DIRECTOR:
   

 
 

Mr. Jagdish Patel
 

–
 

Chairman
 

and M Director, leads the Board to ensure 
e ec veness of all aspects of its role. The Chairman sets the mee  enda and 
ensures that the Directors are provided with complete, adequate and 
informa The Chairman ensures that discussions and delibera ons are e ve 
and promote a culture of openness and debate at Board mee The Chairman 
encour es constr e rela within the Board and

 

between the Board and 
Man ement. 

 

The Chairman

 

also facilitates the e ve c n of the Non-
Ex ve Directors and pr  standards of corporate overnance.

 
  
 

Mr. Utkarsh Patel

 

-

 

Ma Director, is responsible for ex the stra plans 
set out by the Board and ensures that the Directors are r larly kept updated and 
informed of the business.

 
  

4.

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 
 

The ees cons tuted by the Board focus on c areas and take informed 
decisions within the framework by the Board and make sp  
r  the Board on

 

ma ers in their areas or purview. 

 
 

All decisions and recommenda of the Com ees are placed before the Board 
for informa on or for approval, if required. To enable be er and more focused 
a on on the a airs of the Company, the Board has dele ated ar ma ers to 
the ees of the Board set up for the purpose.

 
 

The Board has follow e statutory co ees cons ted as on 31st

 

March 2024:

 

(1)

 

Audit Commi ee

 

(AC)

 

(2)

 

Nomina

 

and Remunera on Commi ee

 

(NRC)

 

(3)

 

Shareholders

 

/ Investors

 

Grievances,

 

Share Allotment, Share Transfer & Stake 
Holders Rela onship C ee (SRC)

 

(4)

 

Corporate Social Responsibility

 

Commi ee

 

(CSR)

 

(5)

 

Risk M ement Comm ee (RMC)

 
 

    
   

 
  

 
The terms of reference of the ees are determined by the Board from me to 

The resp e Chairman of the Commi ee informs the summary of discussions 
held in the Commi ee Mee to the Board.
The Minutes of the Com ee Mee are tabled at the resp ve ee 
Mee The role and com of these C ees, includi the number of  
mee n held duri the ancial year and the related a endance, are provided 
below. 
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5. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

The Audit Commi ee acts as a link between the Statutory
 

Auditors, Internal Auditors 
and the Board.

 
The Board has cons tuted a qu ed and independent Audit 

ee in line with the provisions of Regula on 18 of the Lis ng Regula s, read 
with n 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is in due compliance of all the 
provisions stated therein.

 

The Co ee has full access ancial informa on.

 
 

(a)

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE: 

 
 

The terms of reference of the Audit Commi ee are as set out in Part C of Schedule II of 
SEBI (LODR) 2015 read

 

with S n 177 of the Companies Act 2013. 

 
 

1.

 

oversight of the listed en ty’s nancial repor process and the disclosure of its 
ancial informa on to ensure that the nancial statement is correct, cient 

and credible; 

 

2.

 

r for appointment, remunera and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the list

 

3.

 

approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors; 

 

4.

 

reviewing, with the management, the annual nancial statements and auditor's 
report thereon before submission to the board for approval, with p lar 
reference to: 

 

a.

 

ma ers required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be 
included in the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub -se n (3) of 

34 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

 

b.

 

changes, if any, in accoun ng pol icies and pr es and reasons for the same; 

 

c.

 

major accoun entries involving es tes based on the exercise of 
judgment by management; 

 

d.

 

cant adjustments made in the nancial statements arising out of audit 
dings; 

 

e.

 

compliance with lis ng and other legal requirements rela ng to nancial 
statements; 

 

f.

 

disclosure of any related party transac s; 

 

g.

 

mod ed opinion(s) in the dra eport; 

 

5.

 

reviewing, with the management, the quarterly nancial statements before 
submission to the board for approval; 

 

6.

 

reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / applica on of funds 
raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue,

 

preferen al issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds u lized for purposes other than those stated in the er 
document / prospectus / n and the report submi ed by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the on of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 
making appropriate recommenda ons to the board to take up steps in this ma er; 
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7. reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and 
e ec ness of audit process;  

8. approval or any subsequent modi ca on of transac ns of the listed en ty with 
related par es;  

9. scru ny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
10. valua on of undertakings or assets of the listed en ty, wherever it is necessary;  
11. evalua on of internal nancial controls and risk management systems;  
12. reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

adequacy of the internal control systems;  
13. reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func on, if any, including the structure 

of the internal audit department, sta ng and seniority of the o cial heading the 
department, repor ng structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;  

14. discussion with internal auditors of any signi cant ndings and follow up there on;  
15. reviewing the ndings of any internal inves a ons by the internal auditors into 

ma ers where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and repor ng the ma er to the board;  

. discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature 
and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern;  

17. to look into the reasons for substan al defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) 
and creditors;  

18. to review the func oning of the whistle blower mechanism;  
19. approval of appointment of Chief Financial O cer a er assessing the 

quali ca ons, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;  
20. carrying out any other func on as is men oned in the terms of reference of the 

Audit Commi ee.  
21. reviewing the u za on of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the 

holding company in the subsidiary exceeding Rs.100 Crore or 10% of the asset size 
of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including ng loans / advances / 
investments ng as on the date of coming into force of this provision. 

22. mandatorily reviewing the following informa on:  
i. management discussion and analysis of nancial condi on and results of 

opera ns;  
ii. statement of signi cant Related Party Transac ons (“RPT”) (as de ned by the 

Audit Commi ee), submi ed by management;  
iii. management ers / le ers of internal control weaknesses issued by the 

statutory auditors;  
iv. internal audit reports rela ng to internal control weaknesses; and  
v. the appointment, removal and terms of remunera n of the internal auditor 

shall be subject to review by the Audit Commi ee.  
vi. statement of devia ons:  

(a)  quarterly statement of devia n(s) including report of monitoring agency, 
if applicable, submi ed to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regula on 32(1) 
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(b)  annual statement of funds u ized for purposes other than those stated 
in the o er document/prospectus/no ce in terms of Regula on 32(7) of 
Lis ng Regula ons. 

 
All the recommenda s made by the Commi ee during the year under review were 
accepted by the Board. 
 

(b) COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE:  
 

As on 31st March, 2024, the Audit Commi ee comprised of Three (3) Independent 
Directors. All members of the Audit Commi ee are nancially literate having exper e 
in the lds of Finance, Taxa n, Economics, Risk and Interna onal Finance. The 
composi on of the Audit Commi ee is given below:  
 

   
I.N.E.D. Chartered Accountant  

I.N.E.D. Company Secretary 

I.N.E.D. Company Secretary 

 
Mr. Tejal M Varde, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary of the Audit Commi ee. 

 
(c) MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE:  

 

The Commi ee met Four (4)  during the F.Y. 2023-2024 on 17.05.2023, 
27.07.2023, 30.10.2023 & 05.02.2024 and that the me elapsed between any two 
consecu e mee ngs did not exceed 120 days. 
 

Name of the Director No. of mee ngs 
a ended 

Mr. Sandeep Shah  4 
Mr. Parshwa Shah   4 
Ms. Priyanka K Gola  4  

The mee ngs of Audit Commi ee are also a ended by the Chief Financial O cer, 
Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor as special invitees.  
The Audit Commi ee also meets the internal and statutory auditors separately, 
without the presence of Management Representa  The Internal Auditors and 
Statutory Auditors of the Company discuss their audit ndings and updates with the 
Commi ee and submit their views directly to the Commi ee. The discussions are held 
with the Internal Auditors to focus on compliance issues and to conduct detailed 
reviews of the processes and internal controls in the Company.  

 

Quali ca onCategory Name of the Director
Mr. Sandeep Shah 
Chairman 
Mr. Parshwa Shah 
Member  
Ms. Priyanka K Gola 
Member  

 
 

  
 

  

The minutes of each Audit Commi ee mee ng are placed in the next mee ng of the 
Board. 
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(d) INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION:   

 
The Company has outsourced the Internal Audit func on to a professional rm                   
M/s. VMAN and Associates, Chartered Accountants. The Internal Auditor reports 
directly to the Chairman of the Audit Commi ee (“AC”) on internal audit ma ers, 
which inter-alia includes: 
 
� approval or any subsequent modi ca on of related party transac ons; 
� scru iza on of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
� ascertaining of valua on of undertakings or assets, wherever it is necessary; 
� evaluation of internal nancial controls and risk management systems 
� discussion of any signi cant ndings and follow up ac on thereon. 
� reviewing the func oning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
� grant of omnibus approval for related party transac ons which are in the 

ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and to review 
and approve such transac ns. 

� carrying out of any other func ons as men oned in the terms of reference of 
the audit commi ee. 

 
(e) Total fees for all services paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditors is given 

below: 
        (Rs. In Lakh) 

M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP FY 2023-24 
Audit Fees 4.00 
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.  
Total 4.66 

 
(f) MAINTENANCE OF FINANCIAL RECORDS:    

 
Based on reports submi ed by the external and internal auditors, the system of 
internal controls, including that of nancial, opera onal, compliance, informa on 
technology, and risk management systems maintained by the management was in 
place throughout the nancial year and up to date of this report, the Board, with the 
concurrence of the Audit Commi ee and assurance of the management (including 
Managing Director and Chief Financial O cer) as well as the Internal Auditors, are of 
the opinion that:  
(a) the nancial records have been properly maintained and nancial statements 

give a true and fair view of the Company’s opera ns and nances; and  
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(b)  the system of internal controls, including nancial, opera nal, compliance, 
informa on technology, and risk management systems are adequate and 
e ec  as at the date of this report.  

 
To ensure the adequacy of the internal audit func n, the Audit Commi ee reviews 
and approves, on an annual basis, the internal audit plans and the resources required 
to adequately performing this func on. 
 
However, the Board and management acknowledge that no system can provide 
absolute assurance against the occurrence of material errors, poor judgement in 
decision-making, human errors, losses, fraud or other irregulari  
 

(g) REVIEW OF INFORMATION BY AUDIT COMMITTEE (AC):  
 

AC has reviewed and sa s d that the Company’s internal audit func on is adequately 
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company.  AC has also reviewed: 
 
(1) Management Discussion Analysis of nancial condi and results of opera  
(2) Statement of signi cant Related Party Transac ons submi ed by management. 
(3) Internal Audit Reports rela ng to internal control weaknesses. 

 
(h) ASSURANCE FROM CMD AND CFO:  

 
The Board has received assurance from Chairman and Managing Director (CMD) and 
Chief Financial O cer (CFO) to ensure that the nancial records have been properly 
maintained and the nancial statements give a true and fair view of the Company’s 
opera ns and nances; and the e ec ness of the Company’s risk management and 
internal control systems are opera ng ec  in all material respects, based on the 
criteria for ec e internal control established. 
 

6. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) 
 
The Board has cons tuted the Nomina on and Remunera on Commi ee in line with 
the provisions of Regula n 19 of the Lis ng Regula ons read with Sec on 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and is in compliance of all the provisions stated therein. 
 

(a) TERMS OF REFERENCE:  
 
The Nomina on and Remunera on Commi ee (NRC) aims at establishing a formal 
and transparent process for the appointment / re-appointment of Directors. The 
Nomina on Commi ee is responsible to: 
 
1. formula on of the criteria for determining quali ca ns, posi  a ributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy 
rela ng to, the remunera  of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees;  
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2. formula on of criteria for evalua on of performance of Independent Directors 
and the Board of Directors;  

3. devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;  
4. iden fying persons who are quali ed to become Directors and who may be 

appointed in Senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and 
recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal.  

5. whether to extend or con nue the term of appointment of the Independent 
Director, on the basis of the report of performance evalua on of Independent 
Director.  

. recommend the Board, all remunera on, in whatever form, payable to Senior 
management. 

7. make recommenda ns to the Board on the appointment of new Execu ve and 
Non-Execu e Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees; 

8. review the Board structure, size and composi on, having regard to the principles 
of the Code; 

9. assess nominees or candidates for appointment or elec on to the Board, 
determining whether or not such nominee has the requisite quali ca ons and 
whether or not he/she is independent; 

10. put in place plans for succession, in par cular, for the Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Execu e O cer of the Company; 

11. make recommenda ns to the Board for the con nua on in services of any 
Execu  Director who has reached the age of 70 (Seventy) years; 

12. recommend Directors who are re ing by rota  to be put forward for re-
elec on; 

13. decide whether or not a Director is able to and has been adequately carrying out 
his du  as a Director of the Company, par cularly when he has mul ple Board 
representa ons; 

14. recommend to the Board internal guidelines to address the compe ng me 
commitments faced by Directors who serve on mul ple boards;  

15. quali ca ons, posi ve a ributes and independence of a Director; for evalua on 
of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors; 

. recommend to the Board a framework of remunera n and speci c 
remunera on packages for all Directors of the Company, Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) and other Senior Management Personnel; 

17. review the service contracts of the Execu e Directors; 
18. carry out its du  in the manner that it deems expedient, subject always to any 

regula ons or restric ons that may be imposed upon the NRC by the Board of 
Directors from  to me; 

19. reviewing and enhancing on the compensa n structure to incen ve 
performance base for key execu ;  

20. ensure that the remunera  packages are comparable within the industry and 
comparable Companies and include a performance-related element coupled with 
appropriate and meaningful measures of assessing individual Execu  Director’s 
performance. 

 
21. facilitate the transparency, accountability and reasonableness of the 

remunera on of Director and Senior Management Personnel.  
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22. recommend to the Board a framework of remunera on for the Directors,  
23. all aspects of remunera on, including but not limited to Directors’ fees, salaries, 

allowances, bonuses, op ons and bene ts-in-kind shall be covered by the 
Nomina on and Remunera mmi ee.  

 

 
 
 
 

(b) COMPOSITION & MEETINGS OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:  
   

As on 31st March, 2024, the Nomina on & Remunera on Commi ee comprised of 
three (3) Non-Execu  Independent Directors. Three (3) mee ng of the Nomina on 
and Remunera on Commi ee were held on 17 May, 2023, 17 July, 2023 and 2 
February, 2024  
The composi on of the Nomina n & Remunera n Commi ee and the details of 
mee ngs a ended by its members are appearing hereina er:  
  

Name of the Director No. of mee ngs 
a ended 

Mr. Sandeep Shah  3 
Mr. Parshwa Shah   3 
Ms. Priyanka K Gola  3 

 
Each member of the NRC shall abstain from vo ng on any res on in respect of his 
remunera on package. 
 

(c) PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD & INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:   
 
The Nomina n and Remunera on Commi ee has devised criteria for evalua on of 
the performance of the Directors including the Independent Directors. Pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act and Lis ng Regula ons, the Board carries out the Annual 
performance evalua  of the Board as well as the evalua n of the working of its 
Commi ees.  
 
A separate exercise is also carried out to evaluate the performance of individual 
Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chairman of Nomina on 
and Remunera on Commi ee meets all the Directors individually to get an overview 
of func oning of the Board and its cons tuents inter alia on the following broad 
criteria: 
 

 a endance and acquaintance with business level of par cipa on,  
 independence of judgement exercised by Independent Directors,  
 vision and strategy 
 Interpersonal rela onship etc.  

  e ec  par cipa on, domain knowledge,   
 

 Based on the valuable inputs received from the Directors, an ac on plan is drawn up 
to encourage greater engagement of the Independent Directors with the Company. 
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(d) NOMINATION PROCESS FOR NEW DIRECTORS:  
 
The search and nomina n process for new Directors are through database of 
Independent Directors, personal contacts and recommenda ons of the Director. NRC 
reviews and assess candidates before making recommenda on to the Board.  
 
NRC also take the lead in iden fying, evalua ng and selec ng suitable candidate for 
new Directorship. In its search and selec on process, NRC considers factors such as 
commitment and the ability of the prospec  candidate to contribute to discussions, 
delibera ons and ac es of the Board and Board Commi ees.  

 
(e) PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP OR TRANSACTION:  
   

There is no other pecuniary rela nship or transac n by the Company with Non-
Execu  Directors. 
 

(f) PAYMENT TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:   
 
The Company pays remunera on to its Chairman, Managing Director and Execu e 
Directors by way of Salary, Performance Bonus and Perquisites.  
 

(g) PAYMENT TO NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:  
 
The Non-Execu  Directors are not paid any compensa on / commission / other fees 
except si ng fees for a ending Board and its Commi ees mee ngs. The Board has 

xed the si ng fees payable to Non-Execu e Directors within the limits prescribed 
under the Act. The criteria of making payments to Non-Execu  Directors is available 
on Company’s website at www.euro7000.com.   
 
The details of si ng fees paid to Non-Execu  Directors for the year ended                        
31st March, 2024 are as under: 
                                                                    (Rs. in Lakh) 

Name of the Director Remunera on paid 
Mr. Sandeep Shah  0.75 
Mr. Parshwa Shah   0. 7 
Ms. Priyanka K Gola  0.45 
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7. SHAREHOLDERS’/INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCES, SHARE ALLOTMENT, SHARE 
TRANSFER AND STAKE HOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
(STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE - SRC)

The Board has cons tuted the Stakeholders’ Rela nship Commi ee in line with the 
provisions of Regula on 20 of the Lis ng Regula ns, read with Sec on 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and is in due compliance of all the provisions stated therein.
 

(a) TERMS OF REFERENCE: -  
 

1. to allot equity shares of the Company;  
2. e cient transfer of shares; including review of cases for refusal of transfer / 

transmission of shares and debentures; 
3. redressal of shareholder and investor complaints like transfer of shares, non-

receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of dividends etc.; 
4. issue of duplicate / split / consolidated share cer cates; 
5. allotment and lis ng of shares;  

. review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of shares and debentures; 
7. reference to statutory and regulatory authori es regarding investor grievances; 
8. to otherwise ensure proper and  a endance and redressal of investor 

queries and grievances. 
 

(b) COMPOSITION & MEETINGS OF SRC COMMITTEE: - 
 

As on 31st March, 2024, the Stakeholders’ Rela onship Commi ee comprised of Three 
(3) Non-Execu Independent Directors. Three (3) mee ng of the SRC were held on 
17 May, 2023, 17 July, 2023 and 2 February, 2024. 
 
The composition of the SRC Commi ee and the details of mee ngs a ended by its 
members are appearing hereina er: 
 

Name of the Director No. of mee ngs 
a ended 

Mr. Sandeep Shah  3 
Mr. Parshwa Shah   3 
Ms. Priyanka K Gola  3 

 
During the year under review, 3 shareholders’ complaints were received and 3 were 
resolved, resul ng in no shareholders’ complaint pending as end of the nancial year.  
 
Mr. Tejal M Varde, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary of the SRC Commi ee. 
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8. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE 
 

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi ee of the Company is cons tuted in 
line with the provisions of Sec n 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is in due 
compliance of all the provisions stated therein. 
 
The Company has always been mindful of its obliga ns vis-à-vis the communi  it 
impacts and has been pursuing various CSR ac  long before it became mandated 
by law.  
 

 
 
 

(a) TERMS OF REFERENCE: - 
 
The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Commi ee include the 
following: 
 
1. to formulate and recommend to the board of directors, the CSR Policy, indica ng 

the CSR ac s to be undertaken as per Companies Act, 2013, as amended;  
2. to review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the 

ac  to be undertaken;  
3. to monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from me to me   
4. any other ma er as the CSR Commi ee may deem appropriate a er approva l of 

the Board of Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from  to 
. 

 
(b) COMPOSITION & MEETINGS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: - 

 
As on 31st March, 2024, the Corporate Social Responsibility Commi ee (CSR) 
comprised of Three (3) Non-Execu  Independent Directors.  Two (2) mee ngs of the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Commi ee were held on 17.05.2023, 05.02.2024. 
 
The composi on of the Corporate Social Responsibility Commi ee and the details of 
mee ngs a ended by its members are appearing hereina er: 
 
 

Name of the Director No. of mee ngs 
a ended 

Mr. Sandeep Shah  2 
Mr. Parshwa Shah   2 
Ms. Priyanka K Gola  2 

 
During the year the Company is required to be spent Rs 9.3  lakhs. However, the 
Company has spent Rs.71.25 Lakh towards CSR ac . 
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
The Board has cons tuted the Risk Management Commi ee in line with the provisions 
of Regula on 21 of the Lis ng Regula ons, read with Sec on 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and is in due compliance of all the provisions stated therein. 
 

(a) TERMS OF REFERENCE: - 
 
The terms of reference of the Risk Management Commi ee include the following: 
 
1. formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:  

(a)  A framework for iden ca n of internal and external risks speci cally faced 
by the listed en ty, in par cular including nancial, opera onal, sectoral, 
sustainability (par cularly, ESG related risks), informa on, cyber security risks 
or any other risk as may be determined by the Commi ee.  

(b)  Measures for risk mi ga n including systems and processes for internal 
control of iden ed risks.  

(c)  Business c ty plan. 
2. ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to 

monitor and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;  
3. monitor and oversee implementa on of the risk management policy, including 

evalua ng the adequacy of risk management systems;  
4. periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, 

including by considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;  
5. keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its 

discussions, recommenda ns and ac ons to be taken; 
. appointment, removal and terms of remunera on of the Chief Risk O cer (if any) 

shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Commi ee. 
 
(b) COMPOSITION & MEETINGS OF RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: - 

 
As on 31st March, 2024, the Risk Management Commi ee (RMC) comprised of One (1) Non-
Execu ve Independent Directors and Two (2) Execu ve Directors.  Three (3) mee ngs of the 
Risk Management Commi ee were held on 27.07.2023, 30.10.2023 & 05.02.2024. 
 
The composi on of the Risk Management Commi ee and the details of mee ngs a ended by 
its members are appearing hereina er: 
 

Name of the Director Category No. of Mee ngs 
a nded 

Mr. Jagdish Patel 
Chairman 

Execu ve director 3 

Mr. Utkarsh Patel 
Member 

Execu ve Director 3 

Ms. PRIYANKA K GOLA 
Member 

I.N.E.D 3 
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10. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: -  

The details of date, me and loca on of Annual General Mee ngs (AGM) held in last 3 
years and Special Resolu ns passed are as under: - 
 

 
Financial 

Year 
Date & 
Time 

Venue Special – Resolutions passed  

2022-23 22nd 
September, 

2023 

Elite, Nr. Shapath 
Hexa, Opp. Kargil 
Petrol Pump, Nr. 
Sola Over Bridge, 

S.G. Highway, 
Ahmedabad - 380 

0 0 Through 
VC/OAVM 

1. Appointment of M/s. R Kabra & Co 
LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI rm 
Registra on No. 104502W/ W100721) 
as the statutory auditors of the 
company. 
 
2. To appoint Ms. Priyanka Gola as an 
Independent Director of the Company 
for a period of 5 years. 

2021-22 01st 
September, 

2022 

Elite, Nr. Shapath 
Hexa, Opp. Kargil 
Petrol Pump, Nr. 
Sola Over Bridge, 
S.G. Highway, 
Ahmedabad - 380 
0 0 Through 
VC/OAVM 

1. To adopt revised Ar cles of 
Associa n of the Company as per 
companies’ act 2013. 

2020-21 28th 
September, 

2021 

Elite, Nr. Shapath 
Hexa, Opp. Kargil 
Petrol Pump, Nr. Sola 
Over Bridge, S.G. 
Highway, Ahmedabad 
- 380 0 0 Through 
VC/OAVM 

2. Approval for c a on of 
present term of Directorship of Shri. 
Shakarlal Patel Mangaldas as Non-
Execu  Independent Director. 
 

3. Reappointment And Revision In 
Terms Of Remunera on Of Shree 
Jagdish Patel As Managing Director 
Of The Company 
 

4. Reappointment And Revision In 
Terms Of Remunera on Of Shree 
Utkarsh Patel As Execu ve Director 
Of The Company. 
 

5. Reappointment And Revision In 
Terms Of Remunera on Of Smt 
Jyo ka Jagdish Patel As Execu
Director Of The Company. 
 

 Details of Special Resolu on passed last year through postal ballot:  
During the nancial year 2023-24, there is no Special Resolu on passed through Postal 
ballot. 
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11. OTHER DISCLOSURES:  
 

(a) Disclosure of Material Transac ons: - Related Party Transac on:   
 

All transac ons entered into with Related Par  as de ned under the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI (Lis ng Obliga ons & Disclosure Requirement) Regula n, 2015 during 
the nancial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 
pricing basis and do not a ract the provisions of Sec on 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013.  
 
There were no materially signi cant transac ons with related par  during the 

ancial year which were in con ct with the interest of the Company. Suitable 
Disclosure as required by the Accoun ng Standards (AS18) has been made in the notes 
to the Financial Statements in this Annual Report. The Policy on Related Party 
Transac on has been placed on the Company’s website at www.euro7000.com.   

 
(b) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:  
 

In line with Regula on 22 of the Lis ng Regula ns and Sec on 177 of the Act, t he 
Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism for Directors and 
employees to report genuine concerns about instance of unethical behaviour, actual 
or suspected fraud or viola of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Whistle Blower 
Policy is posted on the website of the Company at www.euro7000.com.   
 

During the year under review, no complaint has been received under the Vigil 
Mechanism /Whistle Blower Policy. 
 

(c) Compliance with Lis ng Regula ons:  
 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements under SEBI (Lis ng 
Obliga ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula ons, 2015. There was no Non-
Compliance by the Company and no penal es or strictures were imposed on the 
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any ma er 
related to the capital markets during the F.Y. 2023-2024. 
 

(d) Preven on of Sexual Harassment (POSH) of Women at workplace:  
 

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven on, Prohibi
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Preven on, Prohibi n and Redressal) Rules, 2013, the Company has framed a policy 
on preven on of Sexual Harassment of women at workplace. The Status of complaints 
during FY 2023-24 is as under: - 
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Period Complaints 
Opening as on 01.04.2023 Nil 
Received during  – 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024 Nil 
Disposed of during – 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024 Nil 
Pending as at 31.03.2024 Nil 

   
(e) Accoun ng Treatment: - 

 
In the prepara on of the Financial Statements, the Company has followed the Indian 
Accoun ng Standards no ed pursuant to Companies Indian (Accoun ng Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended from me to ) and the relevant provision of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The signi cant acc ng policies which are consistently 
applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 
(f) Corporate Governance of Subsidiaries: 

 
The Company has no subsidiary. 
 

(g) Cer cate on Corporate Governance:  
 

The Company has obtained a cer cate from the Prac cing Company Secretary 
regarding compliance of condi ns of Corporate Governance prescribed under the 
Lis ng agreement with Stock Exchanges which forms part of this report.   
 

(h) Shareholder’s Informa on:  
 

This Chapter read with the informa on given in the sec on tled General 
Shareholders’ informa n cons tutes the compliance report on Corporate 
Governance. 

 
(i) Code of Conduct:  
 

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for its Directors and designated Senior 
Management Personnel. All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
have agreed to follow compliance of code of conduct. The code has been posted on 
the Company’s website at www.euro7000.com. 
 

(j) Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report:  
 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on Company’s nancial and 
opera  performance, Industry trends etc. is presented as the Separate chapter in 
the Annual Report which forms part of this report. 
 

(k) Insider Trading:  
 

The Company has in place “Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report Trading 
by Insider” and accordingly Company Secretary of the Company closes window for 
trading in Equity Shares of the Company at the end of every quarter in addi on to 
speci c event, if any to comply with said Insider Trading Code.  
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(l) Disclosures regarding Re-appointment of Directors:  

 

As per the Ar cles of Associa  of the Company, one third of the Directors are liable 
to re  by rota on every year and if eligible, they o er themselves for re -elec on by 
the shareholders at the General Mee ng. There is no Alternate Director being 
appointed to the Board. The independent Directors are not liable to re re by rota on. 
 

(m) Transfer of shares to Investor Educa on and Protec on Fund (IEPF):  
 

The provisions related to Investor Educa on and Protec  does not applicable to the 
Company as on the repor ng period. 

 

(n) Immediate Family Member of Director:  
 

Mr. Jagdish Patel, Mrs. Jyo ka Patel and Mr. Utkarsh Patel are immediate family 
members of Directors. 
 

(o) Appointment & Removal of Company Secretary:  
 

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to the approval of 
the Board. 
 

(p) Credit Ra ngs:  
 
The provisions related to the Credit Ra ngs does not apply. 
 

(q) Reminders to Unpaid Dividend:  
 
The Reminder to Shareholders for claiming unpaid dividend will be send as per the 
provisions of the Act. 

 
(r) No Suspension of Securi es:   

 
The Securi  of the Company is not suspended. 
 

(s) Discre onary Requirements:  
 
The table below summarizes compliance status of discre nary requirements of Part E 
of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regula ons, 2015. 
 

S. No. Par ulars Status 
1 Non-Execu ve Chairman’s 

o ce 
The Company does not have a Non-Execu ve Chairman 

2 Shareholders Rights As the quarterly, half yearly and yearly nancial results are 
published in the newspapers and are also posted on the 
website of Stock Exchanges and website of the Company, 
the same are not being sent to the shareholders. 

3 Audit Quali ons The Company’s Financial Statements for FY 2023-24 is 
unmodi ed. 

4 Separate posts of Chairman 
and MD or CEO 

There is a separate post of Chairman, Managing Director / 
CEO.  
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(t) Means of Communica on:  

 
i.   Financials Results:  

 
The quarterly / half yearly / yearly nancial results (unaudited / audited) are normally 
published in Financial Express English and Gujara  Ahmedabad and Mumbai Edi on.  

 
ii. Website Display:  

 
The Company’s o cial news releases, presenta ons to analysts and ins tu onal 
investors, policies, nancial results, all informa on submi ed to stock exchanges, etc. 
are displayed on the Company’s website www.euro7000.com.  

 
iii. Green Ini a ve for Paperless Communica ons:  

 
To support the “Green Ini  in the Corporate Governance”, by the Ministry of 
Corporate A airs (MCA), the Company has sent the so  copies of Annual Report 2023-
24 to those members whose Email IDs were registered with the Depository 
Par cipants (DP) a er informing them suitably. 
 

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:  
 

Annual General Mee ng: 20th September at 10.30 a.m. through Video Conferencing 
/Other Audio Visual Means (VC). 

Financial Year: April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 
Record Date for Dividend: 13th September, 2024 
Dividend Payment Date: A er 27th July, 2024, if approved by the members in the 

ensuing Annual General Mee ng. 
Lis ng Details: Equity Shares are listed on the following Stock Exchanges: 

 
BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai - 400 001. 
 
The Annual Lis ng Fees for the year 2023-24 has been paid 
to the said Stock Exchanges. 

Stock Code: BSE Ltd. – 514448 
ISIN Number: INE577D01013 
Corporate Iden ca on 
Number (CIN): 

L24229GJ1993PLC020879 

Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent: 

Link In me India Private Limited 
C 101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai - 400083.  
Tel: +91 22 4918 270, Fax: +91 22 4918 0 0 

Share Transfer System: Link In  India Private Limited, Mumbai, is Registrar & 
Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The Share Transfer 
and Share Dematerializa  is processed by Link In  India 
Private Limited, Mumbai. The transfer of shares in 
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30th September, 2024 at 10.30 a.m. through Video Conferencing
/Other Audio Visual Means (VC). 

23rd September, 2024
A�er 30th September, 2024, if approved by the members in the
ensuing Annual General Meetng.



 

 

Depository mode need not be approved by the Company.  
Distribu on of Shareholding 
& Category-wise Distribu on: 

Refer Table A & B 

Dematerializa on of shares 
and liquidity: 

As on 31st March, 2024, 100% of the paid-up share capital 
(face value of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) is held in Demat 
form with NSDL and CDSL. 

Mode No. of Equity 
Shares 

% to Total Share 
Capital 

Physical 29043 0.24 
Electronic 
A. NSDL 
B. CDSL 

 
4083309 
7887 48 

 
34.03 

5.73 
Total 12000000 100.00 

 

Outstanding GDR / ADR / 
Warrants or any Conver ble 
Instruments and their likely 
impact on Equity: 

NIL 

Plant Loca ons: Plot No. 873, Village Santej, Tal. Kalol, Dist. Gandhinagar, 
Gujarat.-382 721 

Address for 
Correspondence: 

All enquiries, clarification and correspondence should be 
addressed to the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer: 
 
Mrs. Tejal Varde, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
1104-1112, ELITE, Opp. ShapathHexa, Nr. Sola Over 
Bridge, S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad – 380 060. 
Phone: (02764)286327 Email: info@euro7000.com 

 

Market Price data:  
 

BSE Limited – 31.03.2024 Share Price 

 Open 
      

Apr-23 1278 1634.1 1256.6 1543.85 397956 589699378 
May-23 1558 1610 1352 1411.3 389386 573777324 
Jun-23 1427.9 1428.75 1350 1410.7 252134 352115162 
Jul-23 1424.95 1598.7 1352 1413.9 436818 634059336 
Aug-23 1430 1594.95 1429.95 1513.7 389823 590087029 
Sep-23 1525 1780.05 1516 1627.4 453711 757057703 
Oct-23 1645 1690 1428 1663.5 287168 458402375 
Nov-23 1678 1695 1523.85 1600.3 234616 382536955 
Dec-23 1590 1614 1500 1554.95 266404 416079170 
Jan-24 1555 1590 1450 1502.45 325046 495894365 
Feb-24 1502.45 1514.95 1303.15 1367.2 413570 574921571 
Mar-24 1380 1471 1181.05 1418 334977 439220974 

Month Price High 
Price

Total Turnover 
(Rs.)

No. of 
Shares

Close 
Price

Low 
Price
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Monthly High and Low Indices 
 

 
   

Apr-23 1,209.4  58,793.08 
May-23 3,03 12 1,002.17 
Jun-23 4,7 8.58 2,359.14 
Jul-23 7 19.17 4,83 1  
Aug-23 58.12 4,723. 3 
Sep-23 7,927.23 4,818.37 
Oct-23 ,592.1  3,092.98 
Nov-23 7,0 9.89 3,550.4  
Dec-23 72,484.34 7,149.07 
Jan-24 73,427.59 70,001. 0 
Feb-24 73,413.93 70,809.84 
Mar-24 74,245.17 71 74.42 
 

 
 

Share Performance of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex:

 
 

 

High Low
Sensex 

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Month
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TABLE A 
 

Distribu on of Shareholding: 31.03.2024: - 
 
          Category Shareholders Total Shares of Rs.10/- each 
 Number Percent Number Percent 
1-500     
501-1000     
1001-2000     
2001-3000     
3001- 4000     
4001- 5000     
5001-10000     
10001- & ABOVE     
Total     

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
TABLE B  
Shareholding Pa ern – 31.03.2024: - 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Category No. of 
Shares 

Total Value Percent 

1 Alternate Invst Funds - III 7888 78880 0.0657 
2 Body Corporate - Ltd Liability Partnership 917293 9172930 7.6441 
3 Clearing Members 7832 78320 0.0653 
4 FPI (Corporate) - I 36253 362530 0.3021 
5 Hindu Undivided Family 64236 642360 0.5353 

 Non Resident (Non Repatriable) 57024 570240 0.4752 
7 Non Resident Indians 112980 1129800 0.9415 
8 Other Bodies Corporate 170743 1707430 1.4229 
9 Promoters 6099927 60999270 50.8327 

10 Public 4525824 45258240 37.7152 
  TOTAL : 12000000 120000000 100.0000 

 
**** 
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29730
342
184

71
30
17
52
54

30480

97.54%
1.12%
0.60%
0.23%
0.10%
0.06%
0.17%
0.18%

100.00%

985853
244525
264053
187607
108364

75858
366666

9767074
12000000

8.22%
2.04%
2.20%
1.56%
0.90%
0.63%
3.06%

81.39%
100.00%



 

 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 
 
SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES 
 

I.     Details of the listed en  

1.    Corporate Iden umber  Listed En L24229GJ1993PLC020879 

2.     Listed En
 

JYOTI RESI HESIVES LIMIT
 

3.    Year orpora on
 

17.12.1993
 

4.    Registered  address
 

Surve  873, Opp. and are, 
odpura Road, Santej, Taluka Kalol, 

Gan agar –
 

382 721
 

5.    ministra ve
 

address
 

1104-1112, Elite, r. S a Hexa, . 
Sola Over Bridge, S G. H wa , 

medabad –
 

380 060
 

6.    E-mail
 

in o@euro700 om
  

7.    Tel
 

02764-286327
 

8.    Website
 

ps://www.euro700 om/
 

9.    Fin o epo ng is being done

 

2023-24

 

10.  e e St Ex nge( e es are 
listed

 BSE Limited

 

11.  Paid-up Capital

 

Rs. 12,00,00,000/-

 

(1,20,00,000

 

E
ar /-

  

12.   me  and  onta   details  (t ,  email  
addr     person  w  ma   be on ted in 
ase o es on t e BRSR report

 Tejal Varde, Compan retar  &

 

Compli ,                                                                                               
ne: 02764-286327

                                                                                 

E-mail –

 

in o@euro70 om

  

13.   Rep g boundar -

 

e  d osures under t
report made on a standalone basis (i.e. on or  
en  or on a onsolidated basis (i.e. or  en  
and all en es orm a part its 
onsolidated

 

 statements, taken toge

 

Standalone Basis

 

 

II.       Products/services

 
 

14.     Details of business ac vi s (accoun 9 th turnover)

 

S. No.

 

Descrip

 

of Main Ac vit

 

Descrip  of Business Ac i

 

%

 

of Turnover of 
the en

 
 

1

 

 o  es

 

 and Selling o Wood 
es

 

100%

 

 

15.     Products/Services sold b  the en (accoun 90% h ’ Turnover):

 

S. No.

 

Product/Service

 

NIC Code

 

%

  

of total Turnover 
contributed

 
 

1.

 

ing

 

o es.

 
 

20295

 

100%
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III.  Opera s 
 

16.     Number f l ca wher ts / r pera y are situate 
a  Number ts Number ces T al 

Na l 1 1 2 
t al 0 0 0 

 
17.     Markets serve  by the  

a.       Number f l ca  
a s Number 

Na f States) 13 

t f tries) 0 

  What is the c  e ts as a 
per tage f the t tur ver the 

 

  

 A brief pes f cust s The C  has wide r ge f ret  cust ers which 
ur pr du vari s w -based pr duc  

IV.   yees 9 pay ll 
 

18.    Details as f the al Y  

a.      E ye rkers (i er tly a  

S.  Par rs T al (  Male emale  
 %  (B / A (  % (C  

EMPLOYEES 

1. Per t (  
487 478  9  

2. Other th  Pe t (E 77 77 - - - 

3.
 

T al yees (D + 
 

564
 

555
  

9
  

WORKERS
 

4.
 

Per
 

69
 

59
  

10
  

5.
 

Other th
 
Pe

 
27

 
16

  
11
  

6.
 

T al w ers
 

 + G
 

96
 

75
  

21
  

 

b. 
     

D ere tly ab  Empl yees rker
 

S.
  

Par rs
 

T al
 

(
 

Male
 

emale
 

 
%
  

(B / A
 

(
 

%
 

(C
 

ENTLY
 
ABLED

 
EMPLOYEES

 

1.
 

Per t (
 

0
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

2.
 

Other th  Per t (E
 

0
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

3.
 

T al er tly able
yees

 
(D

 
 

0
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

ENTLY
 
ABLED

 
WORKERS

 

4.
 

Per
 

0
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

5.
 

Other th t (G
 

0
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

6.
 

T al er tly able
w ers

 
G

 0
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
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19.     Par cipa clusi Represe ta f w 
  T al (A) d perce tage e 

(B) % (B ) 

rd ect rs 6 1 16.67% 

Key Ma t Per l
 

3
 

0
 

0%
 

 

20.     T ver
 

rate
 

f
 

per t
 

yees
 

a d
 

w ers
 

            
  

2023-24
     

(T er rate 
 

cu
 

2022-2023
 

 

(T ver rate
 

pre )
 

2021-2022
         

(T er rate  year  

t
 

 prev
 

Male

  

T al

 

Male

  

T al

 

Male

  

T al

 

Per t 
yees

 

16%

 

0%

 

16%

 

17%

 

0%

 

17%

 

15%

 

0%

 

15%

 

Per t 
W ers

 

4%

 

0%

 

4%

 

5%

 

1%

 

6%

 

4%

 

0%

 

4%

 

 

V.      ldi g,

 

Subsidiary

 

a d

 

As ciate

  

(i lu

 

j t

 

v tures)

 
 

21.  

  

(a) i g ubsidiary  as ciate c t v tures

 

S.

 
 

g 

 

subsidiary

 

ciate c
i t ve tures (A)

 icate 

 
 

sidiary

  

As ciate

 

J t V ture

 
%

 

f s ares 
ld by 

listed

 
es t e

 

icated at 
c lu , pa cipat  

s Resp sibility 
v  list ty? 

es

 

Nil

 
 

 

CSR

 

tails

 
 

22. (i) e er CSR is applicable as per se  135 Act, 
2013: es

 

es

 

(ii) Tu er (i  Rs.)

 

( s)

 

26412.00

 

(iii) Net (i  Rs.)

 

 L s)

 

16624.00
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(If  Yes, then 
provide 

web-link for 
grievance 

redress 
policy) 

Number of 
complaints 

ed during 
the year 

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
n 

at close of 
the year 

Remarks Number of 
complaints 

ed during 
the year 

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
n 

at close of 
the year 

Remarks 

Communi s Yes 0 0 - 0 0 

h s://euro7000.co
m/investor-rela ns/

  

Investors 
(other than 
Shareholders)

 

Yes 0 0 - 0 0 

Shareholders
 

Yes
 

10
 

0
 

-
 

10
 

0
 

Employees 
and Workers

 Yes
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

Customers
 

Yes
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

Value Chain
 

Partners
 Yes

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

Other (please 
specify)

 -
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

 

24.     Overview of the en ty’s material responsible business conduct issues
 

Material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and  social  
ma ers 

 

that  present  a  risk  or  an  opportunity  to  your  business, ra nale  for  iden ying  the  same,  
approach  to  adapt  or  mi ate  the  risk  along-with  it ncial implica s

 

S. 
No.

 
Material            

issue 
iden

 Indicate 
whether risk 

or opportunity 
(R/O)

 

Ra nale for iden fying the risk 
/ opportunity

 
In case of risk, approach to 

adapt or m ate

 
Financial 

implica ns 
of the risk or 
opportunity 

(Indicate 
posi ve or 
nega ve

 

implica ns)

 

1

 

Corporate 
governance

 

and risk 
management

 
Opportunity

 

To enhance corporate

 

governance prac s by

 

establishing board-level

 

s. The Company's

 

directors oversee

 

management 
i s

 

to a ely contribute

 

to the enhancement of

 

shareholder value.

 
 
 

-

  

Pos e

 

 
 

   
 

 

  

VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

 

23.   Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the Na nal Guidelines on 
Responsible Business Conduct:

 

Stakeholder

 

group from

 

whom

 

complaint is 
received

 
Grievance 
Redressal 

Mechanism 
in Place 
(Yes/No)

 
FY 2023-24

 

Current Financial Year

 

FY 2022-23

 

Previous Financial Year

 

105



 

 
2 Management 

of 
hazardous 
chemicals 

Risk Proper handling of hazardous 
chemicals is esse to reduce 
health and safety risks and lower 
environmental impacts. 

 

We understand the importance 
of reducing our carbon footprint 
and take our responsibility to 
the environment seriously. Our 
company is co d to 
implem  sustainable 
pr s and con ally strives 
to reduce energy c on 
through the ado  of new 
technologies.

 

Nega e 

3
 

Environment
 

Opportunity
 

The Circular Economy model of 
produ on and c  
emphasize

 
and promote the 

 
The Company has

 
taken 

several a ves
 

to
 

reduce the impact
 

of GHG 

Nega e
 

reuse, refurbishment, and 
recycling of materials and 
products already in existence. 
Transi to circular economy 
can reduce the material 
c  during the 
produ on. 

emissions by adop  
measures on renewable 
energy sources, water 
redu on/conserv 
and waste reduc 

 The Company has 

established systems and 

processes to monitor 

emerging regula 

incidents, and
 

developments, and to
 

assess their applicability
 

for compliance purposes.
 

4
 

Plas
 

Packaging
 Risk

 
The regulatory changes in

 
Plas

Waste Management
 

Rules 
requires-

 
 

• Reduce virgin plas
 

c  by including
 

recycled plas c in plas
 

packaging.
 

 

• Recycle & Reuse the

 

plas  
packaging that is

 

put into market.

 

The Company is taking
 

several ini s
 

including -
 

 
To op ize the

 
packaging 

and reduce
 

virgin plas c 
usage.

 
 

To u ize Post Consumer
 

Recycled (PCR) plas s
 

in 
packaging to promote

 

circularity.

 
 

To reuse rigid 

 

packaging.

 

Nega e
 

1.

 

5

 

5

 
Occupa
health and

 

safety

 Risk

 

The Company’s opera

 

has 
inherent health

 

and safety

 

hazards.

 

Proper process safety

 

management and controls

 

are 
required to eliminate

 

/ minimise 
any poten

 

health and safety

 

hazards/ risks.

 

The Company is

 

co ed to 
the

 

Occupa ealth &

 

Safety of all across its

 

value 
chain with a goal

 

of ‘Zero Harm’.

 

Nega e

 

6

 

Community 
development

 
Opportunity

 

The Company is a

 

believer in 
the inclusion

 

of the community in

 

which it operates, thereby

 

providing direct economic

 

and 
social growth for all

 

its 
stakeholders.

 

 

Pos e
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES  
This sec n is aimed at helping businesses nstrate the structures, p es and p cesses put in 
place t wards ad p e NGRBC Principles and C re Elements. 

Disc re 

Ques  
P 

1 
P 

2 
P 

3 
P 

4 
P 

5 
P 

6 
P 

7 
P 

8 
P 

9 

P licy and management pr cesses
 

1.    
 

a.   Whether   y ur en ty’s   
l licie er each principle and 

its e elements e NGRBCs. 
(Y )

 

Yes
 

 

b.  Has the p cy been appr ed by 
the B d? (Yes/N Yes 

 

c. Web Lin e P cies  a ailable
 

h s://euro7000.com/investor-r ons/  
 

2.   Whether   the   en ty   has 
translated   the licy int  pr dures. 
(Yes / N

 Yes
 

 

3.   D  the enlisted p cies extend t
y ur alue chain partners? (Y )

 

Yes
 

 

4.    Name   the  na al  and  
interna al

 

s/

 

ce ns/

 

labels/ standards (e.g. F t

    

Stewardship    uncil,    Fairtrade, 
est Alliance, Trustea) standards 

(e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS) ad ted 
by y

 

en ty and mapped t each 
principle.

 

 

5.    Sp  mmitments,  g als  and  

   

targets set by the en ty with de ed 
elines, i y.

 
Our organiza understands the tance of Se benchmarks 
to measure rogress in a aining all of the NGRBC. we 

ge to t into on a robust and e t ESG strategy that 
guarantees sustainability and generates

 

las g value for all 
stakeholders. We are comm ed to im roving our ESG and 
outcomes, and we eagerly an te sharing our advancements in 
the future.

 

6.    P ance     the      
against   the  mmitments,  
g als  and  targets a g-with  s  
in  case  the  same  are

 

t met.

 

NA
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7.     Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highligh  ESG related 
challenges, targets and achievements (listed en has xibil  regarding the placement of this 
disclosure) 

 

At Jy Resins and Adhesives Limited, responsible business pr  form the core of our strategic and 
business opera As one of the leading wood-based adhesives, our emphasis is on consciously providing 
sustainable adhesive solu  
 

Propelled by our ethos of crea g sustainable solu , our constant e ort is directed towards maintaining 
the highest health and safety, quality and environmental standard We understand that responsible 
business pr  are crucial for long-term success of the organisa  
 

Our consistent e ort is to align our business pr ces with the United Na s sustainable development 
goals for manufacturing responsibly and sustainably As a responsible organisa on, we engrained c al 
areas such as human rights, labour

 
interests, environmental responsibility and an -c  in es in 

our pr  The core principles followed in our business opera  are based on the 5Rs -
 

recycling, 
replacement, r on, renewables, and restora Apart from our green planta a e and water 
harves  measures, our organisa on has also registered for the Extended Producer Responsibility 
program, which showcases our dedicated e orts towards e e management of plas st

 
 

Moreover, we place the utmost importance on the health and safety of employ We conduct regular 
internal and external audits to ensure strict compliance with relevant regula  We are also proud to be 
honoured by the Indian Chemical Council with a 'Responsible Care' c a o

 
 

We mly believe in the principles of Corporate Governance which focusses on integrity, transparency and 
accountability for sustainable success in the longer

 
term For the be erment of the community, we a ely 

cipate in CSR s, including con to organiza such as Gujarat Cancer Society and 
NGOs backing the good cau

 
 

We will remain steadfast in our commitment to make meaningful contrib ons to the environment, 
society, and governance in future, as we strive for sustainable progress and impac

 
 

8.   Details of the highest authority 
responsible for implementa   and  
oversight  of  the Business Responsibility 
policy (ies).

 

 
Mr Utkarsh

 
Patel, Managing Director

 

9.   Does    the en ty    have a

 

speci d

 

Com ee    of the Board/    Director 
responsible    for decision    making on

 

sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, 
provide details.

 

The Company has set-up various Com ees of the Board of 
Directors, and of Senior Exe es to over

 

sustainability-
relate dated issues such as Audit Com ee, Risk 
Management Com ee, Stakeholders Grievance 
Com ee, Corporate Social Responsibility C

 
 

10. Details of

 

Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

 

Subject for 
Review

 Indicate whether review was 
undertaken by Director

 

/ Comm ee   
of the Board

 

/

 

Any other Commi ee

 
Frequency

 

(Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/ Any other

 

–

  

please specify)

 
  

P

 

1

 P

 

2

 P

 

3

 P

 

4

 P

 

5

 P

 

6

 P

 

7

 P

 

8

 P

 

9

 P

 

1

 P

 

2

 P

 

3

 P

 

4

 P

 

5

 P

 

6

 P

 

7

 P

 

8

 P

 

9

 

Performance     
against

 

above 
policies  and 
follow up

 

on

 

 
 

Com ee of the Board

 

 
 

Quarterly
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7.     Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highligh  ESG related 
challenges, targets and achievements (listed en has xibil  regarding the placement of this 
disclosure) 

 

At Jy Resins and Adhesives Limited, responsible business pr  form the core of our strategic and 
business opera As one of the leading wood-based adhesives, our emphasis is on consciously providing 
sustainable adhesive solu  
 

Propelled by our ethos of crea g sustainable solu , our constant e ort is directed towards maintaining 
the highest health and safety, quality and environmental standard We understand that responsible 
business pr  are crucial for long-term success of the organisa  
 

Our consistent e ort is to align our business pr ces with the United Na s sustainable development 
goals for manufacturing responsibly and sustainably As a responsible organisa on, we engrained c al 
areas such as human rights, labour

 
interests, environmental responsibility and an -c  in es in 

our pr  The core principles followed in our business opera  are based on the 5Rs -
 

recycling, 
replacement, r on, renewables, and restora Apart from our green planta a e and water 
harves  measures, our organisa on has also registered for the Extended Producer Responsibility 
program, which showcases our dedicated e orts towards e e management of plas st

 
 

Moreover, we place the utmost importance on the health and safety of employ We conduct regular 
internal and external audits to ensure strict compliance with relevant regula  We are also proud to be 
honoured by the Indian Chemical Council with a 'Responsible Care' c a o

 
 

We mly believe in the principles of Corporate Governance which focusses on integrity, transparency and 
accountability for sustainable success in the longer

 
term For the be erment of the community, we a ely 

cipate in CSR s, including con to organiza such as Gujarat Cancer Society and 
NGOs backing the good cau

 
 

We will remain steadfast in our commitment to make meaningful contrib ons to the environment, 
society, and governance in future, as we strive for sustainable progress and impac

 
 

8.   Details of the highest authority 
responsible for implementa   and  
oversight  of  the Business Responsibility 
policy (ies).

 

 
Mr Utkarsh

 
Patel, Managing Director

 

9.   Does    the en ty    have a

 

speci d

 

Com ee    of the Board/    Director 
responsible    for decision    making on

 

sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, 
provide details.

 

The Company has set-up various Com ees of the Board of 
Directors, and of Senior Exe es to over

 

sustainability-
relate dated issues such as Audit Com ee, Risk 
Management Com ee, Stakeholders Grievance 
Com ee, Corporate Social Responsibility C

 
 

10. Details of

 

Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

 

Subject for 
Review

 Indicate whether review was 
undertaken by Director

 

/ Comm ee   
of the Board

 

/

 

Any other Commi ee

 
Frequency

 

(Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/ Any other

 

–

  

please specify)

 
  

P

 

1

 P

 

2

 P

 

3

 P

 

4

 P

 

5

 P

 

6

 P

 

7

 P

 

8

 P

 

9

 P

 

1

 P

 

2

 P

 

3

 P

 

4

 P

 

5

 P

 

6

 P

 

7

 P

 

8

 P

 

9

 

Performance     
against

 

above 
policies  and 
follow up

 

on

 

 
 

Com ee of the Board

 

 
 

Quarterly
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Compliance           
with statutory 
requirements of   
relevance to the 
principles, and, 

n of  
any non-
compliances

 

 
 
 
 

Directors 

 
 
 
 

Quarterly 
 

 

11.  Has the en ty 
carried out 
independent 
assessment/ 
evalua on of the 
working of its policies 
by    an external    
agency? (Yes/No).  If   
yes, provide name of 
the

 
agency.

 

P
 

 
1

 P
 

 
2

 P 
 

3
 P 

 

4
 P 

 

5
 P

 
 

6
 P

 
 

7
 P

 
 

8
 

 

P
 

 
9

 

External rms were engaged to review the systems and procedures related to safety 
and environment.

 

 

12.  If answer to ques  (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be 
stated:

 

Ques

 

P 1

 

P 2

 

P 3

 

P 4

 

P 5

 

P 6

 

P 7

 

P 8

 

P 9

 

The  en ty  does  not  consider  the  Principles 
material to its business (Yes/No)

 
  
  
 

Not applicable

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

The   is  not  at  a  stage  where  it  is  in  a 
posi on   to   formulate   and   implement   the 
policies on speci  principles (Yes/No)

 

The   en    does   not   have   the   ancial 
or/human and technical resources available for the 
task (Yes/No)

 

It  is planned to  be  done in the next  cial year 
(Yes/No)

 

Any other reason (please specify)

 
 

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

 
 

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that

 

is

 

Ethical,

 

Transparent

 

and Accountable.

 
 

Essen Indicators

 

1.   Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the 
ncial year:

 

Segment

 

Total number

 

of 
training and

 

awareness 
programmes held

 Topics/ principles covered under the training and its 
impact

 

%

 

age of persons in

 

respec e category

 

covered

 

by

 

the

 

awareness

 

programmes

 

Board of 
Directors

 

and Key 
Managerial 
Personnel

 
8

 

Business opera

 

/

 

performance, new business 
in es, regulatory, risk indicators

 

/

 

a  
plans, safety, ESG

 

Ma ers,

 

Compliances, and legal 
cases,

 

business ethics and values, Code of 
Conduct, human rights, etc.

 
100%
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Employees 
other than 
BoD and 
KMPs 

50  Behavioural Training (Skill development, personal 
interpersonal rela ip) 

Fu l Training (Knowledge g, 
emerg  response, training, energ  

on, POSH, uman rig ts, regulator  
ompli e, supp ain management) 

Health & Safety (Hazop, JSA, re-  et 

80% 

Workers 40  General safe awareness, PPE use, emerg  
preparedness, e training, al safet  
training, m training, risk management, 
good working pr e, et 

95% 

 
1. Details of / pen s /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ se lement amount paid in 

proceedings (by the en or by directors / KMPs) with regulators / law enforcement agencies/ 
judicial ins ns, in the ncial year, in the following format: 

 
Monetary 

 
 

NGRBC 
Principle 

 

Name of the 
regulatory / 
enforcement 

agencies / judicial 
ins ns 

Amount 
(In INR) 

 

Brief of the Case 
 

Has an 
appeal been 
preferred?  
(Yes/No) 

Se lement - NA 0 - - 
Compounding fee - NA 0 - - 
Non-Monetary 
  NGRBC 

Principle 
Name of the regulatory / 

enforcement agencies / judicial 
ins s 

Brief of the Case Has an appeal been  
preferred? (Yes/No) 

Imprisonment - NA - - 
ment - NA - - 

 
3.   Details of the instances disclosed in Ques  2 above, details of the Appeal/Revision preferred in 

cases where monetary or non-moneta s been appealed. 
Case Details Name of the regulatory/ enforcement agencies/ judicial ins ns 
  NA 

 
4.    Does the en ve an an -corrup n or an -bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if 

available, provide a web-link to the policy. 
 

  Compan does not ve a dedi ated - or -brib  , its opera ons are 
governed as per  Code of Con  of  Compan e do ment is appli able to all  emplo es 
of t e Compan o must abide b e values o e Comp 
 

 
5.   Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary a was taken by any 

law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ co n: 
 FY 2023-24 

(Current Financial Year) 
FY 2022-23 

(Previous Financial Year) 
Directors 0 0 
KMPs 0 0 
Employees 0 0 
Workers

 
0

 
0
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6.   Details of complaints with regard to con ct of interest: 
 FY  2023-24 

(Current Financial Year) 
FY 2022-23 

(Previous Financial Year) 
 Number Remarks Number Remarks 

Number of complaints received in rela n to  

issues of Con ict of Interest of the Directors 0 - 0 - 

Number of complaints received in rela  to 
issues of Con ict of Interest of the KMPs 0 - 0 - 

 

7.    
   

Provide details of any correc ve ac aken or underway on issues related t s / penal s / 
 taken by

 
regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial in tu on cases of corrup  

and con cts of interest.
 

Fines
 

Nil
 

P
 

Nil
 

aken by regula rs
 

Nil
 

Law enf cemen  agencies
 

Nil
 

Judicial ins
 

Nil
 

 

 

PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a
 

manner that is sustainable and safe
 

 

Essen Indicators
 

1.  
      

Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in spe c technologies
 

to improve 
the environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex 
investments

  

made by the en espec vely.
 

  

Current Financial 
Year

 

2023-24

     Previous Financial

 

Year

 

2022-23

 Details of improvements in 

 

environmental and social impacts

 

R&D

 

0

 

0

 

-

 

Capex

 

0

 

0

 

-

 
 

2.   

 

a. 

    

Does the en y have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? 
(Yes/No)       

 

  

Yes

 

b.   

 

If yes hat percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

 

N licable

 

3.   

 

Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products 
for

 

reusing recycling and disposing  at  the  end  of  lif or  (a)  
Plas cs  (including  packaging)  (b)  E-waste  (c) Hazardous waste 
and (d) other waste.

 
A)

 

Plas  –The EPR c a  
ensures   c y akes 
r nsibil y

 

f r las  
was e genera ed by  
and aging. 

 
 

B) E-

 

Was e -

 

E-was e fr m 
m any’s es ablishmen s are 

c ed and   
ugh

 

PCB ed 
v s.

 
 

C)

 

ar Was e - ard us 
was e fr manuf  u  
and

 

war uses is ed
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through PCB authorized 
hazardous waste recyclers/co-
processors/land ll facil es. 

 
D) Other Waste: Other wastes 
are disposed through 
approved waste management 
agencies. 

 
4.     Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable                

to the en ’s a i (Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste 
collec plan is in line with the Extended Producer 
Responsibility (EPR) plan submi ed to Pollu  Control Boards? 
If not, pr ide steps taken to address the same. 

Yes 
 

Recently the company have 
completed EPR registra n for 
plas aste.   

 

PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including 
those in their alue chains 
 

Essen Indicators 

1.   a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees: 

Category
 

%
 

of employees co ered by
 

Total 
(A)

 Health insurance
 

Accident 
insurance

 Maternity 
bene

 Paternity 
Bene
 Day Care 

facil s
 

Number
 

 
(B)
 %(B/A)

 
Numb

er 
 

(C)
 

%(C/A)
 

Number 
 

(D)
 %(D/A)

 
Number 

 

(E)
 %( E/A)

 
Number
 

 
(F)

 %(F/A)
 

Permanent employees
 

Male
 

478
 

425
 

87%
 

478
 

98%
 

00
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

Female
 

09
 

09
 

2%
 

09
 

2%
 

00
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

Total
 

487
 

434
 

89%
 

487
 

100%
 

00
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

Other than Permanent employees
 

Male
 

77
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Female
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Total
 

77
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:
 

Category
 

%
 

of workers co red by
 

Total 
(A)

 Health 
insurance

 Accident 
insurance

 Maternity 
bene

 Paternity 
Bene
 Day Care facili es

 

Number
 

 
(B)
 %

 
(B/A)

 
Number 

 

(C)
 %(C/A)

 
Number 

 

(D)
 %(D/A)

 
Number 

 

(E)
 %

 

(E/A)
 Number

 
 

(F)
 %(F/A)

 

Permanent workers
 

Male
 

59
 

59
 

100%
 

59
 

100%
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Female
 

10
 

10
 

100%
 

10
 

100%
 

0
 

0%
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Total
 

69
 

69
 

100%
 

69
 

100%
 

0
 

0%
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Other than Permanent workers
 

Male
 

16
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Female
 

11
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Total
 

27
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

0
 

0%
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
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2.   Details of re t be , for Cur ial Year d Previous F  Year. 
 FY 2023-24 

Curre t F  Year 
FY 2022-23 

Previous Fi ial Year 

No. of 
ployees 

ered as a    
%
 

of  total 
ployees

 

No. of 
workers 

ered as a 
%

 
of total 

workers
 

Dedu ed d 
deposited 
with the 
authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)
 

No.         of 
ployees 

ered as a    
%

 
of total 
ployees
 

No. of 
workers 

ered as 
a % of total 

workers
 

Dedu ed d 
deposited 
with the 
authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)
 

PF
 

100%
 

-
 

Yes
 

100%
 

-
 

Yes
 

Gratuity
 

100%
 

-
 

Yes
 

100%
 

-
 

Yes
 

ESI
 

0
 

0
 

NA
 

0
 

0
 

NA
 

Others –
 

Please 
S y

 0
 

0
 

NA
 

0
 

0
 

NA
 

 

3.   A ibility of workpla es
 

Are the pr ises / o  of the  essible 
to d e tly abled e yees a  workers, as per 
the require ts of the Rights of Perso  with 
Disabi s 2016? If ot, whether a y steps are 
bei g take y the ty  this regard.

 

No,
 

company is planning to conduct an assessment 
to understand the changes required. These 
recommended changes will be implemented in a 
phase-wise manner. 

 
 

The Company Promotes inclusiveness in society. 
Company promotes the hiring of erently abled 
employees and place them in suitable working 
con

 
 

4. Does the  have  equal oppo  poli y 
as per the Rights of Perso with Disabi s  
ask2016? If so, provide a web-li k to the poli y.

 Yes

 
 

The Company

 

is c ed to providing equal 
employment es to all its employees and 
qu applicants without discrimina on on the 
basis of race, caste, religion, color, ancestry, marital 
status, sex, age, na onality, disability, and veteran 
status.

 

The Company’s equal employment 
opportunity policy applies to all aspects of 
employment, including recruitment, hiring, 
promo ons, transfers, compensa ene  and 
termina

 
 

5.   Re o work d Ret ates o t

 

y d workers that took par tal leave.

 

er

 

Per yees

 

Per t workers

 

Retur  to work rate

 

Ret  rate

 

Retur  to work rate

 

Ret  rate

 

Male

 

5%

 

5%

 

4%

 

4%

 

F

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

Total

 

5%

 

5%

 

4%

 

4%

 
 

06. 

   

Is there a h is available to re eive d redress grieva for the follow g ategories of 
y d worker? If yes, give details of the  i  brief.

 

  

Yes/No

 

(If Yes,

 

the give details of the

 

brief)
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Permanent Workers The factory establishment and other company-owned facil  have a 
grievance redressal mechanism in place. This mechanism is a formal process 
that enables employees or workers to report any issues or concerns they may 
have in a safe and secure manner. 

 

Employees or workers can report grievances in person, via email or le er, or 
through an online portal. Once a grievance is reported, the company's HR 
team inv ates the issue and takes necessary ac to resolve it. The 
company ensures that the employees or workers are updated on the status of 
their grievances and the ac ken to address them. 

Other than Permanent 
Workers

 The company recognizes the importance of providing employees with a safe 
and secure environment to voice their concerns. In add n to the formal 
grievance redressal mechanism, the company has also established a whistle

 

blower system that allows workers to report any complaints they may have.
 

 

The whistle
 

blower system provides a dedicated email and toll-free number 
through which workers can report their concerns. The system is designed to 
ensure the con den ty and anonymity of the whistle

 
blower, and there is 

no fear of retalia on or discrimina
 

Permanent Employees
 

In add to the grievance redressal mechanism,
 

the company has 
established a repo ng mechanism that enables employees to report any 
actual or possible viola ons of the company's code of conduct.

 
 

Other than Permanent 
Employees

 Apart from the formal grievance redressal mechanism, the company has also 
established other channels through which employees can report their 
grievances.

  
 

At the manufacturing facility, employees who are not permanent can directly 
report their grievances to the admin and industrial rela  personnel. This 
in e ensures that every employee, regardless of their employment 
status, can report their concerns and that their complaints will be taken 
seriously.

 

Ad y, employees can raise their grievances through email or 
other pla orms. The company ensures that all grievances received through 

erent pla orms are directed to the r e fu n owner and 
resolved through the respe ustrial rela n and admin fun ons.

 

 

7.   Membership of employees and worker in associa on(s) or Unions recognised by the listed en y:

 

Category

 

FY

 

2023-24

 

(Current Financial Year)

 
FY 

 

2022-23

 

(Previous Financial Year)

 

Total 
employees

 

/ workers in 
respec e 

 

category (A)

 

No. of employees / 
workers in

 

respec ve 

 

category, who are

 

part of

 

associa (s)

 

or Union (B)

 

%

 

(B/A)

 
Total 

employees

 

/   workers

 
 

in respec e 

 

category (C)

 

No. of

 

employees

 

/

 

workers in

 

respec ve

 

category, who

 

are 
part of

 

associa (s) 
or Union(D)

 

%

 

(D/C)

 

Total

 

Permanent 

 

Employees

 
0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

-

 

Male

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

-

 

Female

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

Total Permanent 

 

Workers

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

-

 

Male

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

-

 

Female

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0
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8.   Details of training given to employees and workers:
 

Category
 

FY 
 

2023-24
 

Current Financial Year
 FY 2022-23

 

Previous Financial Year
 

Total 
(A)
 On   Health and 

safety measures
 On Skill 

upgrada n
 Total 

(D)
 On   Health and 

safety measures
 On Skill  

upgrada n
 

No.
 

(B)
 

%
 

(B/A)
 

No.
 

(C)
 

%
 

(C/A)
 

No.
 

(E)
 

%
 

(E/D)
 

No.
 

(F)
 

%
 

(F/D)
 

Employees
 

Male
 

340
 

200
 

58.82%
 

125
 

36.76%
 

345
 

180
 

53.62%
 

95
 

27.53%
 

Female
 

5
 

5
 

100%
 

2
 

40.00%
 

5
 

5
 

100%
 

5
 

100%
 

Total
 

345
 

205
 

59.42%
 

130
 

37.38%
 

350
 

185
 

52.85%
 

100
 

28.57%
 

 

Workers
 

Male

 

59

 

59

 

100%

 

42

 

50.00%

 

79

 

55

 

69.62%

 

23

 

29.11%

 

Female

 

10

 

10

 

100%

 

15

 

71.43%

 

18

 

10

 

55.55%

 

10

 

55.55%

 

Total

 

69

 

69

 

100%

 

57

 

54.29%

 

97

 

65

 

67.01%

 

33

 

34.02%

 
 

9.   Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:

 

Category

 

FY 2023-24

 

Current Financial Year

 
FY 2022-23

 

Previous Financial Year

 

Total (A)

 

No. (B)

 

%

 

(B / A)

 

Total (C)

 

No. (D)

 

%

 

(D / C)

 

Employees

 

Male

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Female

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Total

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Workers

 

Male

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Female

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Total

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 
 

10. Health and safety management system:

 

a. Whether an occupa nal health and 
safety management system has been 
implemented by the en y? (Yes/ No). 

 

If yes, the coverage such system?

 Yes, Occupa nal Health and Safety Management System 
(OHSMS) has been implemented and integrated int  all 
business pr cesses. The c mpany is c ed t ensuring the 
safety and well-being its empl yees and has established a 
r t OHSMS t  achieve this g

 

b. What are the processes used to 
iden y work-related hazards and 
assess risks on a rou e and non-
ro  basis by the en

 The safety and well-being f empl yees are  utm st 
rtance in any w rkplace. In rder t  ensure a safe w  

envir ment, it is necessary t  iden y p en hazards and 
risks. Several pr cesses can be used t  iden y w rk-related 
hazards and risks, s f which ar .

 
 

One such pr ess is HAZOP r Hazard in Opera which is

 

a 
systema assessment c nducted at a plant site t  ide y and 
address ten hazards. It is c nducted b th internally and 
externally by experts in the  t  ensure all p ten hazards 
ar  and addressed.

 
 
 

An ther pr cess is HIRA r Hazard Iden a and Risk 
Assessment, which is c ucted at a site t  understand and 
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42
15
57

50.00%
71.43%
54.29%



 

 
 
 

iden y poten  risks t need to be mi ted. This process 
invo ves iden yin poten ds  ev  the 

verity o ny poten m 
 

JSA or Job ety An sis is other proc re t c  be 
to iden y h ds d sess risks. This process is 

inte r ted into the work pro re, tr  is provided to 
emp oyees to e they nders  the poten  ds 

ted with their work d how to mi te them. 
 

c. Whether you have processes for 
workers to report the work related 
hazards and to remove themselves from 
such risks. (Y/N) 

Yes 

d. Do the employees/worker of the en  
have access to non-occupa al medical 
and healthcare services? (Yes/ No) 

Yes 
 
 
 
 

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format: 

Safety Incident/Number Category FY 2023-24 

Current Financial Year 
FY 2022-23 

Previous Financial Year 

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR)  

(per one million-person hours worked) Employees 0 0 

Workers 0.10 0.17 

Total recordable work-related injuries
 

Employees
 

0
 

0
 

Workers
 

0
 

0
 

No. of fatal s
 

Employees
 

0
 

0
 

Workers
 

0
 

0
 

High consequence work
 

Employees
 

1
 

0
 

Workers
 

0
 

0
 

 

12. Describe the measures taken by the 
en  to ensure a safe and healthy 
workplace.

 
The c y is comm ed to the ety o peo  

y, d t s in the w e. To eve this o  
we ve i mented  comprehensive ety str t  t 
in eerin contro oper proc res, e work 
pr h d monitorin si  

 

Key componen o ety str t de:
 

 

1.
 

 Contr  We ve i mented e  
contro to prevent the r  o chemic rom y 
cont ent. These contr s serve  essen ier to 
protect e yees d the environment rom poten

ds.
 

 

2.
 

Oper  Pr res d e Work Pr es: The 
co y dev oped st ed oper  
proc res d e work pr or process ts to 

e orm d e oper These ide es 
promote consistent or e 

 risk o ents or incidents.
 

 

3.
 

rd Monitorin  Com : M t  d 
process ds re con o monitored, reported, d 
c ted thro h v This in o  
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sharing ensures that all employees are aware of poten  
risks and can take necessary precau ons. 

 

4. Risk Analysis: Di erent health and safety management 
approaches and models are ized for risk analysis, such 
as Quan a e Risk Assessment (QRA), Hazard and 
Operability Study (HAZOP), workplace monitoring, and 
others. These methods help iden y poten risks and 
de elop appropriate m ga trategies. 

 

5.
 

Periodic Audits and Monitoring: The e eness of safety 
systems is e aluated through periodic audits, workplace 
monitoring, industrial hygiene sur eys, noise monitoring, 
and ergonomic sur eys. These assessments ensure that 
safety measures are working as intended and iden y areas 
for impr ement.

 
 

By implemen g this comprehensi e safety strategy, the 
company demonstrates its commitment to pr g a safe and 
healthy work en ronment for all employees, while 
safeguarding machinery and materials from poten hazards.

 

13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:
 

  

FY 2023-24
 

(Current Financial Year)
 FY 2022-23

 

(Previous Financial Year)
 

Filed 
during

 

the 
year

 Pending

 

n at 
the end

 

of year

 Remarks

 

Filed 
during the 

year

 Pending

 

n at  
the end

 

of year

 Remarks

 

Working Condi ns

 

0

 

0

 

-

 

0

 

0

 

-

 

Health & Safety

 

0

 

0

 

-

 

0

 

0

 

-

 
 

14. Assessments for the year:

 
  

%

 

of your plants and o es that were assessed (by en y or 
statutory author s or third par )

 

Health and safety prac ces

 

100%

 

Working Condi ns

 

100%

 
 

15. Provide details

 

of any

 

corr ve 
  

taken  or  underway  to  
address  safety-related incidents (if 
any) and on sign nt risks / 
concerns arising from assessments of 
health & safety pra and working 
co s.

 

 

As part of our commitment to maintaining a safe and healthy work 
en ironment, the company con y s es to impr e 
workplace cond ns and implement onal controls. This 
ongoing process focuses on iden ying sig ant risks related to 
working c ons and taking appropriate measures to ate 
them.

 

Some of

 

the key strategies employed include:

 

1.

 

Engineering Controls: The company has installed arious 
engineering controls

 

de ices such as sprinkler

 

at the loca  
which are e prone. These controls are designed to manage 
and ate iden risks, ensuring a safer workplace for 
employees.

 

By focusing on con al impr ment and implemen g

 

add controls, the company remains dedicated to pro g a 
safe, healthy, and pr e work

 

en ironment for all employees.
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PRINCIPLE  4:  Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders 
 

Essen Indicators 

1.   Describe the processes for iden ying key stakeholder groups of the en . 

The relevant stakeholder iden a exer has been arried out by senior management in onsulta on 
with board members and erent departments. Based on the exer  arried out, the ompany has 

ed its key stakeholders to understand their ex a  and erns. The pro  of stakeholder 
engagement involves iden fying key internal and external stakeholders followed by analysing the i  of 

stakeholders’ groups on our business and e versa. The key stakeholder for the organisa des 
employees and workers, Investors and shareholders, Government and regulators, vendors, tomers and 
dealers, bank and  ins and the ommunity.  The ompany owledges all stakeholders for 
their support in helping the ompany to deliver its strategies and eve its targets. The ompany values 
the input and f  provided by stakeholders and seeks to maintain strong rela s with them.

 

2.   List stakeholder
  

groups  iden   as  key  for  your  en   and  the  frequency  of engagement with 
each stakeholder group.

 

Stakeholder 

 

Group

 Whether 
iden

 
  

as Vulnerable &

 
 

Marginalized 
Group

 

(Yes/No)

 

Channels  of communica

 

(Email,

 

SMS, Newspaper,

 

Pamphlets,

 

Adve sement,

 

Community Mee ngs,

 

No  
Board, Website),

 

Other

 

Frequency of 

 

engagement 
(Annually/Half 

yearly/Quarterly/

 

others-please

 

specify

 

Purpose and scope of 
engagement

 

including  
key topics and concerns  

raised

 

during  such 
engagement

 

Employee and 
Workers

 
No

 

Dir  other 
a

 

ms, mee g 
email, e board.

 

Ongoing

 

Company follows an 
open-door

 

, 
training  
development, 
perfor
management, et

 

Investors and 
Shareholders

 
No

 

E-mail, newspaper, 
adv ment, website, 
Annual General Mee s,

 

es to st k 
ex ges and investor 
mee all onfer

 

Need based and 
Quarterly

 

alls

 Informa out 
business and statutory 
approvals

 

Government 
and Regulators

 

No

 

E-mail, le ers, 
representa  mee gs, 
et

 Need based

 

Compli

 

approvals, permissions,

 

et

 

Vendors

 

No

 

E-mail, mee gs

 

Frequent and 
need based

 

Supply

 

of material

 

ser es

 

Customers and 
Dealers

 

No

 

Mee

 

Frequent and 
need based

 

Informing them about

 

prod  of the 
ompany, f k, et

 

Banks and 
Financial 
ins s

 
No

 

E-mail, le ers, 
representa  mee gs, 
et

 
Frequent and 
need based

 

Finan equirements 
and tr

 

Community/

 

Society

 

No

 

Dir or through CSR

 

implementa on

 

Frequent and 
need based

 

Edu a
empowerment, 
health, infras e, 
onserva on, 

al safety, et 
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PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights 
 

Essen Indicators 
1.   Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of 
the en , in the following format: 
Category FY 2023-24 

Current Financial Year 
FY 2022-23 

Previous Financial Year 

Total (A) No. employees 
workers covered (B) 

% (B / A) Total (C) No. employees 
workers covered (D) 

% (D / C) 

Employees 

Permanent 345 345 100% 350 350 100% 

Other than permanent - - - - - 100% 

Total Employees 345 345 100% 350 350 100% 

Workers
 

Permanent
 

37
 

37
 

100%
 

79
 

79
 

100%
 

Other than permanent
 

68
 

68
 

100%
 

18
 

18
 

100%
 

Total Workers
 

105
 

105
 

100%
 

97
 

97
 

100%
 

 

2.   Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:
 

Category
 

FY 2023-24
 

Current Financial Year
 FY 

 
2022-23

 

Previous Financial Year
 

Total 
(A)

 Equal to 
Minimum Wage

 More than
 

Minimum Wage
 Total 

(D)
 Equal to 

Minimum Wage
 More than

 

Minimum Wage
 

No.(B)
 

%
 

(B/A)
 

No.(C)
 

%(C/A)
 

 

No.(E)
 

%(E/D)
 

No.(F)
 

%(F/D)
 

Employees
 

Permanent
 

345
 

0
 

0%
 

345
 

100%
 

350
 

0
 

0%
 

350
 

100%
 

Male
 

340
 

0
 

0
 

%
 

340
 

100%
 

345
 

0
 

0
 

%
 

345
 

100%
 

Female
 

5
 

0
 

0
 

%
 

5
 

100%
 

5
 

0
 

0
 

%
 

5
 

100%
 

Other than 
 

permanent
 -

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 

Male
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Female

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Workers

 

Permanent

 

37

 

0

 

0%

 

37

 

100%

 

37

 

0

 

0%

 

37

 

100%

 

Male

 

28

 

0

 

0

 

%

 

28

 

100%

 

28

 

0

 

0%

 

28

 

100%

 

Female

 

09

 

0

 

0

 

%

 

09

 

100%

 

09

 

0

 

0%

 

09

 

100%

 

Other than 

 

permanent

 
68

 

0

 

0

 

%

 

68

 

100%

 

60

 

0

 

0%

 

60

 

100%

 

Male

 

56

 

0

 

0%

 

56

 

100%

 

50

 

0

 

0%

 

50

 

100%

 

Female

 

12

 

0

 

0%

 

12

 

100%

 

10

 

0

 

0%

 

10

 

100%
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Board of Directors 
(BoD) 

5 
 

96,00,000 1 80,00,000 

Median Remunera n 
of Exec e Directors 

3 96,00,000 1 80,00,000 

Median Remunera  

of Non-Ex e 
Directors 

4 96,00,000 1 80,00,000 

Key Managerial 

Personnel 
3 

 5,25,000 0 
 0 

 

Employees other
 

than BoD and KMP
 424

 
2,25,000

 
26

 
3,85,944
 

Workers
 

84
 

1,15,856
 

21
 

96,529
 

 

4.   Do you ha e a focal point (Indi dual
 

/ Comm ee) responsible for 
addressing human rights impacts or

 
 
issues caused or contributed to by the 

business? (Yes/No)
 

Yes. Any human rights issues are addressed to the HR  
for r on.

 
 

5.   Describe the internal mechanisms in 
place to redress grie ances related to 
human rights issues.

 
The company is comm ed to promo g a safe and r l 
work environment by providing employees with e e 
channels for r g grievances and addressing poten
viola ons. To ensure transparency and accountability, the 
company has implemented the following mechanisms:

 

1.

 
Grievance R ng: Employees are encouraged to raise 
concerns or disclose any actual or poten viola ons of 
the Company Code, policies, or laws, including human 
rights viola ons. This pr e approach empowers 
employees to voice their concerns and contribute to a 

e work environment.

 

2.

 

Review and on: Representa ons made while 
r  grievances are thoroughly reviewed by the 
relevant personnel, and appropriate are taken 
for substan ted viola ons. This process ensures that all 
concerns are addressed promptly and e e ely, and 
that necessary corr e measures are implemented.

 

3.

 

Internal Complaints Comm ee (ICC): The company has 
established the Internal Complaints Com ee (ICC) 

ally for the redressal of Sexual Harassment and 
other gender-based grievances. This dedicated 
c ee ensures that all such complaints are handled 

vity, con lity, and e ciency.

 

By providing these rep  mechanisms and support 
structures, the company fosters a culture of trust, respect, and 
integrity, ensuring that all employees feel heard and valued.

 

3.   Details of remunera n/salary/wages, in the following format:
  

Male

 

Female

 

Number

 

Median remunera / 
salary/wages of 

respec e category

 Number

 

Median remunera / 
salary/wages of 

respec e category
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6.   Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers: 
  FY 2023-24 

Current Financial Year 
FY 2022-23  

Previous Financial Year 
Filed 

during 
 the year 

Pending 
n at 

the end of year 

Remarks Filed 
during 

 the year 

Pending 
n at 

the end of year 

Remarks 

Sexual Harassment 0 0 - 0 0 - 
Discrimina t workplace

 
0

 
0

 
-

 
0

 
0

 
-

 Child Labour
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

-
 Forced Labour/Involuntary

 Labour
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

Wages
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

-
 Other human rights related 

issues
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

 7.   Mechanisms to prevent adverse 
consequences to the complainant 
in discrimina n and harassment 
cases.

 

The company is commi ed to providing a suppor ve and 
transparent environment to address complaints and conduct 
inquiries. To achieve this, the following measures have been 
implemented:

 
 

Provision of Necessary Fac es: The company ensures that 
the Internal Commi ee, responsible for handling 
complaints and condu ng inquiries, is provided with the 
necessary f  and resources to carry out their  
e ec vely and e y.

 
 

Assistance in Securing A endance: The company vely 
assists the Internal C ee in securing the a endance 
of the respondent and any relevant witnesses. This support 
enables a fair and thorough inves a on of the complaint.

 
 

Access to In n: The company is dedicated

 

to 
providing the Internal C ee with any informa on it 
may require in rela on to a complaint. This commitment to 
transparency ensures that the ee can conduct a 
comprehensive and unbiased inquiry, taking into 
considera  relevant facts and evidence.

 
By implemen ng these measures, the company promotes a 
culture of accountability, fairness, and respect, fostering a 

ve work environment for all employees.

 

8.   Do human rights requirements 
form part of your business 
agreements and contracts?(Yes/No)

 

No

 

 

9.   Assessments for the year:

 
  

%age

 

of your plants and o es that were assessed (by en y 
or statutory authori  third par s)

 

Child labour

 

100%

 

Forced/involuntary labour

 

100%

 

Sexual harassment

 

100%

 

Discrimina t workplace

 

100%

 

Wages

 

100%

 

Health & Safety

 

100%

 

10. Provide details of any correc ve ac s taken or 
underway to address signi ant risks / concerns 

 

arising from the assessments at Ques 9 above.

No

 
122



 
10.   Details on assessment of value chain partners: 
  % of value chain partners (by value of business 

done with such partners) that were assessed 

Sexual Harassment 100% 

Discrimina  at workplace 100% 

Child Labour 100% 

Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour
 

100%
 

Wages
 

100%
 

Health & Safety
 

100%
 

 

PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make e orts to protect and restore the environment.
 

 

Essen Indicators
 

1.    Details of total energy consump
 

Gigajoules) and energy intensity, in the following format:
 

Parameter

 

FY 2023-24

 

(Current Financial Year)

 FY 2022-23

 

(Previous Financial Year)

 

Total electricity consump on (A)-

 

GJ

 

313824

 

43

 

Total fuel consump  (B)

 

471434

 

500530

 

Energy consump  through

 

other sources (C) 

 

-

 

-

 

Total energy consump n

 

(A+B+C)

 

(In Rs.)

 

785258

 

73

 

Energy intensity per rupee of

 

turnover (Total 
energy

 

consump n

 

/turnover in rupees)

 
1.25

  

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evalua /assurance has been carried out 
by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

 
No

 

 

2.   Does the en  have any sites / faci
iden signated consumers (DCs) under the 
Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of 
the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose 
whether targets set under the PAT scheme have

 
 

been achieved. In case targets have not been 
achieved, provide the reme aken, if any.

 

Not Applicable, as the Company does not fall in the 
category of industries mandated under the PAT 
scheme.

 

 

3.Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

  

Parameter

 

FY 

 

2023-24

 

(Current Financial Year)

 

FY 2022-23

 

(Previous Financial Year)

 

Water withdrawal by source

 

(in kilolitres)

     

(i) Surface water

 

-

 

-

 

(ii) Groundwater

   

(iii) Third party water

   

(iv) Seawater / desalinated water

   

(v) Others

   

Total volume of  water  withdrawal

 

(in kilolitres) (I

 

+ ii + iii + iv + v)

 
  

Total volume of water consump

 

(in kilolitres)

   

1400 1300
10425  11348

11825
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Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Water 
consumed / turnover) 

  

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evalua on/assurance has 
been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external 
agency. 

No 

 
4.   Has the en  implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, 
provide details of its coverage and implementa  

No 

 
5.    Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the en , in the following 
format: 
Parameter Please 

specify unit 
FY 2023-24 

(Current Financial Year) 
FY 2022-23 

(Previous Financial Year) 
Nox Ton/year

4.90                                          5.10
40.00                                        51.00

   
Sox Ton/year   
Par te ma er (PM) MT/Year   
Persistent  organic pollutants (POP) - - - 
Vola ganic compounds (VOC) - - - 
Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) - - - 
COD MT/Year - - 

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evalua n/assurance has 
been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external 
agency. 

Yes, 
GPCB conduct the 
periodic assessment and 
evalua t site.  

 

6.    Provide  details  of  greenhouse  gas  emissions  (Scope  1  and  Scope  2  emissions)  &  its intensity, 
in the following format: 

Parameter Unit FY 2023-24 

(Current  Financial 
Year) 

FY 2022-23 

(Previous Financial 
Year) 

Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of 
the GHG into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, 
PFCs, SF6, NF3, if available) 

Metric  tonnes of 
CO2 

equivalent 
- - 

Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of 
the GHG into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, 
PFCs,SF6, NF3, if available) 

Metric  tonnes of 
CO2 

equivalent 
- - 

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions 
per rupee of turnover 

Metric  tonnes of 
CO2 equivalent 

per rupee of 
turnover(Lakhs) 

- - 

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evalua /assurance has been 
carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

 No 

7.   Does the en  have any project related to 
reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then 
provide details.

 

No
  

 

8.   
 

Provide details related to waste management by the en , in the following format:
 

 
Parameter

 
FY 2023-24

 

(Current Financial Year)
 FY 2022-23

 

(Previous Financial Year)
 

 
Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

 

ear
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A Plas c waste (A)  11.36 
B E-waste (B) - - 
C Bio-medical waste (C) - - 
D Constru  and on waste (D) - - 
E Ba ery waste (E) - - 
F Radio  waste (F) - - 
G Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if 

any.  (G) 
- - 

H Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). - - 
H.1 Brine sludge - - 
H.2 Fly ash 7.34 4.7 
H.3 Canteen waste - - 
 Total (A+B + C + D + E + F + G + H) 19.6 16.06 
 For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or  other 

recovery opera ns (in metric tonnes) 
 Category of waste 
 (i) Recycled - - 
 (ii) Re-used - - 
 (iii) Other recovery opera s - - 
 Total - - 
 For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in 

metric tonnes) 
 Category of waste 
 (i) Incinera n - - 
 (ii) Lan ling - - 
 (iii) Other disposal opera ons - - 
 Total - - 
 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evalua /assurance 

has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the 
external agency. 

No 

 

9.   Brie y describe the waste management 
pr ces adopted in your establishments. 
Describe the strategy adopted by your company 
to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic 
chemicals in your products and processes and 
the prac ces adopted to manage such wastes. 

During the manufacturing process, both non-
hazardous and hazardous waste materials are 
generated, which require proper handling and disposal 
to ensure environmental safety and compliance with 
regula  

 

10. If the en s opera s/ s in/around ecologically sens  areas (such as na al parks, 
wildlife  sanctuaries,  biosphere  reserves,  wetlands,  biodiversity  hotspots,  forests, coastal regula
zones etc.) where environmental approvals / clearances are required, please specify details in the 
following format: 

S.No. Loca  of 
opera ns/o翿

 Type of 
opera ns

 Whether the condi ns of environmental approval 
/clearance are being complied with?

 
(Y/N) If no, the 

reasons thereof and corre e ac  taken, if any.
 

  
NA

 
NA
 

NA
 

 

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the en  based on applicable 
laws, in the curren ancial year:
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Name and brief 
details of project 

EIA 
No  

No. 

Date Whether conducted 
by independent 
external agency 

(Yes / No) 

Results 
communicated in 
 public domain 

(Yes / No) 

Relevant Web link 

No EIA was conducted during curren  year. 
 

12. Is the en compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regula s/ guidelines in India; such 
as the Water (Preven nd Control of Pollu  Act, Air (Preven n and Control of Pol n) Act, 
Environment protec  act and rules thereunder (Y/N).  If not, provide details of all such non-
compliances, in the following format: 

S. 
No. 

Specify the  law/ 
regula n/ guidelines 

which was not 
complied with 

Provide details of 
the non- 

compliance 

Any es / penal es /ac
taken by regulatory agencies 

such as pol on control 
boards or by courts 

Corre e ac aken, 
if any 

Company is compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regula  guidelines in India. 
 
 

12. If the  en y  has  undertaken  any  speci   ini s  or  used  innova e  technology  or ns  
to  improve  resource e iency,  or  reduce  impact  due  to  emissions  /  e nt discharge / waste 
generated, please provide details of the same as well as outcome of such in ves, as per the 
following format: 

Sr. 
No 

ve 
undertaken 

Details of the ve (Web-link, if any, 
may be provided along-with summary) 

Outcome of the in  

No 
 

7.   Does the en  have a business 
con ity and disaster management 
plan? Give details in 100 words/ web link. 

Yes 
On Site emergency p are gned with Loc crises 
and District Emergency Response  On-Site Emergency 

 is prepared as per Sch 8-A of Sub  68-J-(12) (1) 
of the Gujarat Factor e 1963. 
 

Disaster management  is as per Gujarat State Disaster 
Management Act, 2003 & Disaster Management Act, 2005. 

 
PRINCIPLE 7 Businesses, when engaging in in ncing public and regulatory policy, should do so in 
a manner that is responsible and transparent 
 

Essen Indicators 
1.   a. Number of a ia s with trade and industry chambers/ associa  0 

 
b.  List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associa s (determined based on the total members 
of such body) the en s a member o liated to. 
S.No. Name of the trade and industry 

chambers/ associa s 
Reach of trade and industry chambers/ 
associa ns (State/Na al) 
 

 

2.   Provide details of correc e aken or underway on any issues related to an - compe ve 
conduct by the en , based on adverse orders from regulatory author . 

Name of authority Brief of the case Correc e a  taken 
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Not Rehabilita on and Rese ment project undertaken by the Company. 
 
PRINCIPLE   8   Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development 
 

Essen Indicators 
1.   Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the en  on applicable 
laws, in the curren ancial year. 

Name   and   brief 
details of project 

SIA 
No  

No. 

Date of  
no  

Whether conducted 
by independent 
external agency  

 (Yes  /No) 

Results  
communicated in 

public domain 
(Yes / No) 

Relevant 
Web link 

As the contribu  not exceeding Rs. 10 Crores, the same is not applicable  
            

 
2.   Provide informa n project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilita n and Rese lement (R&R) 
 is being undertaken by your en , in the following format: 

S. 
No. 

Name of Project for 
which R&R is ongoing 

State District No. of Project A ected 
Families (PAFs) 

% of PAFs covered 
by R&R 

Amounts paid to PAFs 
in the FY (In INR) 

- - - - - - - 
 

3.   Describe the mechanisms to receive and 
redress grievances of the community. 

Yes, 
Contact number and details of the contact person 
are provided to nearby community to connect 
regarding any issue. 

 

4.   Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers: 
  FY 2023-24 

Current Financial Year 
FY 2022-2023 

Previous Financial Year 

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small producers - - 

Sourced directly from  within  the  district  and 
neighbouring districts 100% 100% 

 

PRINCIPLE  9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible 
manner 

Essen Indicators 

1.   Describe the mechanisms in 
place to receive and respond to 
consumer complaints and feedback. 

The Company has an online complaint management system 
where all customer complaints are recorded. Upon receipt of the 
complaints, these are inves ated and based on the root cause 
analysis the corre e and preven ac  are taken. The 
feedback of the a  are communicated back to the complaint 
in tor. 

2.   Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry 
informa  about: 
  As a percentage to total turnover 

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product 100% 

Safe and responsible usage 100% 

Recycling and/or safe disposal
 

100%
 

3.   Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:
 

  
FY 

 
2023-24

 

(Current Financial Year)
 Remarks

 
 FY 2022-2023

 

(Previous Financial Year)
 Remarks
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Received 
during the 

year 

Pending 
resol on at end 

of           year 

 
Received 

during the 
year 

Pending 
resol on at end 

of           year 

 

Data privacy 0 0 - 0 0 - 

Adv sing 0 0 - 0 0 - 

Cyber-security
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

Delivery of essen
 

services
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

Restric ve Trade Pr ces
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

Unfair Trade Pra s
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

0
 

0
 

-
 

Other
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

4.   Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:
 

  
Number

 
Reasons for recall

 

Voluntary recalls
 

0

 

-
 

Forced recalls

 

0

 

-

 

5.   Does the en  have a framework/ policy on cyber 
security and risks related to data privacy?

 
 

(Yes/No) If available, provide a web-link of the policy.

 The Company at regular interval carries out 
assessment of data piracy / cyber security tools. 
However, to further strengthen the said tools, 
the Company has in ted necessary process to 
formalize the systems by framing data piracy / 
cyber security policy.

 

6.   Provide  details  of  any  correc ve  a ns  taken  
or  underway  on  issues  rela  to adve ing,  and  
delivery  of essen  services;  cyber  security  and  
data  privacy  of

 

customers;  re-occurrence  of  
instances  of  product  recalls;  

 

penalty  /  a   taken  by regulatory authori  
safety of products / services.

 

During the repo  period, there were no 
complaints or issues related to adv  and 
delivery of

 

essen services, as well as cyber 
security and data privacy of customers. 
Ad y, no products were recalled in the 
current r ng year, and no es or penal s 
were imposed,

 

nor any regulatory ons taken 
regarding the safety of products or services.

 
 

*****
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Economic overview

Global economy

Geopolitical uncertainty pushed inflation to an unprecedented 
level at the beginning of the year. In the last few quarters, 
inflation has been perceived to be stabilising, indicating a 
positive outlook.

The global economy appears poised for a gradual recovery from 
the powerful blows of the pandemic and Russia-Ukraine war. The 
global economic output is expected to witness steady growth, 
driven by stabilising inflationary pressures, reviving consumer 
sentiment and investor confidence. The employment scenario 
in the US and other advanced economies has recovered from 
pandemic levels and rising disposable income is also likely to 
support growth in the coming years. 

Emerging and developing countries are also witnessing 
growth across multiple sectors, powered by government 
focus on infrastructure and manufacturing sectors. China has 
also recovered from the COVID impact on its economy and 
industries and is on the mend.

Central banks’ monetary policies are expected to bear fruit, 
leading to a decline in global inflation from *8.7% in CY22 to 
7.0% in CY23 to 4.9% in CY24. It is anticipated that the pent-
up demand in numerous economies, along with a significant 
reduction in inflation, will contribute to accelerated economic 
growth in CY23. 

[*Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2023].

Outlook 

The landscape of the global economy continues to evolve, 
characterised by recovery, resilience, and an increasing focus 
on sustainable development.

Despite inflationary pressures, the global economy is supported 
by a robust labour market, increased domestic spending, an 
influx of foreign capital and a prudent response to the energy 
crisis in Europe.        

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) in its World Economic 
Outlook report of April 2023, projects a global growth rate of 
49% for 2023, signalling a continuation of the recovery trend.1

Many emerging markets and economies (EMDEs) have already 
recovered, which has bolstered real incomes. An optimistic 
global outlook would also be determined by the speed and 

to boost economic expansion. Trade is also expected to remain 
a crucial engine of growth. Despite challenges like supply 
chain disruptions, the World Trade Organisation anticipates a 
4% growth in the volume of world merchandise trade in 2023, 
reflecting the robust demand and supply adaptions.2  The 
central banks have been tightening monetary policy, which is 
expected to curb sticky inflation and foster long-term growth.

A stronger boost from pent-up demand in numerous economies 
or a faster fall in inflation is likely in the course of 2023. The 
governments and central banks of the world are expected to play 
a major role in accelerating economic growth through targeted, 
need-based measures. Advanced economies are expected to 
maintain their recovery momentum, thanks to the successful 
vaccination campaigns and strong fiscal and monetary support. 

policies will be crucial in determining the accuracy of the IMF's 
forecast. While central banks around the world are tightening 
monetary policy, it remains uncertain whether these actions will 
successfully reduce inflation and promote sustainable growth. 
Fiscal measures will also be critical, particularly in aiding those 

1IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2023
2World Trade Organization, April 2023

Global growth (%)

3.4 2.8 3.0 2.7 1.3 1.4 4.0 3.9 4.2

Global economy Advanced Economies Emerging Markets and 
Developing Economies

202420232022

(Source- IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2023)
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Indian Economy

As stated by the Reserve Bank of India, the Indian economy 
has experienced a robust GDP growth of 7.2% for the fiscal year 
2023.3 This resurgence in growth comes after the challenging 
period of economic contraction faced in 2020 due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic and the associated lockdown measures. 
This recovery has been largely fuelled by strong domestic 
demand, a resurgence in manufacturing and services sectors, 
and increased export activity owing to the revival of global 
trade. Infrastructure development has also been a key driver 
of growth, with government initiatives spurring construction 
activities across the country. 

The Indian government has managed to maintain a favourable 
domestic policy environment and prioritise structural reforms, 
allowing the country’s economy to remain resilient amid global 
challenges.  

Various high-frequency indicators, such as GST collections, 

bill volume, suggest a robust economic recovery in India. 
This persistent growth momentum has positioned India as an 
attractive investment destination. Moreover, India is expected 
to retain its status as the fastest-growing G-20 nation in the 
coming years. India’s presidency of the G20 Summit in 2023 
has also bolstered its international stature. It is anticipated that 
this event will boost India’s image as a hub for business and 
innovation, attracting more foreign investments and opening up 
new avenues for trade and collaboration.  

Despite the challenges, the Indian government’s prudent 
initiatives, such as the PM Gati Shakti - National Master Plan, 
the National Monetisation Plan (NMP) and the Production-
Linked Incentive (PLI), have been instrumental in fostering 
economic growth. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has also 
taken prudent and proactive measures to ensure financial 
stability and address liquidity constraints. These factors have 
contributed to the Indian economy’s resilience and stimulated 
substantial investments.

In response to monetary policy actions by the RBI, together 
with other supply side measures, headline CPI inflation has 
gradually declined from its peak of 7.8% in April 2022 to 5.7% 
in March 2023 and is projected to moderate further to 5.2% in 
Q4, 2023-24.

Outlook

Despite global challenges, India's economic activity has 
remained robust due to a favourable domestic policy 
environment and the Government's continued emphasis on 
structural reforms. 

India is expected to be among the fastest growing major 
economies of the world in 2023-24, accounting for 15% of global 
growth—the second largest contribution, and higher than that of 
the US and EU put together. A crucial component of this growth 

story is the expected surge in domestic consumption. As the 
vaccination drive expands and pandemic-induced restrictions 
ease, consumer confidence is likely to rebound, leading to 
increased spending

A combination of rising disposable income, easy access to 
credit and lowering interest rates in the wake of a stabilising 
inflation trajectory will bode well for economic growth of the 
country, going forward.

Looking ahead, the Indian economy presents a landscape of 
promising opportunities mixed with significant challenges. 
It is on a trajectory of steady recovery and poised for growth, 
reflecting the resilience and dynamism of the Indian market.

Industry overview

Global adhesive and resin industry

The global Adhesive Resin Market, is predicted to experience 
significant growth in the upcoming years, driven by the rising 
demand for adhesive resins in automotive, packaging, industrial, 
and other sectors. The global adhesive resins market is projected 
to attain a valuation of US$ 31 billion by the year 2033, with a 
steady expansion at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 
5.1% during the period from 2023 to 2033.4  Notably, the Asia-
Pacific region is expected to have high demand for adhesive 
resins due to technological advancements in end-use industries 
and the increase in surgical procedures.

In recent times, there has been a noteworthy surge in the 
demand for adhesive resins in various consumer applications 
and other sectors, consequently contributing to the expansion 
of the global market. Additionally, the rising construction and 
infrastructure developments in the building industry have 
further fuelled the demand for these adhesive products.

The adoption of synthetic and environmentally friendly 
adhesive resins is anticipated to create favourable prospects for 
participants in the industry. Increasing consciousness regarding 
sustainable materials is projected to drive the demand for 
bio-based adhesives, thereby assisting end-use industries 
in addressing environmental concerns. Moreover, there is a 
discernible shift towards the utilization of hot-melt adhesives 
within these end-use sectors.

However, the growth of the global market is likely to be 
influenced by certain challenges and constraints. Among these 
factors are time-consuming and stringent regulatory policies, as 

in separating objects during the testing process and reduced 
stability of these solutions at high temperatures further limit 
growth opportunities for industry participants. Nonetheless, it is 
worth noting that these adhesives exhibit relative weakness in 
bonding larger objects with smaller surface areas. Nevertheless, 
the automotive industry's increasing demand for low carbon-
emitting and lightweight vehicles will drive the need for 
adhesives and their resins.

3https://pib.gov.in/PressReleseDetailm.aspx?PRID=1928682
4https://www.globenewswire.com/en/news-release/2023/02/09/2605274/0/en/Adhesive-Resins-Market-Is-Forecasted-To-Top-a-Market-Valuation-of-US-31-Billion-
by-the-End-of-2033-Reports-Fact-MR.html
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5https://www.globenewswire.com/en/news-release/2023/02/14/2608089/0/en/Global-Wood-Adhesives-Market-Size-Share-To-Grow-22-8-Billion-By-2030-CAGR-4-
8-Spherical-Insights.html
6https://www.knowledge-sourcing.com/report/india-adhesives-market

Wood adhesives industry

In a world increasingly driven by innovation and sustainability, 
the wood adhesive industry holds an essential role. The wood 
adhesives sector has witnessed considerable growth in recent 
years due to several factors. Some of them include higher real 
estate demand, an increasing number of individual houses in 
Tier II and Tier III cities and rural housing, as well as greater 
demand for furniture and building materials. It is projected that 
the global wood adhesives industry will grow at a CAGR of 4.8% 
and reach USD 22.8 billion by 2030.5

The wood adhesives market’s growth is also propelled by high 
demand for furniture, wooden flooring, cabinets, and other 
wood items in the Asia-Pacific (APAC) countries, including 
India and China. Other factors contributing to this sector’s 
expansion are lower labour and manufacturing costs in the 
APAC region. Likewise, this region has less stringent regulations 
and data requirements, leading to adaptive and business-
friendly regulatory policies that promote the growth of the wood 
adhesive industry. 

Outlook

The growth of the market is driven by the increasing demand for 
adhesive resins in consumer applications and transportation, as 
well as the surge in construction and building activities due to 
infrastructure development. Technological advancements and 
the trend towards sustainable construction and smart cities are 
expected to further boost market demand. The global Adhesive 
Resin market report provides a comprehensive evaluation of 
the market, including analysis of key segments, trends, drivers, 
restraints, competitive landscape, and factors impacting market 
growth.

The future of the Indian wood adhesive industry, particularly 
white glue, appears to be vibrant, underscored by various 
macroeconomic trends and industry-specific drivers. The Indian 
wood adhesive market is showing promising growth, reflecting 
the country's accelerating economic recovery. According to a 
report by Research and Markets, the Indian wood adhesive 
market was valued at USD 880 million in 2022 and is anticipated 
to grow at a CAGR of 7.5% during 2022-2027

Indian Adhesive and Resin industry

The adhesive market in India was worth USD 930.464 million in 
2021. However, it is projected to expand at a compound annual 
growth rate (CAGR) of 10.26% during the forecast period of 
FY2023-28, reaching a value of USD 1842.936 million by 2028. 
The wood adhesive industry plays a crucial role in a rapidly 
evolving world that emphasises innovation and sustainability. 
On top of that, the industry holds immense importance in India's 
manufacturing and construction sectors, finding widespread 
usage in furniture manufacturing, interior design, flooring, 
panelling, and construction. Over recent years, the Indian wood 
adhesive market has experienced remarkable growth due to 
factors such as rapid urbanisation, infrastructure development, 

and a thriving furniture industry. Rising disposable incomes, 
evolving lifestyles, and a growing inclination towards superior 
wood products also contribute to the increasing demand for 
wood adhesives in the market. In addition to this, the wood 
adhesive market in India is witnessing significant growth, driven 
by the country's large population and the substantial demand 
for furniture, wooden flooring, and cabinets.

India’s Adhesives market can be classified into water-based, 
solvent-based, hot-melt, reactive and other adhesives, 
determined by the technology employed. Water-based 
adhesives, such as Polyvinyl Acetate (PVA) adhesives, are 
anticipated to grow in the foreseeable future. Additionally, the 
market is expected to be driven by ongoing innovation and the 
introduction of new adhesive products in the country6.

Outlook

India’s adhesive market has received an enhanced impetus from 
both government and private initiatives aimed at its expansion. 

The outlook for the Indian wood adhesive industry, specifically 
in the realm of white glue, appears to be characterised by a 
multitude of macroeconomic trends and drivers that are unique 
to the industry. The Indian wood adhesive market is poised for 
promising growth, reflecting the country's robust economic 
recovery. As stated in a report by Research and Markets, the 
market for wood adhesive in India attained a value of USD 880 
million in 2022 and is projected to register a compound annual 
growth rate (CAGR) of 7.5% from 2022 to 2027. 

The Indian wood adhesive industry's expansion has been 
propelled by the revival of the construction and furniture sectors. 
Furthermore, the industry gains momentum from the increasing 
urbanisation and the expanding middle class with higher 
disposable incomes. A noteworthy factor driving this growth 
is the anticipated surge in India's real estate and construction 
sectors. On top of that, Government initiatives focused on 
infrastructure development and housing have also stimulated 
the demand for wood adhesives, specifically white glue. 

Company overview

Jyoti Resins & Adhesives, is India's second-largest white glue 
adhesive manufacturer in the retail segment. The Company 

under their flagship brand, Euro 7000. It is a consumer-centric 
company committed to quality and innovation. The Company’s 
success in this business is a result of its strategic vision, which 
focuses on delivering world-class products and services to its 
customers.

Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Limited launched its brand, Euro 
7000, in 2006. The Company is currently operating the plant 
with an installed capacity of 2,000 Tonnes Per Month (TPM) 
at Santej in Gandhinagar to meet the growing demand for its 
products. As a result, Euro 7000 has grown exponentially and is 
now the second largest selling wood adhesive brand in India's 
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retail segment. The Company services 13 states in India through 
25 branches and 50 distributors, catering to 10,000 retailers and 
3,00,000 carpenters across India. 

The Company’s headquarters as well as manufacturing facilities 
are based in Ahmedabad. While it has a sales footprint across 
13 states, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, Maharashtra, 
Karnataka and Telangana are the top volume contributing 
states. The Company’s proprietary brand, Euro 7000, commands 
superior recall and traction for consistency, quality, and service. 
It is engaged in the manufacture of various types of wood 

termite, fast-drying, weather-proof and anti-fungal adhesives.

Business overview

The Company’s range of high-quality adhesives cater to 
all key substrates and woodworking needs. The adhesives 
are designed to last for years by providing greater strength, 
durability and protection.

EURO Synthetic Wood Adhesive 

It is a perfect combination of strength and transparency. The 
adhesive film is transparent and glossy, providing a smooth 
and clear finish. Its anti-termite formula ensures long-lasting 
durability and protection. 

WP 2-in-1 Waterproof Adhesive 

When it comes to waterproof adhesive, it is the ultimate option. 
The transparent and glossy adhesive film is water-resistant, 
heat-resistant, and fungal-resistant, ensuring strength and 
durability. Its anti-termite formula protects woodwork from 
termites, making it the perfect adhesive for outdoor woodwork 
projects.

EURO Extreme3 

excellent handling strength within 2-3 hours of application. 

EURO Ultra 5in1 adhesive 

glossy film provides a smooth and clear finish to the wood, 

Its waterproof and anti-termite properties make it perfect 
for outdoor woodwork projects. It is also weather-proof and 
provides more coverage than other adhesives, making it the 
ultimate choice for all woodworking needs.

EURO PVC Glue

It is perfect for bonding PVC sheets to wood. It comes with pre-
edge bending taps, making it easy to apply.

EURO Extreme3 Hi Strong adhesive

It is quick-drying, waterproof, and termite-resistant. With a 
transparent and glossy film, it provides excellent handling 
strength within 2-3 hours of application.

EURO 2in1 adhesive

It is waterproof, termite-resistant, heat-resistant, and fungal-
resistant. The translucent and glossy coating gives the wood 
a smooth and clear finish, while its high strength assures long-
lasting durability.

EURO EWR adhesive

It is suitable for both hot and cold press, providing more 
coverage and better strength. 

EWR D2+ Hot Press Expert 

It has a fast-drying composition with high strength that ensures 
sturdiness in any situation. Its D2+ grade glue is ideal for all 
woodworking applications, and it comes in a compact 50 Kg 
drum pack.

Opportunities

Growing demand for eco-friendly products

With increasing environmental consciousness and stricter 
regulations, there is a rising demand for sustainable and eco-
friendly resins and adhesives. The Company can capitalise on 
this opportunity by developing and marketing environmentally 
friendly products to attract environmentally conscious 
customers and gain a competitive edge.

Advancements in technology

The adhesive and resin industry is continuously evolving, with 
advancements in materials and manufacturing processes. The 
Company can leverage these technological developments to 
create innovative and high-performance products, catering to 
diverse applications across various industries.

Collaboration and partnerships

Partnering with other companies, research institutions, or 
universities can open up opportunities for the Company to access 
new technologies, resources, and expertise. Collaborations 
can lead to joint product development, which may result in a 
stronger market position and accelerated growth.

Customisation and tailored solutions 

Many industries require specialised adhesives and resins 

products and tailored solutions for individual clients can attract 
niche markets and foster long-term customer loyalty.

Targeting the OEM market

Ready-made furniture i.e. the OEM business is systematically 
growing with changing consumer tastes and preferences along 
with quick ready to use products. Our products are adept to 
target OEM customers thereby targeting a large opportunity in 
the market.
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Threats

Intense Competition

The adhesive and resin industry is highly competitive, with a 
large established player, several mid to small existing players 
and new entrants vying for market share. Intense competition 
can lead to price wars, reduced profit margins, and increased 
marketing expenses, making it challenging for the Company to 
maintain its profitability.

Raw Material Price Volatility

The prices of key raw materials used in manufacturing adhesives 
and resins, , can be subject to fluctuations. Unpredictable price 

ability to remain competitive.

Shift in Customer Preferences

Changing customer preferences and buying behaviour may lead 
to a demand shift towards alternative materials or adhesives 
and resins from competitors. The Company must adapt to 
evolving customer needs and preferences to retain its market 

Supply Chain Disruptions

Disruptions in the supply chain, such as shortages of raw 
materials or transportation issues, can disrupt production 
schedules and lead to delayed deliveries, damaging customer 
relationships.

Competitive advantage

Jyoti Resins adopts a low-cost manufacturing approach and 

and profitability. The Company has successfully limited overall 
manpower costs to a commendable 15-16% of its revenues, 
demonstrating prudent cost management.

Carpenter reward model

and highly rewarding carpenter 
incentive model, which stands out 
as one of the finest in the industry. 
It’s reward and loyalty programs are 
specifically designed on a state-wise 
basis. Carpenters are provided with 
a dedicated company app through 
which they can easily claim and 
redeem points earned. The reward 

tiers based on the extent of usage.

Moreover, selling and distribution expenses are meticulously 
maintained below 13-14%, further optimising operational 
expenses. The Company achieved an impressive asset 
turnover rate of 8x, indicating the Company's ability to generate 
significant revenue relative to its asset base. In addition, the 
Company stands out in the industry with one of the highest 
EBITDA per tonne compared to its peers, showcasing its 
exceptional profitability. The Company's prudent working 
capital management has enabled it to operate without any debt, 
and it maintains a positive operating cash flow (OCF) and free 
cash flow (FCF) position. This financial strength underscores 
Jyoti Resins and Adhesives' prudent financial management and 
sustainable business practices. 

Financial overview

Particulars (J in lakhs) FY23 % Change

Net Revenue 26,125 -1.51 %
EBITDA 6,063 127 %
PAT 4,644 145 %
Cash Profit 4,792 133.53 %
BVPS 88.31 145 %
BVPS (without revaluation reserve) 74.31 94.99 %
Earnings Per Share (H ) 38.70 44.52 %
Promoter Holding (%) 50.82 % 1.70 %
Reserves and Surplus (H Crores) 93.98

FY24

25,730
8,392
6,712

 68.21
138.54
124.33
55.93

50.83%
154.24 64.12 %

*Diluted book value per share after considering bonus share issue of 80,00,000 shares in FY 23

133



Sr. 
No. Ratio Numerator Denominator

For the 
year ended 

31 March, 
2024

For the 
year ended 

31 March, 
2023

% 
Variance

Explanation for 
significant changes 
of more than 25% as 
compared to previous 
year

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.15

0.00

1977.09

49.31%

85.33 59.27

2.78

7.09

3.44

17.78%

84.16%

70.85%

1.30 65.05% Current assets of the
company has increased

Debt equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s
Equity

0.00

751.48

- Not Applicable

Debt service
coverage ratio

Earnings
available for
debt service

Debt Service 162.83%

-10.54%

Earnings of the company has
increased and company has
repaid its debt

Return onEquity4

1

2

3

Average
Shareholder’s
Equity 

55.12% Not Applicable

5 Inventory turnover
ratio

Sales Average
Inventory

43.96%

-17.26%

-57.37%

Company has maintained

6 Trader receivable
turnover ratio

Net Credit
Sales

Average
Accounts
Receivable 

10.92 -68.46%

3.35 Not Applicable

7 Trade payable
turnover ratio

Cost of Goods
Sold

Average
AccountsPayable

Average
Working Capital 

16.62 Cost of Goods sold has
reduced

8 Net capital
turnover ratio

Net Sales Working capital of the
company has improved

10.46% -70.02%9 Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales

Capital Employed

Profit of the company has
increased

57.82% 45.55%10 Return on capital
employed

Earning before
interest and taxes 

Profit of the company has
increased

0.00% 100%11 Return on
investment

Return Investment Company has earned profit
on its investment

Key ratios

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial 
ratios

Business Outlook

Due to a significant surge in demand and a significant increase 
in market share, the Company successfully completed the 
expansion of its production capacity, raising it to 2000 TPM. 
Presently, the Company is actively engaged in establishing a 
warehouse facility to enhance storage capabilities for both 
raw materials and finished goods. Further, the Company aims 
to bolster its presence in the existing states by expanding its 
network of branches and distributors, strategically focusing on 
improving market share. Additionally, the Company plans to 
explore opportunities in 1-2 new states while also enhancing 

initiatives reflect the Company's commitment to growth and 
optimisation as it seeks to reinforce its position in the adhesive 
industry.

Corporate social responsibility

The Company believes in giving back to the society it operates 
in and social initiatives are integral to its business model. The 
Company's CSR initiatives focus on education, healthcare, 
animal welfare, and environmental sustainability. 

Under the Ambedkar Hastshilp Vikas Yojana (AHVY), the JBECT 
Trust has started a cluster at Chotila, under a special project, 
where 500 women are receiving training for self-employment. 
The organisation has also established a de-addiction centre at 
Chotila Tal, which provides treatment for addicts.

The Shri Jagatbharti Education and Charitable Trust has 
organised several programmes to provide vocational training 
and income generation opportunities to various sections 
of society. These programmes include income generation 
training for youth and women, a handicrafts training centre, 
and a vocational training programme for disabled persons. The 
organisation also runs a job placement centre that provides job 
opportunities and guidance to beneficiaries in government, 
semi-government, and private sectors. Additionally, the trust 
operates a computer training centre that helps 200 students 
gain self-employment after receiving training and also provides 
placements in government and private sectors. The organisation 
has successfully benefited over 450 disabled persons and 500 
job placement beneficiaries with its ongoing programmes.

Human resources

The workforce of the Company comprises individuals who 
possess extensive knowledge and demonstrate unwavering 
dedication across various functional areas, including 
procurement, manufacturing, marketing, technology, innovation, 

have significantly contributed to the Company's impressive 
performance in FY23, all while prioritising the health and safety 
of employees and ensuring the smooth operation of supply 
chains, deliveries, and customer service.

Recognising the pivotal role of a diverse and engaged talent 
pipeline in the Company's success, the HR department 

Net Profit
after taxes
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understands the importance of building, developing, and 
retaining such a pool of capable individuals. The Company 
firmly believes in continuous improvement of productivity by 
empowering teams through delegation of responsibilities and 
authority. This focus extends to transforming initiatives aimed at 
enhancing products and services.

To enhance business viability, liquidity, and competitiveness, 
the Company actively invests in sustainable initiatives and 
provides relevant training to employees to foster stronger 
engagement with carpenters, contractors, architects, and other 
stakeholders. Recognising that investment in the workforce and 
the establishment of a positive work environment are critical to 
success, the Company places great emphasis on these areas.

In order to attract seasoned professionals and recruit entry-level 
talent, the Company collaborates with educational institutions, 
professional recruiting agencies, and schools. As of March 31st, 
2023, the Company manages a total of 500 full-time employees 

The Company places a high priority on incentivising and 
retaining its workforce through a performance-based 
compensation and review system that duly rewards and 
promotes service excellence.

Looking ahead, the Company aims to capitalise on the expertise 
of its experienced specialists to enhance brand recall, attract a 
larger customer base, and maintain its position as a leader in 
the adhesive and resin industry. The Company's commitment to 
building, developing, and retaining a diverse and engaged talent 
pool, combined with its investment in sustainable initiatives and 
provision of relevant training, ensures that it is well-prepared for 
continued success.

Manufacturing excellence

Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Ltd upholds a strong belief 
in maximising asset utilisation, adopting cutting-edge 
technologies, and centralising its manufacturing process to 

The Company's manufacturing philosophy revolves around a 
steadfast commitment to sustainability, in alignment with the 
principles of responsible manufacturing endorsed by the United 
Nations. By prioritising Human Rights, Labour, and Environment, 
Jyoti Resins has attained environmental sustainability and 
earned the commendation of stakeholders as a responsible 
corporate entity.

To maintain compliance with industry standards, the Company's 
manufacturing sites undergo rigorous audits by regulatory 
authorities, ensuring adherence to Good Manufacturing Practice 
(GMP) and other regulatory requirements. This has established 
Jyoti Resins as a recognised and compliant manufacturer in the 
industry.

negotiates mutually beneficial terms of trade while also making 
proactive investments in state-of-the-art equipment, capacity 
expansion, and operational integration. As a result, Jyoti 

Resins has accomplished the establishment of the second-
largest adhesives manufacturing capacity in India, granting the 
company economies of scale and a competitive edge in the 
market.

The implementation of bar-coded products and process 
digitalisation has been a transformative development for the 
Company's manufacturing capabilities, enhancing operational 

has significantly contributed to the Company's position as the 
second-largest manufacturing capacity within the sector.

Risk and mitigation

management in ensuring sustainable growth. To this end, it has 
devised and put into action a comprehensive risk management 
policy. This policy systematically identifies potential risks that 
could pose a threat to the Company's existence. These risks 
encompass credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, currency risk, 
and interest risk.

The Board and top management oversee the risk management 
framework, which is regularly reviewed and revised to reflect 

risk management policies and procedures, the Company 
maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment 
that promotes sustainable growth.

The Board, along with top management, is responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management 
policies, which are designed to identify and analyse risks, 
set appropriate limits and controls, and monitor risks and 
adherence to limits. 

The audit committee oversees how management monitors 
compliance with the Company's risk management policies and 
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk 

It arises primarily from trade receivables, certain loans and 
advances, and other financial assets. 

Mitigation: The Company has implemented a well-defined, 
balanced and comprehensive client policy, which drives all 
contracts and business dealings. Additionally, the finance team 
evaluates the financial capabilities of big clients and channel 
partners to mitigate credit risk.

Liquidity risk 

obligations associated with financial liabilities. 

Mitigation: The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to 

under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's 
reputation.
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Market risk 

It arises from potential future losses or changes in the value 
of financial instruments. This risk is attributable to market 
risk-sensitive financial instruments such as foreign currency 
receivables and payables. However, the Company is not 
exposed to currency risk as it does not have any transactions 
in foreign currency. The Company's exposure to market risk 
is primarily related to interest rate risk, which is a function of 
borrowing activities.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company has implemented a robust internal control system 
to safeguard its assets, ensure precise financial reporting, and 

enforced, assigning distinct responsibilities to mitigate conflicts 
of interest and reduce the risk of fraudulent activities. All 
significant transactions and expenditures undergo appropriate 
authorisation and approval, adhering strictly to Company 
policies. Advanced accounting software is utilised to maintain 
accurate and reliable financial records, which are subject 
to periodic review and verification. Furthermore, stringent 
physical controls are enforced to secure assets and limit access 
to authorised personnel exclusively. Employee training and 
awareness initiatives contribute to bolstering the overall control 
environment. In addition, IT controls are in place to safeguard 
against cyber threats and potential data breaches. Regular 

monitoring and internal auditing processes are conducted 

for enhancement. The Company remains steadfast in its 
commitment to compliance with relevant laws, regulations, 
and industry standards, placing great importance on ethical 
business practices.

Cautionary statement

Statements in this report on Management Discussion and 
Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 
estimates, expectations or predictions may be ‘forward-
looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws 
and regulations. Such statements represent the intention of 

to achieve certain goals. These assertions are predicated 
on a number of assumptions and future activities. Since the 
Company's operations are impacted by several internal and 
external factors outside of its control, actual results could 

looking statement published here only speaks as of the date it 
was made and only reflects the Company's current intentions, 
beliefs, or assumptions. The Company disclaims any obligation 
to update or modify any forward-looking statements, whether 
as a result of new data, unexpected developments, or other 
factors. Readers are urged to use their best judgement when 
determining the risks connected to the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

TO
 

THE MEMBERS OF 
Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Limited

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jyoti Resins and Adhesives 
Limited

 
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st

 
March, 2024, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows

 

for the year ended on that date and a 
summary of accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
the “financial statements”).

 

In our opinion and to the best of

 

our information and according to the explanations given to 
us,

 

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
31st

 

March, 2024

 

and its profit including

 

other

 

comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

 

Basis for Opinion

 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. 

 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the financial statements.

 

Key Audit Matters

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. There is no key 
audit matter with respect to financial statements to be communicated in our report.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board of Director’s Annual Report 
including Annexures, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report and 
Shareholders information thereto, but does not include the financial statements, and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to 
report that fact. 

 

 
Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS, specified 
under Section 133 of the Act

 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process.

 

 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude, that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 

Materiality is the magnitude

 

of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in 

 

(i)

 

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

 

(ii)

 

to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
 

1.
 

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by 
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable.

 
 

2.
 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, and based on our audit,
 

we report that:
 

 

a)

 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 
 

b)

 

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

 
 

c)

 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement 
of Cash Flows

 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

 
 

d)

 

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable.

 
 

e)

 

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as at 31 
March, 2024

 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none

 

of the directors is 
disqualified as at 31st

 

March, 2024

 

from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

 
 

f)

 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting.

 
 

g)

 

With respect to the

 

other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

 

(i)

 

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on 31 
March, 2024

 

on its financial position in its financial statements.

 

(Refer note 
no. 29)

 

(ii)

 

The

 

Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivatives 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

 

(iii)

 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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h) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate),other 
than disclosed in notes to the financial statements, have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entities

 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether

 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any

 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

 
 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

 
 
 

i)

 

The final dividend proposed for the previous year, declared and paid by the 
Company during the year, is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as 
applicable. As stated in Note 12

 

to the financial statements, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has proposed a final dividend for the year which is 
subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
Such a dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as 
applicable.

 
 

j)

 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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k) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the said software. Further, during the 
course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature 
being tampered with

 
and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as 

per the statutory requirements for record retention.
 

 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable 
from 1st

 
April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024.

 

 
 
 

For R Kabra & Co.

 

LLP

 

Chartered Accountants

 

Firm Registration No. 104502W/W100721

 
 
 
 

Ram S

 

Verma

 

Partner

 

Membership No.:

 

038913

 

UDIN:

 

24038913BKFXFW9174

 
 

Place: Mumbai

 

Date: 28.05.2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT                                       

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Limited  of even date)  

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:  

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:  
a.   

A.  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.  

B.  The Company does not have any intangible assets. Therefore Clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is 
not applicable.  
 

b.  The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management in a phased 
periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and therefore no 
adjustments are required  to be made in the books of account.   
 

c.  As per the information and explanations given to us  and on the basis of examination of records of 
the company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties  (other than properties where the 
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of lessee), disclosed in 
the financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the 
Company as at the balance sheet date.   

 d.  The Company has not revalued any of its  Property, Plant and Equipment  (Including right of use 
assets)  nor  intangible assets during the year. Therefore,  no comments  are called for in respect of 
whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered valuer and if any adjustment is 
required for more than 10% or more  in the  net carrying value of each class of the  assets.  

 e.
 

As per the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are 
pending against the Company as at 31st

 
March, 2024

 
for holding any benami property under the 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988, as amended) and rules made thereunder. 
 

 ii.
    a.

 
The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management and in our

 
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 

management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 
inventory were noticed on such verification 

 
 b.

 
As per the information and

 
explanations given to us, the Company has

 
not

 
been sanctioned

 
any

 working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of 
security of current assets, therefore clause 3(ii) (b) of the order is not applicable

 
 

  

 
iii.  In respect of loans, advances  in the nature of loans, guarantee and security provided during the year:  

a.  The Company has not provided any loans stood guarantee, nor provided security to any other entity 
during the year. However, the company has given advances in the nature of loans to employees.  
A)  Since the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,  Clause  

3(iii)(a)(A) of the Order is not applicable.  
B)  the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with 

respect to Advances in the nature of loans given to employees are as under:   
            (Rs. in lakhs)  

Particulars
 

Aggregate amount 
during the year

 
Balance 
Outstanding as at 
31 March, 2024

 
Advances in the nature of Loans

 
-

 

 
Employee Advances 

 

 
48.27

 

 
106.42

 
The company has not granted any loans nor stood any guarantee or provided security to parties 
other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates during the year.
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b. The Company has  made investments  in mutual funds during the year  amounting to Rs.501 lakhs.  

The company has not  given any loans, provided any guarantees or security during the year. In 
respect of the advances in the nature of loans given to employees, in our opinion, the terms and 
conditions are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.  
 

c. As stated above, the company has not given any loans during the year. In respect of advances in the 
nature of loans given to employees, where the schedule of repayment /receipts are stipulated, the 
repayment/receipts are regular.  
 

d. In our opinion and according to the  information and explanations given to us, no amount is overdue 
for repayment. Therefore, clause 3(iii)(d) is not applicable to the company.  
 

e. As per the information and explanations given to us, and based on our audit of the records, the 
Company has not granted any loans during the year.  No cases were observed where any advance in 
the nature of loan granted to employees has fallen due during the year, or which has been renewed 
or extended or fresh loans granted by the company to settle the overdue  of existing advances to 
such parties . Therefore, clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.  
 

f. The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.  

 
iv. The Company has not granted any loans nor made any investments or given any guarantees and 

securities during the year. Concerned by, provisions of sections 185 and 186 are not applicable. Hence 
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.  
 

v. As per the information and explanations given to us,  the Company has not accepted any deposit or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
 

vi. In our opinion and according to the information an explanation given to us, the Company has 
maintained cost records specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the above 
records. 
 

vii.  In respect of statutory dues: 
a. In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 

including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duty 
of customs, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 
The company is not liable to sales tax, service tax, duty of excise, value added tax and cess. There 
are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at 31st March, 2024 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 
 

b. In our opinion and as per the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues 
referred to in clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

 
viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961).  

ix.  
(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of   

interest thereon to any lender.     
 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other 
lender. 
 

(c) In our opinion, since the company has not taken any term loans the clause 3 (viii) (c) is not 
applicable. 
 

(d) Based on the examination of the financial statements of the Company, the company has not raised any 
funds therefore the clause 3 (viii) (d) is not applicable. 
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(e) Since the Company does not have any subsidiary, the question of taking any funds from any entity or 

person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries does not arise. Therefore, clause 
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.  
 

(f) Since the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, the 
question of raising any loan on the pledge of securities held in their name does not arise.  Therefore, 
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
x. (a)  The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or future public offer 

(including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.  
                                                                                                   

(b) As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any private placement 
of shares or any Convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 
Therefore Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

 

 
(c)  a)  No fraud by the Company or any fraud on  the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.   

 
b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the Auditors in Form 
ADT-  4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year upto the date of this report.  
 

c) As per the information and explanations given to us,  since there were no  whistle blower complaints            
received by the Company during the year, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.  
  (d)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clauses 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order 

are
 
not applicable.

 
 (e)

 
In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

 
 (f)

 
a) In our opinion, the Company

 
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature 

of its business.  However,
 

it requires to be strengthened
 

further.
  

 b)
 
We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during 

the year and till date. However, we have not reassessed or modified our audit procedures in determining 
the nature, timing and extent of our audit based on these

 
internal audit

 
reports.

 
 (g)

 
In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with them. Hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 
the Company. 

 
  (h)

 
a) In our opinion, the Company is

 
not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. Hence, clauses 3(xvi)(a), 3(xvi)(b) and 3((xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable.  
 

 b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities during the year. Therefore, the question of conducting the above activities without a valid 
Certificate of Registration does not arise.

 
 c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the condition of fulfilling the criteria for CIC is not applicable. The 
Company is neither an exempted nor an unregistered CIC and therefore the continuing the criteria of a 
CIC, by the Company are not applicable.

 
 

d) As per the information and explanations given to us, since the Company is not a Core Investment 
Company, the Group does not have any CIC investment company within the Group (as defined in the 
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly clause 3(xvi)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable.

 
 

(i)

 

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and the also during the immediately 
preceding financial year.
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(j) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Therefore, the 
question of taking into consideration any of issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing 
auditors does not arise. Accordingly,  clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
(k)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date.  

 We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

 
 (l)

 
a)  As per the information and explanations given to us, since the Company does not have any other 

than 
 
ongoing projects, no unspent amount is required to be transferred to a Fund specified in 

Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a
 

period of six months of the expiry of the financial year 
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

 
 b) In

 
our opinion, there is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the 

Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, which is required to be transferred to special 
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. 

 
 (m)

 
Since the company is not a holding company, the clause 3(xxi) of the Order

 
is not applicable.

 

 
For R Kabra & Co. LLP

 Chartered Accountants
 Firm Registration No:

 
104502W/W100721

 
 
 Ram S Verma

 Partner
 Membership No: 038913

 UDIN:
 
24038913BKFXFW9174

 
 Place: Mumbai 

 Date:

  

28.05.2024
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over  Financial Reporting  
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these  Financial Statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

 

  

 

 
ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF JYOTI RESINS AND ADHESIVES LIMITED  

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of 
even date)  

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JYOTI RESINS AND ADHESIVES 
LIMITED

 
(“the Company”) as of 31st

 
March, 2024

 
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date.
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the

 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 

under the Act.
 

Auditor’s Responsibility

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with 
reference to these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements was est ablished and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Financ ial Statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal

 

financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these 
Financial Statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over

 

Financial Reporting

 

with reference to these 
Financial Statements.

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with referenc e to these Financial 
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 

Opinion
 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these  
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating ef fectively as at 
31st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

 

 

For R Kabra
 
& Co.

 
LLP

   

Chartered Accountants    

Firm Registration No:  104502W/W100721    
 
 

 

   
Ram S Verma    
Partner    
Membership No.: 038913    
UDIN:  24038913BKFXFW9174  
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date:  28.05.2024  
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(Amounts are in Lakh ₹)

As at As at
45,382.00 45,016.00

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4,823.60 4,725.79
Financial Assets

Investments 4 0.04 0.04
Other financial assets 5 147.61 2,798.03

Total non-current assets 4,971.25 7,523.85

�Current assets

Inventories 6 496.82 503.39
Financial Assets

Investment 4 3.79 2.27

Trade receivables 7 9,398.14 9,145.70

Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,818.05 386.03
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalent 9 8,241.29 2,702.38

Other Current assets 10 1,103.71 801.33
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS 27,033.04 21,064.96

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

 Equity Share Capital 11 1,200.00 1,200.00
 Other Equity 12 15,423.50 9,397.73

Total Equity 16,623.50 10,597.73

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 14 93.22 43.10

Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) 16 54.17 28.33
Total non-current liabilities 147.39 71.43

Current liabilities
 Financial Liabilities
     Trade Payables 13
      (a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
           and small enterprises 0.00 0.00

      (b) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other
           than micro enterprises and small enterprises 990.19 1,420.48

Other financial liabilities 14 202.79 14.04
 Provisions 15 59.34 166.37
 Other Current liabilities 17 8,879.83 8,619.74
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 130.00 175.17
Total current liabilities 10,262.15 10,395.80
Total Liabilities 10,409.54 10,467.23
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27,033.04 21,064.96

Particulars Notes

22,061.79 13,541.11

Material accounting policies 2 0.00 0.00

As per our report of even date attached
For R KABRA  & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number :104502W/W100721

RAM S VERMA
Partner
Membership no: 038913

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28-05-2024

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
JYOTI RESINS & ADHESIVES LIMITED
CIN :  L24229GJ1993PLC020879

UTKARSH J PATEL JAGDISH N PATEL
Managing Director Chairman cum Whole Time 

Director
DIN: 02874427 DIN: 00304924               

ASHOK C JARDOSH TEJAL M VARDE
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 28-05-2024

Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2024
CIN : L24229GJ1993PLC020879

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Amounts are in Lakh ₹

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue from Operations 18 25730.07 26125.30
Other Income 19 682.25 226.25
Total Income 26412.32 26351.55

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 20 8541.90 13519.70
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in 
trade and work-in progress

21 82.22 196.22

Employee benefits expense 22 2507.66 1775.42
Finance costs 23 4.59 3.10
Depreciation and amortisation 24 109.22 144.56
Other expenses 25 6206.77 4571.45
Total Expenses 17452.38 20210.44

Profit before exceptional items and  tax 8959.95 6141.10
Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00
Profit before Tax 8959.95 6141.10
Tax expnese:
Current tax 2250.00 1550.00
Earlier year excess provision written back                      (16.17) (56.79)                    
Deferred tax (credit) / charge 16 14.39 3.63
Total tax expenses 2248.22 1496.84

Profit for the year 6711.72 4644.26

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans 45.50 0.00
Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss                      (11.45) 0.00

Net other comprhensive income not to be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, net of 
tax

34.05
0.00

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to                  
profit or loss
Fair value changes on derivatives designated as 
Cash Flow Hedge, Net 0.00 0.00

Fair value changes on investments, Net 0.00 0.00
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss 0.00 0.00

Net other comprhensive income to be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 0.00 0.00

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of 
tax 34.05 0.00

Total comprehensive income for the year 6745.77 4644.26

Earnings Per Share:
Equity shares of par value ?10 each
Basic 55.93 38.70
Diluted 55.93 38.70
( Refer Note 4.25)
Material Accounting Policies 2

Particulars Notes

As per our report of even date attached
For R KABRA  & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number :104502W/W100721

RAM S VERMA
Partner
Membership no: 038913

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28-05-2024

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
JYOTI RESINS & ADHESIVES LIMITED
CIN :  L24229GJ1993PLC020879

UTKARSH J PATEL JAGDISH N PATEL
Managing Director Chairman cum Whole Time 

Director
DIN: 02874427 DIN: 00304924               

ASHOK C JARDOSH TEJAL M VARDE
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 28-05-2024

CIN : L24229GJ1993PLC020879

₹

(Refer Note 2.31)
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 march 2024

Amounts are in Lakh ₹
CIN : L24229GJ1993PLC020879

 Year ended  Year ended 
 31 March 2024  31 March 2023 

 
Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before tax                8,960.08                                    6,141.10 
Adjustments:
Depreciation                   109.22                                       144.56 
Cash Discount                     45.14                                         44.75 
Bad debts                   192.52                                           5.02 
Interest and other finance expense                       4.59                                           3.10 
Net loss / (gain) on fair value change                     (1.54)                                       (11.57)
Interest Income                 (669.79)                                     (206.96)
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment                     (5.72)                                              -   
Profit on sale of Investments                     (2.17)                                              -   
Operating profit before working capital changes                8,632.34                                    6,120.00 

Movement in funds/working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Decrease / (increase) in  Trade receivables                 (490.49)                                  (2,762.33)
Decrease / (increase) in  inventories                       6.57                                       395.82 
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets                 (232.55)                                       (33.05)
Decrease / (increase) in other bank balances              (5,538.91)                                     (955.41)
Increase/ (decrease) in other non current financial liabilities                     50.12                                           2.47 
Decrease / (increase) in other non current financial assets                2,650.42                                  (2,715.87)
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables                 (430.29)                                    1,214.38 
Increase/ (decrease) in other current financial 
liabilities                   188.75                                       (16.00)

Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities                   260.09                                       289.00 
Increase/ (decrease) in borrowings                           -                                           (5.27)
Increase/ (decrease) in Provisions                   (89.47)                                       (52.81)

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities                5,006.58                                    1,481.42 
Direct taxex paid              (2,320.33)                                  (1,401.32)
Net cash flow from/(ued in) operative activities   A                2,686.25                                         80.10 

Cash flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments                 (227.51)                                     (243.77)
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments                     26.09                                              -   
Investment purchase                 (501.00)                                         18.33 
Investment sold                   503.00                                              -   
Interest Received                   669.79                                       206.96 
Net cash flow from / (used in)  investing activities  B                   470.37                                       (18.47)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends Paid                 (720.00)                                     (300.00)
Interest and financial expense                     (4.59)                                         (3.10)
Net cash generated from /(used In) financing activities  C                 (724.59)                                     (303.10)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents A+B+C                2,432.02                                     (240.97)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period                   386.03                                       627.00 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period                2,818.05                                       386.03 

JYOTI RESINS & ADHESIVES LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31 
March 2023 (continued)
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 march 2024

 As at 
31 March 2024 

 As at 
31 March 2023 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash On Hand                       9.61                   14.52 
Balances With Bank
     In Current Account                   506.75                 371.51 
     In Fixed Deposit Accounts With Original Maturity 
Of 3 Months Or Less                2,301.68                         -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents                2,818.05                 386.03 

Significant accounting policies 4

Notes To Cash Flow Statement

As per our report of even date attached
For R KABRA  & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number :104502W/W100721

RAM S VERMA
Partner
Membership no: 038913

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28-05-2024

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
JYOTI RESINS & ADHESIVES LIMITED
CIN :  L24229GJ1993PLC020879

UTKARSH J PATEL JAGDISH N PATEL
Managing Director Chairman cum Whole Time 

Director
DIN: 02874427 DIN: 00304924               

ASHOK C JARDOSH TEJAL M VARDE
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 28-05-2024
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 march 2024

Amounts are in Lakh ₹

As at                                
1st April , 2023

 Changes in 
Equity Share 

Capital due to 
prior period  

Restated 
balance at the 

beginning of the 
current 

reporting Period

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the current 
year

As at                       
31st March, 2024

1200 -                   -                -                       1200

As at 31st March 2024

As at                                
1st April , 2022

 Changes in 
Equity Share 

Capital due to 
prior period 

errors 

Restated 
balance at the 

beginning of 
the current 

reporting 
Period

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during the 
current year

As at                       
31st March, 2023

400 -                 -              800                    1200

As at 31st March 2023

Reserve & 
Surplus

Revaluation 
Reserve

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income Total

As at 1st April 2023 7717.82 1679.91 0.00 9397.73

Profit for the year 6711.72 0.00 0.00 6711.72
Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

0.00 0.00 34.05 34.05

Less: Dividends 720.00 0.00 0.00 720.00
Total 
comprehensive 
income for the year

5991.72 0.00 34.05 6025.77

As at 31 March 2024 13709.55 1679.91 34.05 15423.50

Retained earnings

A. Equity Share Capital 

B. Other Equity

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Reserve & 
Surplus

Revaluation 
Reserve

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income Total

As at 1st April 2022 4173.57 1679.91 0.00 5853.48
Profit for the year 4644.26 0.00 0.00 4644.26
Less : Issue of bonus 
shares 800.00 0.00 0.00 800.00
Less: Dividends 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
Total comprehensive 
income for the year 3544.26 0.00 0.00 3544.26

As at 31 March 2023 7717.82 1679.91 0.00 9397.73

Retained earnings

Amounts are in Lakh ₹

Amounts are in Lakh ₹

Amounts are in Lakh ₹
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Jyoti Resins and Adhesives Limited is a public limited company incorporated and 
docmiciled in India. The address of its registered office is Survey No.873, Opp. Anand 
Healthcare, Ranchhodpura Road, Santej, Tal. Kalol, Dist. Gandhinagar 382721, Gujarat. 
The Company is in the business of manufacturing of high grade synthetic wood adhesives 
with its EURO7000 brand. The Company has a huge plant with the capacity of 2000 
tons/month, which is located at Santej, Kalol, Gujarat state of India.

 
1 Corporate information

 
2 Material accounting policies

Notes on Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023For the year ended 31 march 2024

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(IND AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain 
financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provision of the Companies 
Act,2013 (“the Act”) as applicable, and guidelines issued by the Securities & Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,2015 and relevant rules issued 
thereafter.                                                                      
Fair value measurements are categorised as below based on the degree to which the 
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to 
the fair value measurement in its entirety:  
•  inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or             Level 1
liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date; 
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable 
for the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly; and 
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities. 
Above levels of fair value hierarchy are applied consistently and generally, there are no 
transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy unless the circumstances change 
warranting such transfer.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting 
standards is initially adopted or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the 
Accounting policy hitherto in used.

As the quarter and year figures are taken from the source and rounded to the nearest digit, 
the figures reported for the previous quarters might not always adopt to the year-end 
figures reported in these statements.

The Company’s presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees (`) and all values 
are rounded to the nearest digits.

2.2 
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Notes on Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023For the year ended 31 march 2024

2.3 Preparation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and 
presented in accordance with Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosures with 
respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in 
the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial 

statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under Ind AS and the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended. 

2.4 Operating cycle for current and non-current classification

Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company is twevle months. Accordingly 
Assest held and liabilities incurred within 12 months are classified as current assets and 

current liabilities. All the remaining assets and liabilities are classified as non current 
assets and liabilities

2.5 Use of estimates

The preparation of the Company’s IndAS financial statements requires management to 
make informed judgements, reasonable assumptions and estimates that affect the 
amounts reported in the financial statements and notes thereto. Uncertainty about these 
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or liabilities affected in the future periods. These assumptions and estimates are 
reviewed periodically based on the most recently available information. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In the assessment of the Company, the most significant effects of use of judgments and/or 
estimates on the amounts recognized in the financial statements relate to the following 
areas:
•  Useful lives of property, plant & equipment;
•  Valuation of inventories;
•  Measurement of recoverable amounts of assets / cash-generating units;
•  Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits;

•  Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets;  and
•  Provisions and Contingencies.

2.6 Going Concern

The board of directors have considered the financial position of the Company at 31st 
March, 2024 and projected cash flows and financial performance of the Company for at 
least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements as well as 
planned cost and cash improvement actions, and believe that the plan for sustained 
profitability remains on course.
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Notes on Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023For the year ended 31 march 2024

 
 
2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
a) The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset only if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
b) Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. 
c) The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost (including 
import duties and non-refundable taxes) after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any 
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary for 
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the initial estimate of 
any decommissioning obligation (if any) and the applicable borrowing cost till the asset is 
ready for its intended use.
d) Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
e) Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipmentis recognized in 
profit or loss.
f) Major spare parts which meet the definition of property plant and equipment are 
capitalized as property, plant and equipment. In other cases, the spare parts are 
inventorised on procurement and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on 
issue/consumption. 
g) Direct expenses incurred during construction period on capital projects are capitalised.                                                                                                                            

 
 
2.8 Capital work-in-progress:
Projects under which property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use 
are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable 
interest.                                                                                                                         

 
 

2.9 Investment property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16’s 
requirements for cost model. The cost of Investment property includes the cost of replacing parts 
and borrowing costs if the recognition criteria are met. When significant part of the investment 
property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based 
on their specific useful lives.                                                                                                                                                  
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 
The Company’s Investment property consists only of land and hence depreciation thereon is not 
provided. The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are 
determined based on evaluation performed by accredited external independent valuers. An 
investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is included in Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the period in which the property is derecognised.                                                                                                                     
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Notes on Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023For the year ended 31 march 2024

 
 

2.10 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance 
Internally generated intangible assets Expenditure on research activities is recognised as 
an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally generated intangible asset 
arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use 
or sale,
- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it, the ability to use or sell the 
intangible asset,
- how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the 
development and to use or sell the intangible asset, and
-the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its 
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of the 
expenditure incurredfrom the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition 
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, 
development expenditure is recognised in profit and loss in the
period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated 
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Amortization of Intangible assets
An intangible asset with finite useful life that are acquired separately and where the useful 
life is 2 years or more is capitalised and carried at cost less accumulated amortization. 
Amortization is recognised on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset.
Internally generated intangible assets are amortized over the period for which the 
company expects to derive the economic benefits from such assets.

De-recognition
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset, are recognised in Statement of profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognised.

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated 
depreciation less accumulated impairment, if any.                                                                                                                          
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Notes on Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023For the year ended 31 march 2024

 
 

2.11 Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using the Straight Line 
Method based on the useful life of the assets as prescribed under Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. In case of additions or deletions during the year, depreciation is 
computed from the month in which such assets are put to use and up to previous month 
of sale or disposal, as the case may be.                                                                                                                   

 
 

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cheques and drafts in hand, balances 
with bank and deposits held at call with financial institutions, short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.                                                                                                               

2.13 Transaction in Foreign Currency
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are 
generally recognized in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 
are recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on 
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively)                                                                                                              

 
 

2.14 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial 

liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments 
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are 
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognized immediately in profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are 
measured according to the category in which they are classified.                                                                                                             
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Notes on Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023For the year ended 31 march 2024

 
 

2.15 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investment in equity instrument are classified at fair value through profit or loss, unless 
the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in 
fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are 
not held for trading.

Financial assets that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or fair value through other 
comprehensive income criteria are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A 
financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or fair value through other 
comprehensive income criteria may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss 
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets and 
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets which are fair valued through profit or loss are measured at fair value at 
the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement 
recognized in profit or loss.
Financial assets that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or fair value through other 
comprehensive income criteria are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A 
financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or fair value through other 
comprehensive income criteria may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss 
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets and 
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets which are fair valued through profit or loss are measured at fair value at 
the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement 
recognized in profit or loss.                                                                                                               

 
 

2.16 De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

IThe Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual right to the cash 
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows 

on the financial asset in a transaction which substantially all the risk and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. 
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or expired; the difference between the carrying amount of 
derecognized financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized as profit or loss.                                                                                                           
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2.17 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value unless they do not carry a 
significant financing component, in which case they are recognized at the transaction 
price.
The Company generally determines the allowance for expected credit losses based on 
historical loss experience adjusted to reflect current and estimated future economic 
conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future economic 
conditions relating to industries the company deals with and the countries where it 
operates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered credit 
reports and other related credit information for its customers to estimate the probability of 
default in future.                                                                                                          

 
 

2.18 Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. 
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or 
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying 
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party 
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.                                                                                                          

 
 

2.19 Trade payables
Trade payables are amounts due to vendors for purchase of goods in the ordinary course 
of business and are classified as current liabilities to the extent it is expected to be paid 
within the normal operating cycle of the business.                                                                                           

 
 

2.20 Leases 
Wherever a Contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified Asset by either of 
the Parties for a period of time and in exchange for consideration, there arises a Lease 
Contract. At inception of every Contract, the Corporation examines the existence to the 
lease elements in a Contract and thereafter carries out appropriate accounting either as
Lessor or Lessee.                                                                                        

 
 

2.20.1 Leases 
At the commencement of the lease, the Corporation recognises right-of-use asset and 
lease liability, with an exception
of short-term leases or lease of low-value underlying assets. The right-of-use asset is 
measured at cost, made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, initial direct 
costs, an estimate of dismantling cost including removal of the
asset at the end of the lease and any lease payments on or before commencement (net 
of any incentives received) of  the lease;
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The lease liability is measured at Present Value of the lease payments to be made during 
the course of the lease by
using incremental borrowing rate that prevail at the beginning of each quarterly period for 
a similar tenure (such as AAA Corporate Bond rates for varying tenures of 5, 10 & 15 
years) for all of the contracts executed in that period. The variable lease payments, which 
do not depend on an index or a rate, are excluded from the measurement of lease 
liability; The Corporation has elected not to separate non-lease components in a contract 
and account as one unified lease contract covering all underlying assets by using the 
practical expedient prescribed in the Standard;
On re-measurement of lease liability, the right-of-use asset is suitably readjusted unless 
such readjustment lead to a
restatement of carrying value below zero, in which case, the resultant amount is directly 
routed through Statement of
Profit and Loss Account.                                                                                                        

 
 

2.20.2 Lessor: 
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. In all other cases, it is treated as operating 
lease; The Corporation recognizes assets held under a finance lease in its balance sheet 
and present them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease;
Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the relevant lease except where another systematic basis is more representative of the 
time pattern of the benefit derived from the asset given
2.21 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value following First in First 
Out (FIFO) method after providing for obsolescence and other losses where considered 
necessary.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labor, 
other direct costs and appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure 
and also other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Overhead expenditures are being allocated on the basis of normal operating 
capacity. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and 
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale.
Non- production inventory (other than those supplied along with main plant and 
machinery, which are capitalised and depreciated accordingly) are charged to profit or 
loss on consumption.
Raw Materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written 
down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected 
to be sold at or above cost. Work in progress and finished goods are valued at cost or Net 
Realisable Value whichever is lower. Saleable scrap is valued at the net realisable value.
on lease
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2.22  Impairment of assets
 Financial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on Expected Credit Losses (ECL) model to 
the following :
- financial assets measured at amortised cost
- financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Expected credit loss are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to :
- the twelve month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those 
default events on the financial instruments that are possible within twelve months after 
the reporting date); or
- full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible 
default events over the life of the financial instrument).

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset 
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18, the Company always 
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to life time expected credit losses.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment 
loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is based on its historically 
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for 
forward-looking estimates. At regular intervals, the historically observed default rates are 
updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed. In addition to the 
historical pattern of credit loss, the Company has considered the likelihood of increased 
credit risk and consequential default by customers including revisions in the credit period 
provided to the customers. In making this assessment, the Company has considered 
current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to industries/business 
verticals that the company deals with and the countries where it operates. In addition the 
Company has also considered credit reports and other credit information for its 
customers to estimate the probability of default in future. The Company believes that the 
carrying amount of allowance for expected credit loss with respect to trade receivables, 
unbilled revenue and other financial assets is adequate.
on lease
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2.23  Non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not 
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to 
which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to 
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to 
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss to such extent. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, such that the increase in the carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for 
the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

2.24  Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 
Revenue from sale of goods are net of  applicable taxes, estimated returns and 
reduction/addition towards variable consideration includes discounts, rebates, 
incentives, promotional couponing and schemes. Advance received from customer 
before transfer of control of goods to the customer is recognised as Current Liabilities.
The company estimates the amount of variable components based on historical, current 
and forecast information available and either expected value method or most likely 
method, as appropriate and records a corresponding liability in other payables; the 
actual amounts may be different from such estimates. These differences, which have 
historically not been significant, are recognized as a change in management estimate in 
a subsequent period.
The revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of 
goods and services to a customer, significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods 
are transferred to the buyer, recoverability of consideration is probable, the amount of 
revenue and cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably and there is no continuing managerial involvement over the goods 
sold.
Income from rendering of services is recognised over time as the customer receives the 
benefit of Company's performance and the Company has an enforceable right to 
payment for services rendered .                                         
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Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and 
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net 
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is 
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow 

to the Company and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Revenue / Income and Cost / Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual basis as 

they are earned/ incurred, except those with significant uncertainties. 

Dividend Income from investment is recognized as and when received. 

Other Incomes are accounted for on accrual basis except when the recovery is uncertain, 
it is accountedfor on receipt basis. Claims made against the Company are evaluated as to 
type thereof, period for which they are outstandingand appropriate provisions made. 
Claims are stated net of recoveries from insurance companies and others. Administrative 

and other expenses are stated net of recoveries, wherever applicable.

                    2.25  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of these assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in 
which they are incurred.                                   

2.26  Exceptional items
An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in 
order to improve an understanding of the performance of the Compnay is treated as an 
exceptional item and disclosed as such in the financial statements.                  
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2.27  Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions :
Provisions are recognised when the Companny has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is 
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit 

and loss net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised 
as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities:
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past 
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a 
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 
made.

Contingent asset: 
Contingent Assets is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence 
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are disclosed in the 
Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefit is 
probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation 
under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.                        
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2.28  Empolyees Benefit
(a) Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be 
settled wholly within12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services upto the end of the reporting 
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.
b) Defined Contribution Plan: Monthly contribution to the provident fund which is under defined 
contribution schemes are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss and deposited with the 
provident fund authorities on monthly basis.
c) Defined Benefit Plans: Gratuities to employees are covered under the employees’ group 
gratuity schemes and the premium is paid on the basis of their actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gain and losses net of deferred taxes arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in acturial assumtions are reccognized in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Any short falls in case of premature 
resignation or termination to the extent not reimbursed by LIC is being absorbed inthe year of 
payment.
d) Termination benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of accrual 
when the Company is committed without any possibility of withdrawal of an offer made to 
either terminate employment before the normal retirement date or as a result of an offer made 
to encourage volutary retirement.
2.29  Taxes on income
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax expense. Income tax expenses are 
recognized in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, income tax expenses are also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Current tax is the 
tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 
by the end of reporting period by the governing taxation laws, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous periods. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate. Current year's Income Tax Provision is netted off against current year's advance 
tax paid, tax deducted at source receivable and tax collected at source receivable. 
Deferred taxes arising from deductible and taxable temporary differences between the tax 
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements are 
recognized using substantively enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be received or settled. 
The deferred tax arising from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit 

or loss at the time of the transaction are not recognized. Deferred tax asset are recognized 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 
is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to 
be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right 
to do the same.
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2.30  Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing 
and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect 
method, adjusting the profit before tax excluding exceptional items for the effects of: 
(i) changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables; 
(ii) non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and 
losses; and 
(iii) all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 
Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash 
Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as at the date of Balance 
Sheet.
2.31  Earning Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using net profit or loss after tax and 
the weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during the 
year. Dilutive earning per share is computed  using the weighted average using net profit 
or loss number of common and potential dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding 
during the year, except when the resultswould be anti-dilutive.
2.32  Other Income
A. Interest income on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by reference to the 
principal outstanding and the effective interest rate including interest on investments 
classified as fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive 
income. Interest receivable on customer dues is recognised as income in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on accrual basis provided there is no uncertainty of realisation. 
B. Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is 
established. 
C. Government grants, which are revenue in nature and are towards compensation for the 
qualifying costs incurred by the Company, are recognised as other income/reduced from 
underlying expenses in profit or loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. 
Government grants related to an asset are reduced from the cost of an asset until the asset 
is ready to use and the grant post that is presented as deferred income. Subsequently the 
grant is recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected 
useful life of the related asset. Government grant receivable in the form of duty credit scrips 
is recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the 
export is done or the application is made to the government authorities and to the extent 
there is no uncertainty towards its receipt. 
D. Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income 
arises and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably.
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2.33 Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as 
follows: 
(i) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for; 
(ii) uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid; 
(iii) funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies, if 
any; and 
(iv) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material 
and relevant in the opinion of management. 
Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business 
are not disclosed to avoid excessive details.

2.34 Recent accounting pronouncements
There are no pronouncements made during this year.
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(see Accoun�ng Policy In Note 2.7 And Note 2.11)

Reconcilia�on of carrying amount

Particulars Land Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture and 
Fixtures Vehicles Computers Laboratory 

building
Office 

premises Total 

Gross Carrying Amount
Balance at 1 April 2022 2778.78 295.60 418.05 192.65 212.42 23.92 1.07 1152.16 5074.64
Additions 0.00 38.39 51.63 66.96 76.46 10.32 0.00 0.00 243.77

Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Balance at 31 March 2023 2778.78 333.99 469.69 259.61 288.88 34.24 1.07 1152.16 5318.41
Balance at 1 April 2023 2778.78 333.99 469.69 259.61 288.88 34.24 1.07 1152.16 5318.41
Additions 0.00 69.10 30.20 10.32 105.98 11.92 0.00 0.00 227.51

Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (52.31) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (52.31)

Balance at 31 March 2024 2778.78 403.09 499.89 269.93 342.55 46.16 1.07 1152.16 5493.61
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2022 0.00 49.23 204.21 43.83 96.78 11.06 0.81 42.14 448.06

Depreciation for the year 0.00 12.33 27.10 26.47 30.19 7.08 0.03 41.36 144.56

Disposals 0.00
Balance at 31 March 2023 0.00 61.56 231.31 70.31 126.97 18.13 0.85 83.50 592.62

Balance at 1 April 2023 0.00 61.56 231.31 70.31 126.97 18.13 0.85 83.50 592.62

Depreciation for the year 0.00 10.70 27.04 23.41 27.72 9.10 0.03 11.22 109.22

Disposals (31.84) (31.84)
Balance at 31 March 2024 0.00 72.25 258.34 93.71 122.85 27.24 0.88 94.73 670.01
Carring amount (net)

As at 31 March 2023 2778.78 272.43 238.38 189.30 161.91 16.11 0.22 1068.66 4725.79
As at 31 March 2024 2778.78 330.83 241.54 176.22 219.69 18.92 0.19 1057.43 4823.60

(Amounts are in Lakh ₹)
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Particulars

Non-current investments
(a) Unquoted investments
Investments in equity instruments - Others
At amortised cost

Particulars Face Value No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Atithya Non Trade Association 500 6 0.03                      6 0.03
Neptune Co Op Housing Soc Ltd 600 2 0.01                      2 0.01

(A) Total of Unquoted Investments 0.04 0.04
 
(b) Quoted Investments
At FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments

(B) Total of quoted Investments

Particulars Face Value No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Saumya Capital Limited 10 2994 0.33 2994 0.01          
Yes Bank Limited 2 14881 3.45 14881 2.26          

17,875         3.79 17,875           2.27          

Current 3.79 2.27
Non-current 0.04 0.04
Total Investments 3.83 2.31

(a)  Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 3.79 2.27
(b)  Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.04 0.04
(c)  Aggregate amount of impairment in investments -                     -                 

3.83 2.31

 As at 
31 March, 2024 

 As at 
31 March, 2023 

 As at 
31 March, 2023 

 As at 
31 March, 2024 

Other financial assets
Fixed Deposits with Banks with original maturity of more than 12 months 110.00 2759.67
Business Deposits 37.61 38.36

147.61 2798.03

Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value
Raw Materials 172.47 87.84
Work in Progess 0.27 37.68
Finished Goods 260.17 304.98
Packing Materials 63.91 72.89
Total 496.82 503.39

 As at 
31 March, 2024 

 As at 
31 March, 

Inventories

4. Investments
    (See accounting policies in Notes 4.12) (Amounts are in Lakh ₹)

5. Other financial assets

6. Inventroies

Notes on Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

2.15

As at
31 March, 2023
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Particulars Less than 
6 months

6 months to 
1 year 1 to 2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

Trade Receivable - Considered Good 
and Secured -            -            -                   -               -         -           

Trade Receivable - Considered Good 
and      Unsecured 8,605.14   468.00       52.00               52.00           136.00   9,313.14  

Trade Receivable which have significant 
increase in Credit Risk 52.00        5.00           6.00                 6.00             16.00     85.00       

Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired
-            -            -                   -               -         -           

-           
TOTAL 8,657.14   473.00       58.00               58.00           152.00   9,398.14  

-               
9398.14

Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivables as on 31-03-2024

Total Trade Receivables net of credit loss
 Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance

Notes on Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

7. Trade receivables

Particulars Less than 
6 months

6 months to 
1 year 1 to 2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

Trade Receivable - Considered Good 
and Secured -              -               -                     -                 -           -             

Trade Receivable - Considered Good 
and Unsecured 8318.50 326.09 146.42 53.44 228.08 9072.54

Trade Receivable which have significant 
increase in Credit Risk 67.08 2.63 1.18 0.43 1.84 73.17

Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired
-              -               -                     -                 -           -             

TOTAL 8385.58 328.72 147.61 53.87 229.92 9145.70
-               

Total Trade Receivables net of credit lossallowance 9145.70
 Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance

Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivables as on 31-03-2023

Balances with Bank
     In Current Account 506.75 371.51
     In Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less 2301.68 0.00
Cash in hand 9.61 14.52

2818.05 386.03

8. Cash and bank balances
    Cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank Balances

8227.56 2693.84

Earmarked Account
Earmarked balances with Banks for Unclaimed and Unpaid Dividend Account 13.73 8.54
Total 8241.29 2702.38

In Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of more 
than 3 months but upto 12 months

9. Bank balance other than
    cash and cash equivalent
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Balance with statutory authorities 136.44 64.14
Sundry deposits and advances 965.72 734.71
Prepaid Expenses 1.55 2.49
Total 1103.71 801.33

10. Other current assets

 Number of 
shares 

(?)  Number of 
shares 

(?)

Authorized Share capital
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each with voting rights 5,40,00,000   5400.00 5,40,00,000  5400.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Share Capital
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each with voting rights 1,20,00,000   1200.00 1,20,00,000  1200.00

Total 1,20,00,000   1200.00 1,20,00,000  1200.00
(Refer notes (i) to (v) below)

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023As at 31 March 2024

(₹) (₹)

11. Equity Share capital (Amounts are in Lakh ₹ except No. of shares)

Notes:
(I) Reconciliation of the number of shares  and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount

At the commencement of the year
-Equity shares with voting rights 1,20,00,000   1200.00 40,00,000     400.00

Add : Issue of Bonus Shares during the year -                 0.00 80,00,000     800.00

At the end of the year 1,20,00,000   1200.00 1,20,00,000  1200.00
-Equity shares with voting rights

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023As at 31 March 2024

Note : During the  previous year ended 31st March, 2023 the Company has issued equity shares of face value of 
Rs. 10 each as bonus shares in the proportion of two bonus equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each  for every 
one equity share of face value of Rs. 10 held.

The company has only one class of  equity shares and the holders of these ordinary shares are entitiled to 
receive dividends as and when declared by the company. All shares rank equally with regard to the company's 
residual assets.

(ii) Details of rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the shares

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that 

class of 
shares

 Number of 
shares held 

% holding in 
that class of 

shares

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
Utkarsh Jagdishbhai Patel       12,06,345 10.05%      12,06,345 10.05%
Jagdish Nathalal Patel       18,24,939 15.21%      18,26,142 15.22%
Jyotika Jagdishbhai Patel       12,97,452 10.81%      12,97,452 10.81%
Udita Jagdishbhai Patel         7,22,310 6.02%        7,22,310 6.02%
Naisha IT Solutions pvt ltd         9,23,877 7.70%        9,23,877 7.70%
Priyanka Utkarshbhai Patel       12,67,677 10.56%      12,67,677 10.56%

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March 2023As at 31 March 2024

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

L.L.P 7.60 %9,12,516
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 Sr No  Promoter Name 
 No of Shares 

as on 31st 
March ,2024 

 No of Shares 
as on 31st 

March ,2023 

 % of Total 
Shares as at 
31st March, 

2024 

 % Change 
during the 

year 

1 Jagdish Nathalal Patel 18,26,142        18,24,939      15.21% 0.01%
2 Jagdish Nathalal Patel HUF 18,594             18,594           0.15% -                
3 Utkarsh Jagdishbhai Patel 12,06,345        12,06,435      10.05% -                
4 Utkarsh Jagdishbhai Patel HUF 21,699             21,699           0.18% -                
5 Jyotika Jagdishbhai Patel 12,97,452        12,97,452      10.81% -                
6 Priyanka Utkarshbhai Patel 12,67,677        12,67,677      10.56% -                
7 Subhadra Ramanlal Patel 4,62,018          4,62,018        3.85% -                

(iv) The details of the shares held by promoters as at March 31,
       2024 are as follows

 Sr No  Promoter Name 
 No of Shares as 

on 31st March 
2023 

 No of Shares as 
on 31st March 

2022 

 % of Total 
Shares as at 31st 

March 2023 

 % Change 
during the 

year 

1 Jagdish Nathalal Patel 18,24,939                  6,08,313 15.21% 200.00%

2 Jagdish Nathalal Patel HUF 18,594                            6,198 0.15% 200.00%

3 Utkarsh Jagdishbhai Patel 12,06,435                  4,02,115 10.05% 200.02%

4 Utkarsh Jagdishbhai Patel HUF 21,699                            7,233 0.18% 200.00%
5 Jyotika Jagdishbhai Patel 12,97,452                  4,32,484 10.81% 200.00%
6 Priyanka Utkarshbhai Patel 12,67,677                  4,22,559 10.56% 200.00%
7 Suketu Ramanlal Patel -                             1,20,060 0.00% -100.00%

8 Subhadra Ramanlal Patel 4,62,018                               -   3.85% -              

(iv) The details of the shares held by promoters as at March 31,
2023 are as follows

As at 
31 March, 2023

As at 
31 March, 2022

As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 

2020

As at 
31 March, 

2019
Equity shares with voting rights

Fully paid up pursuant to contracts 
without payment being received in cash

-                   -                      -                    -                -              

Fully paid up by way of bonus shares 80,00,000        -                      -                    -                -              
Shares bought back -                   -                      -                    -                -              

Particulars

Aggregate number of shares

(v) Details for a period of five years immediately preceding the date from the balance sheet as at

     31st March 2024 in respect of:
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6711.72

13709.54

15423.50

15423.50
16623.50
16623.50



In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, 
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings that define capital 
structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to 
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of 
any borrowing in the current period. All the borrowings have been paid in full in the current period and 
there is no balance of outstanding borrowing as at 31 March 2024.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years 
ended 31 March 2024.
As company has no Net Debt Gearing ratio is Not Applicable

The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders. The 
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
Companies are required to pay / distribute dividend after deducting applicable withholding income 
taxes.

The amount of per share dividend recognized as distribution to equity shareholders in accordance 
with Companies Act 2013 is as follows :

Dividends

2023 2022
Final dividend for fiscal 2023 @ Rs 6 per share 720.00 0.00

Final dividend for fiscal 2022 @ Rs 3 per shars 0.00 300.00

Year ended March 31Particulars

The Board of Directors, at its meeting on May 28, 2024, recommended a final dividend of Rs. 9 per 
equity share for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. This payment is subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company.
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13. Trade payables

Particulars
As at 

31 March, 
2024

As at 
31 March, 

2023

Trade payables to related parties             -                  -   
Total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises             -                  -   
Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

990.19 1420.48 

Total 990.19 1420.48 

Note : The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development Act, 2006 and hence disclosure relating to 
amounts unpaid at the year end has not been given.

Particualars
Less than 1 

year
1 to 2 
years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years Total

MSME -               -         -         -            -             

OTHERS 990.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 990.19

Disputed- MSME -               -         -         -            -             

Disputed-Others -               -         -         -            -             

Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables as on 31-03-2024

Particualars
Less than 1 

year
1 to 2 
years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years Total

MSME -                 -           -           -              -               

OTHERS 1417.50 2.98 0.00 0.00 1420.48

Disputed- MSME -                 -           -           -              -               

Disputed-Others -                 -           -           -              -               

Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables as on 31-03-2023
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14. Other financial liabilities

Security deposits from Staff 3.51 3.17
Security deposits from Distributors 93.22 43.10
Dividend Payable 13.73 8.54
Unpaid Auditor's Remuneration 13.00 0.00
Liabilities for expenses 172.55 2.33

296.01 57.14
Non-current 93.22 43.10
Current 202.79 14.04

296.01 57.14

Provision for Gratuity 59.34 166.37
59.34 166.37

Non-current 0.00 0.00
Current 59.34 166.37

59.34 166.37

15. Provisions

As at the beginning  of the year 28.33 24.69
Charge / (credit ) to Statement of profit and loss 25.84 3.63

As at the year end 54.17 28.33

16. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at 
31 March, 

As at 
31 March, 

Statutory liabilities 479.32 469.49
Unpaid Expenses 8400.52 8146.76

8879.83 8619.74

17. Other current liabilities
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Particulars

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 
2023

Sale of products ( Adhesives and other related goods) 25730.07 26125.30 

Total revenue from operations 25730.07 26125.30

18. Revenue from operations

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

Contracted Price 26028.98 26149.58
Addition / (Reduction) towards variable consideration 
components* (298.90) (24.28)

25730.07 26125.30

*The reduction/addition towards variable consideration includes discounts, rebates, incentives,
promotional couponing and schemes.

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

Interest Income 669.79 206.96
Other  Non operating Income including Rent and Profit on sale of Assets 10.29 19.28
Profit/(Loss) on sale of Mutual Funds 2.17 0.00
Total 682.25 226.25

19. Other income

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

Raw materials
Opening Stock 87.84 227.12
Add : Purchases during the year 6242.79 10947.81
Less : Rate difference 0.00 0.00
Less : Closing Stock (172.47) (87.84)

Consumption of Raw Materials during the year (A) 6158.16 11087.09

20. Cost of materials  consumed

Packing materials
Opening Stock 72.89 133.22
Add : Purchases during th year 2374.76 2372.28
Less : Closing Stock (63.91) (72.89)

Consumption of Packing Materials during the year (B) 2383.74 2432.61

Total (A+B) 8541.90 13519.70
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21. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress, stock in trade and packing materials

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 304.98 484.60
Work in progress 37.68 54.29

342.66 538.88
Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 260.17 304.98
Work in progress 0.27 37.68

260.44 342.66

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Finished goods 44.81 179.62
Work in progress 37.41 16.61

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 82.22 196.22

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

Salary and Wages (incl. Director Remuneration) 2420.08 1702.37
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 24.15 14.08
Gratuity 49.51 46.16
Ex Gratia Payment 10.06 9.41
Staff Welfare Expenses 3.86 3.40

Total 2507.66 1775.42

22. Employee benefits

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

Interest expenses 4.59 3.10
Other borrowing cost 0.00 0.00
Total 4.59 3.10

23. Finance costs

See accounting policy 4.7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.00 144.56

0.00 144.56

24. Depreciation and Amortisation
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Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

Manufacturing expenses
Consumption of stores and spares 2.31 2.54
Power and Fuel  68.00 67.17
Freight Inward,Octroi,Coolies and Cartages 75.58 81.73
Repairs and Maintenance
        - To  Buildings 21.19 3.41
        - To  Plant and Machineries 144.20 29.51
        - To  Other Assets 5.82 4.54
Misc.Factory Expenses 9.18 13.93
Water Expense 0.26 0.25

326.54 203.06
Selling and distribution expenses
Freight Outward, Coolies and Cartages 403.81 416.93
Traveling Expenses 
      - For Staff and Guests 248.65 228.77
Sales Promotion expense 4405.96 3194.93
Meeting & Seminar Expense 206.12 141.65
Advertisement Expenses 54.22 86.30

5318.76 4068.57

Administrative Expenses
Insurance Premium Expenses 16.54 16.81 
Payments to Auditors

As Auditor  
Statutory Audit fees 28.00 3.50 

Bank Commission Charges 2.60 0.07 
Organisation Fund Expenses 15.41 12.59 
Garden Expenses 0.13 0.52 
Laboratory Testing Expense 0.00 0.12 
Legal & Professional Fees Expenses 70.74 47.43 
Bonus Share Issue Expenses 0.00 23.68 
Misc.Office & Maintenance Expenses 24.50 27.63 
Municipal Tax 5.26 4.95 
Petrol, Diesel & Conveyance 6.55 7.91 
Postage Expense 7.44 4.83 
Printing & Stationery Exp. 57.59 51.02 
Rates and taxes 6.45 0.38 
R. O. C. Fee Expenses 0.12 0.08 
Rent 15.84 13.60 
Share Transfer Expense 3.02 3.56 
Subscription Expenses 5.75 4.83 
Bad debts 192.52 5.02 
Telephone Exp. 23.68 20.64 
CSR Expense (Note No. 35) 71.26 36.76 
Tempo Diesel &  Repair & Maintainence 8.07 13.89 

561.46 299.81 

6206.77 4571.45

25. Other expenses
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 Year ended 31 
March 2024 

 Year ended 
31 March 

2023 

Income tax
See accounting policy in note 4.24

A. Expense / (benefit)  recognised in statement of profit and loss:

Current tax (a)
Expense for current year 2250.00 1550.00

Earlier year excess provision written back (b) (16.17) (56.79)

Deferred tax (c)
Attributable to–
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 14.39 3.63

14.39 3.63
Total Tax expense 2248.22 1496.84

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

 Year ended 
31 March 2024 

 Year ended 
31 March 

2023 

Profit before income taxes 9069.17 6141.10
Enacted rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax payble at the above rates 2255.21 1545.71
Less/Add: Estmated allwances and disallwances -4.29 5.21
Income Tax Provision as per P&L 2250.00 1550.00
Effective tax rate 24.81% 25.24%

26. Income tax

 Year ended 
31 March 2024 

 Year ended 31 
March 2023 B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

 Year ended 31 
March 2024 

 Year ended 
31 March 

2023 

(Amounts are in Lakh ₹)

Year ended 
31 March 2024   

Year ended 
31 March 2024

Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2024

Property, plant and equipment -                   -               54.17 28.33 54.17 28.33
Deferred tax (assets) 
liabilities -                   -               54.17 28.33 54.17 28.33

Deferred tax (assets) Deferred tax liabilities Net deferred tax (assets) liabilities 

C. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following

Balance as at 
31 March 

2023

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

during 2023-24

Recognised in 
OCI during 

2023-24

Balance as at 
31 March 2024

Property, plant and equipment 28.33 14.39 11.45 54.17
28.33 14.39 11.45 54.17

Movement in temporary differences
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27. Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Amortized 
costs

Financial 
assets / 

liabilities at 
fair value 

through profi 
or loss

Financial 
assets / 

liabilities at 
fair value 

through OCI

Total 
carrying 

value
Total fair value

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Trade receivables * (Refer to Note 9) 9398.14 0.00 0.00 9398.14 9398.14
Cash and cash equivalents * (Refer to Note 10) 2818.05 0.00 0.00 2818.05 2818.05

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Borrowings * (Refer to Note 11) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Trade payables * (Refer to Note 16) 990.19 0.00 0.00 990.19 990.19
Other financial liabilities * (Refer to Note 17) 202.79 0.00 0.00 202.79 202.79

Amortized 
costs

Financial 
assets / 

liabilities at 
fair value 

through profi 
or loss

Financial 
assets / 

liabilities at 
fair value 

through OCI

Total 
carrying 

value
Total fair value

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Trade receivables * (Refer to Note 9) 9145.70 0.00 0.00 9145.70 9145.70
Cash and cash equivalents * (Refer to Note 10) 386.03 0.00 0.00 386.03 386.03

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Borrowings * (Refer to Note 15) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Trade payables * (Refer to Note 16) 1420.48 0.00 0.00 1420.48 1420.48
Other financial liabilities * (Refer to Note 17) 57.14 0.00 0.00 57.14 57.14

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

B. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

a) credit risk (see (B)(ii));
b) liquidity risk (see (B)(iii)); and
c) market risk (see (B)(iv)).

I. Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The board of directors along with the top management are responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.
The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company,
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As at 
31 March 

As at 
31 March 

Trade receivables 9398.14 9145.70
Cash and cash equivalents 2818.05 386.03

12216.19 9531.73

Carrying amount

Trade receivables
The Company has developed guidelines for the management of credit risk from trade receivables. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.

28. Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management 
Trade receivables
Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses.
Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses Given that the macro economic indicators affecting customers of
the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue, Further, management
believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behavior and extensive
analysis of customer credit risk.
The Company's exposure to  credit risk for trade receivables by relationship is as follows:

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Third party customers 9398.14 9145.70

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions as at the reporting dates which has been measured on the
12-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is
considered to be good with low credit risk. Also, no impairment loss has been recorded in respect of fixed deposits that are with recognised commercial banks

and are not past due.

Investments in equity instruments
Investments in equity instruments majorly includes investment in equity shares of  Co-operative banks in furtherance of the credit facities taken by Company from
these banks. The credit worthiness of such banks are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk.

iii. Liquidity risks
Iliquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash

or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. 

iv. Market risks
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of
a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company is not
exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk (currency risk). It however is exposed to interest rate risk. Thus the Company’s exposure to
market risk is just a function of borrowing activities as it doesnot have any transactions in foreign currency which leads to currency risk.

29 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

As at 
31 March, 2024

As at 
31 March, 2023

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining unexecuted on capital account (net of advances) not provided for                               -                              -   

Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

Disputed demand  of income tax for which appeals have been preferred -                           -                        
Disputed demand  of excise -                           -                        
Disputed bonus liability under Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 -                           -                        

(Amounts are in Lakh ?)

Particulars

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its

contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other
financial assets.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:
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30

As at 
31 March, 2024

As at 
31 March, 2023

                                -                                -   

                                -   
                             -   

                                -   

                             -   
                                -   

                             -   
                                -                                -   
                                -   

                             -   

31 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

As at 
31 March, 2024

As at 
31 March, 2023

Value of imports calculated on CIF basis Nil Nil

32 Corporate Social Responsibilty (CSR) Expenditure

(a) CSR Disclosures

Particulars For the year ended 
31/03/2024

(i) amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 69.36
(ii) amount of expenditure incurred, 71.26
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year, 0.00
(iv) total of previous years shortfall, 0.00
(v) reason for shortfall, Not Applicable

(b)

(c )

Amount 
Contributed

(d)

Not Applicable

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

There is no provision to be made with respect to any liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation.

Nature of RelationName of Trust

Not applicable

 Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility is spent on Distributing Food Packets/Grains/Pulses to needy People, 

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on 
the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues as at the Balance Sheet date. The above information has been determined to the 
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars

details of related party transactions, e.g.,contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per 

For the year 
ended 31/03/2023

35.85
36.76
0.00
0.00

33. Operating segment
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it 
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions 
with any of the Company's other components and for which discrete financial information is available. 
The Company’s chief operating decision-maker (CODM) is considered to be the Company’s Managing 
Director ('MD'). The Company is engaged in the business of Productions of wood adhesives which are 
widely used in fast moving consumer market on days. Information reported to and evaluated regularly by 
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and assessing performance focuses on the business 
as a whole and accordingly, in the context of Operating Segment as defined under the Indian Accounting 
Standard 108 'Segment Information', there is no separate reportable segment. Further Company sells its 
products only in India and hence there is no separate reportable segment in this context.
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34. Related party disclosures
Details of related parties
Description of relationship

(I) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Names of related parties
Utkarsh J. Patel - Managing Director
Jagdish N. Patel - Chairman cum Whole Time Director
Jyotika Jagdish Patel - Whole Time Director
Ashok C Jardosh - Chief Financial Officer

Tejal M Varde  - Company Secretary

(I) Relative of Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.

Priyanka U Patel - Employee

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31 March, 2024 and balances
outstanding as at 31 March, 2024:

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023

756.00 276.00 0.00 0.00 756.00 276.00
13.20 12.11 36.00 36.00 49.20 48.11

399.09 1160.50 6.51 25.75 405.60 1186.25
399.09 1172.59 6.51 29.40 405.60 1201.99

-                            -                     -                   -                   -                         -                        

KMP Relative of KMP Total

Particulars

Director Remuneration
Salary and Allowances
Loan taken
Repayment of loans
Closing balance as at year end

Notes:
(I) There are no amounts due to or due from related parties which have been written off / written back during the year.

(ii) Remuneration does not include Gratuity and Leave encashment which is computed for the Company as a whole. 

Additional Regulatory Information

35. The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 2(a) on Property, plant and equipment
to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

36. There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

37. Willfull Defaulter
(I) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
(ii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

38. The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

39. The Registration of charge in respect of secured loans filed to ROC beyond the statutory period is NIL.

40. The company does not have any subsidiary. Therefore clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable.
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41. Ratio

Sr. No. Ratio Numerator Denominator
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March, 2023
% Variance Reason for 

variance

1 Current ratio Current Assets Current 
Liabilities 2.15 1.30 65.05% N.A.

2 Debt equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s 
Equity 0.00 0.00  - N.A.

3 Debt service coverage 
ratio

Earnings available 
for debt service Debt Service 1975.09 751.48 162.83%

Earnings of the 
company has 
increased and 

there are no long 
term borrowings 
by the company 

4 Return on Equity Net Profit after 
taxes

Average 
Shareholder’s 

Equity 
49.91% 55.12% -9.44% N.A.

5 Inventory turnover ratio Sales Average 
Inventory 85.33 59.27 43.96%

Due to lower sale 
as compared to 
the earlier year, 

the invenotry 
levels were 
slightly high 

6 Trader receivable 
turnover ratio Net Credit Sales

Average 
Accounts 

Receivable 
2.78 3.35 -17.26% N.A.

7 Trade payable 
turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold

Average 
Accounts 

Payable
7.09 16.62 -57.37%

Cost of Goods 
sold has reduced 

due to effective 
management of 
costs and also 

due to lower sale

8 Net capital turnover 
ratio Net Sales 

Average 
Working 

Capital 
3.44 10.92 -68.46%

Working capital of 
the company has 

improved

9 Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 17.78% 10.46% 70.02%
Profit of the 

company has 
increased

10 Return on capital 
employed

Earning before 
interest and taxes 

Capital 
Employed 85.18% 57.82% 47.32%

Profit of the 
company has 

increased

11 Return on investment Return Investment 70.80% 0.00% 100%
Company has 

earned profit on 
its investment

42. There is no scheme of arrangements approved by the competent authority in terms of section 230 to 237 of the
companies Act, 2013 during the year.
43. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entities, including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall (I) directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

44. The Company has not received any fund from any person or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding that the company shall (I) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security

or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

45. The Company has not received any fund from any person or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the company shall (I) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any  guarantee, security or the
like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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46. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income or the previously unrecorded income and related assets during
the year in the tax assessments which are not recorded in the books of accounts of the company.
47. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
48. Disclosures under Rule 11(f) of the Company (Audit & Auditors) Rule, 2014 - Dividends
The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders. The Company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees.
49. Previous year figures have been recasted/restated wherever necessary including those as required in keeping with revised

Schedule III amendments.
As per our report of even date attached
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